County Seat
Kendall County

United City of Yorkville
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, Illinois 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350
www.yorkville.il.us

PLANNING AND ZONING

COMMISSION AGENDA
Wednesday, October 12, 2022
7:00 PM
Yorkville City Hall Council Chambers
800 Game Farm Road

Meeting Called to Order: 7:00 p.m.

Roll Call:

Previous meeting minutes: August 10, 2022

Citizen’s Comments

Public Hearings

L.

PZC 2022-19 Jordan Gash, on behalf of Restore Church, Inc., petitioner, has filed an application
with the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting rezoning classification of
three (3) parcels totaling approximately 34 acres located at 8710 Route 71 in Yorkville, Illinois.
The real property, situated east of Illinois State Route 71 and Illinois State Route 126 intersection
on the northeast corner of Wing Road and Illinois State Route 71, is part of the previously
approved Windmill Farms Annexation Agreement. The petitioner is seeking to rezone from the
Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning designation to the B-3 General Business District to
continue to operate the existing religious institution land use and accommodate future
commercial development.

Unfinished Business

New Business

1.

PZC 2022-19 Jordan Gash, on behalf of Restore Church, Inc., petitioner, has filed an application
with the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, requesting rezoning classification of
three (3) parcels totaling approximately 34 acres located at 8710 Route 71 in Yorkville, Illinois.
The real property, situated east of Illinois State Route 71 and Illinois State Route 126 intersection
on the northeast corner of Wing Road and Illinois State Route 71, is part of the previously
approved Windmill Farms Annexation Agreement. The petitioner is seeking to rezone from the
Planned Unit Development (PUD) zoning designation to the B-3 General Business District to
continue to operate the existing religious institution land use and accommodate future
commercial development.

Additional Business

1.

City Council Action Updates


http://www.yorkville.il.us/

PZC 2021-08 Thomas Williamson, on behalf of Graham C Stores Company, petitioner,
is seeking special use permit authorization, rezoning approval, a variance to the sign
regulations, and final plat approval to develop a gasoline service station with accessory
convenience store. The real property is approximately 5.51 acres and is located at the
northeast corner of State Route 47 (Bridge Street) and State Route 71 (Stagecoach Trail)
intersection.

Action Item
Rezone, Special Use, Sign Variance, Final Plat

PZC 2022-14 John McFarland, on behalf of CalAtlantic Group, LLC, petitioner, is
seeking Final Plat approval to subdivide the approximately 6.27-acre vacant parcel into
12 single-family units in Windett Ridge Unit 2. The subject property is generally located
east of South Bridge Street (IL Route 47) and south of Stagecoach Trail (IL Route 71) at
the eastern edge of Windett Ridge Road.

Action Item
Final Plat

PZC 2022-16 John McFarland, on behalf of CalAtlantic Group, LLC, petitioner, is
seeking Final Plat approval to subdivide two (2) undeveloped parcels totaling
approximately 22.77 into 62 lots consisting of 61 single-family units and a 37,809-square
foot open space lot in Caledonia — Phase 3. The proposed Final Plat would complete the
buildout of the overall master planned subdivision of 206 single family detached
residential lots. The property is generally located south of Corneils Road and west of
Bridge Street.

Action Item
Final Plat

2. Aging in Community - Lifecycle Living Workshop

Adjournment



DRAFT

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION
City Council Chambers
800 Game Farm Road, Yorkville, 11
Wednesday, August 10, 2022 7:00pm

NOTE: In accordance with Public Act 101-0640 and Gubernatorial Disaster Proclamation issued
by Governor Pritzker pursuant to the powers vested in the Governor under the Illinois Emergency
Management Agency Act, the City of Yorkville is allowing remote attendance at this meeting and
social distancing is being encouraged due to the current Covid-19 pandemic.

Meeting Called to Order
Chairman Jeff Olson called the meeting to order at 7:00pm, roll was called and a quorum was
established.

Roll Call

Jeff Olson-yes/in-person

Danny Williams-yes/in-person

Deborah Horaz-yes/electronic attendance
Rusty Hyett-yes/electronic attendance

Absent: Greg Millen, Richard Vinyard

City Staff
Krysti Barksdale-Noble, Community Develo pment Director/in-person attendance

Jason Engberg, Senior Planner/in-person attendance

Other Guests

Chris Vitosh, Vitosh Reporting Service/electronic attendance
John McFarland, CalAtlantic/electronic attendance

Thomas Williamson, G.M.. Graham C Stores/in-person
David Courtright, Attorney, Yorkville Public Storage/in-person attendance
Susan Munson, Legacy Real Estate/in-person attendance
David Schultz, Engineer, HR Green/in-person attendance
Mark VanDonselaar, Graham C Store/in-person attendance
John & Janet Warnecke/in-person attendance

Rob Costello, Graham C Stores/in-person attendance

Todd Milliron/in-person attendance

Previous Meeting Minutes July 13, 2022

The minutes were approved as presented on a motion and second by Commissioners Horaz and
Williams, respectively.

Roll call: Olson-yes, Williams-yes, Horaz-yes, Hyett-yes. Carried 4-0.

Citizen’s Comments (see comments at end of meeting minutes)

Public Hearings
Chairman Olson stated there were two Public Hearings and he explained the procedure to be

followed. He swore in those who would present testimony for or against. The Public Hearings
were opened at 7:03pm on a motion and second by Commissioners Williams and Hyett,
respectively. Roll call: Williams-yes, Horaz-yes, Hyett-yes, Olson-yes. Carried 4-0.
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The Public Hearing descriptions were read by Chairman Olson:

1. PZC 2022-08 Thomas Williamson, on behalf of Graham C Stores Company,
petitioner, is seeking special use permit authorization, rezoning approval and a
variance to the sign regulations to develop a gasoline service station with accessory
convenience store. The real property is approximately 5.51 acres and is located at
the northeast corner of State Route 47 (Bridge Street) and State Route 71
(Stagecoach Trail) intersection

(See Court Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings)
(Petitioner requested the Standards to be entered into the official record)

2. 2022-17 David Courtright, attorney on behalf of CI1G TSP LLC, GIG TSP AP LLC,
CIG TSP CFP LLC, CIG TSP K&SM II LLC, petitioners, is seeking variance
approval to permit permanent accessory structures closer to the public way than the
principal building on a lot and to permit expansion of a non-conforming use. The
real property is located at 1602 N. Bridge Street on the east side of Bridge Street
(State Route 47) and north of Veterans Parkway (U.S. 34). The petitioner is seeking
to keep their temporary storage containers currently located on the property as
permitted through a temporary building permit.

(See Court Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings)
(Petitioner requested the responses to the Standards be added to the official record)

After testimony was presented, a motion was made by Mr. Williams, seconded by Mr. Hyett, to
close the Public Hearings. Roll call: Williams-yes, Horaz-yes, Hyett-yes, Olson-yes.
Carried 4-0.

Unfinished Business None

New Business

1. PZC 2022-08 Thomas Williamson, Graham C Stores (see #1 above)
Ms. Noble said the Petitioner is making 3 requests under the Public Hearing process and also a
request for a Final Plat. The current zoning is M-1 and the site is 2 parcels totaling 5.5 acres.

Rezoning Request: The Petitioner is proposing to rezone to B-3, consistent with the Comp Plan
and staff supports this.

Special Use: Ms. Noble described the layout of the gas station when built. She discussed the site
plan and said the various setbacks and other requirements have been met. It was noted the
petitioner has agreed to signage on Rt. 71 so the ingress/egress is not blocked.

Sign Variance: A request for a 30-foot sign was made by the Petitioner, which staff compared to
the heights of other gas station signs. The maximum height allowed is 12 feet and 65 sq. ft sign
area. Ms. Noble said this request was negotiated down to 25 feet high and 168 feet sign area, but
staff is open to discussing a smaller sign. The sign material is consistent with requirements.

Final Plat: The Final Plat has been reviewed by the City Engineer and staff supports approval.
There are conditions established in staff's memo and comments from a July 14™ engineer's memo,
both of which should be considered conditions of the Special Use. If the city grants the height
and size variance, the Economic Development Committee requests that there be a maximum of
one monument sign for this parcel.

Page 2 of 6



Commissioners' Discussion of Four Requests:
Rezoning: Chairman Olson read the Standards for Rezoning and the Commissioners had no

objection to the rezoning. Ms. Horaz asked who would maintain the access roads leading to Rt.
71 and Rt. 47. Engineer David Schultz said these roads will be maintained by IDOT while the
Petitioner will maintain the access on their property. The road around the back of the gas station
is private and will be maintained by the Petitioner.

Special Use: Mr. Olson read the Standards for a Special Use and all Commissioners were OK
with this.

Sign Variance: The Sign Variance Standards were read by Mr. Olson and all Commissioners
objected to the request for increased sign height and area. They agreed that the Petitioner could
have 2 monument signs, however, the Petitioner is only asking for one.

Final Plat: The Commissioners were OK with the Final Plat.

Action Items

Rezone Request
Motion for approval by Ms. Horaz and second by Mr. Williams. Mr. Williams read the motion as
follows: In consideration of testimony presented during a Public Hearing on August 10, 2022 and
approval of the findings of fact, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval to
the City Council of a request for a map amendment to rezone the property located at 107 E.
Stagecoach Trail from M-1 Limited Manufacturing District to B-3 General Business District.
Roll call: Horaz-yes, Hyett-yes, Olson-yes, Williams-yes. Carried 4-0.

Special Use
Motion for approval by Mr. Williams, second by Ms. Horaz. Mr. Williams read the motion as
follows: In consideration of testimony presented during a Public Hearing on August 10, 2022 and
approval of the findings of fact, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval to
the City Council of a request for Special Use authorization for a fuel/gasoline service station with
a convenience store to be located at 107 E. Stagecoach Trail subject to engineering review
comments provided by the City's consultant, EEI, Inc., in a letter dated July 14, 2022.
Roll call: Hyett-yes, Olson-yes, Williams-yes, Horaz-yes. Carried 4-0.

Sign Variance
Motion for approval by Ms. Horaz and second by Mr. Williams. Motion read by Mr. Williams
as follows: In consideration of testimony presented during a Public Hearing on August 10, 2022
and approval of the findings of fact, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval
of a request to vary the sign regulations contained in Section 10-20-9-A of the United City of
Yorkville Zoning Ordinance to permit a free standing monument sign in a business district that is
168 square feet in sign area and 25 feet in height, as depicted in a sign plan prepared by Image
FX Corp. and dated 5-31-22.
Roll call: Horaz-no, Hyett-no, Olson-no, Williams-no. Motion failed 0-4.
Ms. Noble asked if the Commissioners had a recommendation for the maximum height. Mr.
Williams suggested that the size could match competitors such as the Shell station across the
street, while Mr. Olson suggested a height within the code.

Final Plat
Motion for approval by Ms. Horaz and second by Mr. Williams who read the motion as follows:
The Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval to the City Council of a request for
Final Plat of Subdivision of the Graham C Subdivision in Yorkville prepared by HR Green and
dated last revised July 1, 2022.
Roll call: Hyett-yes, Olson-yes, Williams-yes, Horaz-yes. Carried 4-0.
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2. PZC 2022-14 John McFarland, on behalf of CalAtlantic Group, LL.C, Petitioner,
is seeking Final Plat approval to subdivide the approximately 6.27-acre vacant parcel into 12
single-family units in Windett Ridge Unit 2. The subject property is generally located east of
South Bridge Street (IL Route 47) and south of Stagecoach Trail (IL Route 71) at the eastern edge
of Windett Ridge Road.

Ms. Noble said the original development was foreclosed and sold after the economic downturn.
CalAtlantic now wishes to finish the subdivision and is dividing the property into 12 single-
family units which is a reduction from an earlier land plan. The reason for the reduction is to
accommodate a 55,000 sq. ft. stormwater management easement and a required sanitary sewer lift
station.  She said the lift station structure is required to match the look of the residential. The
Final Plat has been reviewed, comments have been met and staff recommends approval.

Action Item

Final Plat
A motion to approve the Final Plat was made and seconded by Commissioners Williams and
Horaz, respectively. The motion was read by Mr. Williams as follows: In consideration of the
proposed Final Plat of Subdivision for Windett Ridge Unit 2, the Planning and Zoning
Commission recommends approval of the plat to the City Council as prepared by Mackie
Consultants, LLC date last revised June 16, 2022.
Roll call: Olson-yes, Williams-yes, Horaz-yes, Hyett-yes. Carried 4-0.

3. PZC 2022-16 John McFarland, on behalf of CalAtlantic Group, LLC, Petitioner,
is seeking Final Plat approval to subdivide two (2) undeveloped parcels totaling approximately
22.77 into 62 lots consisting of 61 single-family units and and 37,809-square foot open space lot
in Caledonia - Phase 3. The proposed Final Plat would complete the buildout of the overall
master planned subdivision of 206 single family detached residential lots. The property is
generally located south of Corneils Road and west of Bridge Street.

Ms. Noble said Caledonia has gone through several owners and this is now the final phase. This
portion has 2 undeveloped parcels to be divided into 62 lots/61 homesites and an open space.
This will complete the development. She said a Plan Council meeting had been held earlier, all
comments have been addressed and staff recommends approval.

Action Item

Final Plat
Mr. Hyett moved and Mr. Williams seconded a motion for approval. Mr. Williams read the
motion as follows: In consideration of the proposed Final Plat of Caledonia Subdivision-Phase 3,
the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval of the plat to the City Council as
prepared by Spaceco, Inc., dated last revised 6-13-2022.
Roll call: Olson-yes, Williams-yes, Horaz-yes, Hyett-yes. Carried 4-0.

4. PZC 2022-17 Yorkville Storage (see #2 under Public Hearings, for full description
Mr. Engberg gave the background of this petition and why the requests are being made. He said
the lot where the storage buildings are situated, was annexed in the 70's and built in the 90's. The
previous owner asked to erect the mobile, temporary storage units and they were issued a permit
in 2021 to erect 38 storage units in the buildable area. The flag-shape of the lot made the area
unique. The units were being placed in the fall and it was found they were placed incorrectly and
the city was notified. A plan was made for correction and in January 2022 excess units were
removed. Three conditions to their building permit were issued: 1) units allowed for 6 months,
2) maintain 2 off-street parking spaces and 3) after 6 months must remove units or apply for a
variance. July 31, 2022 was the 6-month deadline. The Petitioner has now asked for relief from
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2 variances: 1) permanent accessory structures cannot be closer to the public way than the
primary structure, 2) wish to expand legally non-conforming use.

Chairman Olson said he did not favor temporary permits and that these units are temporary
structures operating as permanent structures. He said a permanent variance should not be given
for a temporary structure since the code requirements are different regarding public safety. Ms.
Noble said the units did meet the building code standards.

Mr. Engberg noted that if the 2 variances are granted, the storage facility can expand later. He
said the Comp Plan calls for higher design and buffering for this use and if the PZC approves,
staff will ask for buffering with landscaping and fencing. A plan sent this week by the Petitioner
would provide for buffering all around and an 8-foot privacy fence along the east property line.
Chairman Olson said he did not think the fencing was necessary and Ms. Horaz said she would
prefer landscaping rather than fencing.

Chairman Olson read the standards for both variances. It was noted that the units could be moved
around or removed. Commissioner Williams expressed concern that the staff had not yet been
able to review the landscape plan since it was just received this week.

Action Item

Variance
It was moved and seconded by Commissioners Williams and Horaz, respectively, to approve PZC
2022-17 Yorkville Self Storage. The motion was read by Mr. Williams as follows: In
consideration of testimony presented during a Public Hearing on August 10, 2022 and approval of
the findings of fact, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval to permit
accessory structures closer to the public right-of-way than the principal building and to permit the
expansion of a non-conforming use for the property located at 1602 N. Bridge Street, subject to
staff recommendations in a staff memo dated August 3, 2022. Those staff recommendations are:
the placement of the accessory structures must be consistent with the current layout of units as
illustrated in the submitted site plan dated 6-30-2022. An 8-foot privacy fence must be installed
along the rear property line to buffer the land use from adjacent properties. A landscape plan
must be submitted and approved which is consistent with the conditions of the landscape
ordinance regulations for perimeter parking lot landscaping per Section 8-12-2-C-2-b. When a
parking lot is adjacent to a public right-of-way, a landscape buffer yard shall be provided and
shall be the width of the required parking lot setback or thirty feet (30'), whichever is less. The
buffer yard shall consist of one (1) shade tree, one (1) evergreen tree and thirty-three (33) shrubs
per one hundred (100) linear feet of buffer yard.
Roll call: Williams-yes, Horaz-no, Hyett-no, Olson-yes. Ayes-2, Nays-2.
Ms. Noble will forward the decision to City Council.

Additional Business None

City Council Updates
1. PZC 2022-12 Bristol Bay: Ms. Noble said the Bristol Bay Units 10 and 12 Final
Plats were approved by the City Council on July 26.

Citizen Comments (out of sequence)

Mr. Todd Milliron said he attended the June PZC meeting where there was discussion regarding
the possible change of the county land use plan on S. Eldamain to include business/industrial
uses. He said the Silver Springs conservation officers oppose that possible change. He wished
to inform this body so if this matter comes back for a recommendation, that the officers be
invited to provide input. He said the county did not ask for their input. He believes their
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information is important since there are county and state parks nearby and he is concerned about
the possible impact.

Adjournment
There was no further business and the meeting was adjourned at 8:09pm on a motion by Mr.

Williams and second by Ms. Horaz. Unanimous voice vote.

Respectfully submitted by,
Marlys Young, Minute Taker/in-person attendance
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PZC - Public Hearings - August 10, 2022

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

YORKVILLE, ILLINOIS

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION

PUBLIC HEARING

800 Game Farm Road

Yorkville, Illinois

Wednesday, August 10, 2022

7:00 p.m.

Vitosh Reporting Service

815.993.2832 cms.vitosh@gmail.com
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PZC - Public Hearings - August 10, 2022

PRESENT: (In-person and via Zoom)
Mr. Jeff Olson, Chairman,
Ms. Deborah Horaz,
Mr. Danny Williams,
Mr. Rusty Hyett.
ALSO PRESENT: (In-person and via Zoom)

Ms. Krysti Barksdale-Noble, Community
Development Director;
Mr. Jason Engberg, Senior Planner;

Ms. Marlys Young, Minute Taker.

Vitosh Reporting Service
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PZC - Public Hearings - August 10, 2022

(WHEREUPON, the following
proceedings were in had public
hearing:)

CHAIRMAN OLSON: We will move on to the
next agenda item, which is the public hearing.
There are two public hearings scheduled for
tonight's Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.
The purpose of this hearing tonight is to invite
testimony from members of the public regarding
the proposed request that is being considered
before this Commission tonight.

Public testimony may be from persons
present who wish to speak for or against the
request or to ask questions of the petitioner
regarding the proposed request being heard.

Those persons wishing to testify are
asked to speak clearly, one at a time, and state
your name, who you represent, if anybody at all.
You are also asked to sign in at the podium if
you are going to speak tonight.

If you plan to speak during
tonight's public hearing as a petitioner or as a
member of the public, now please stand, raise

your right hand and repeat after me.

Vitosh Reporting Service
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PZC - Public Hearings - August 10, 2022

(Witnesses thereupon duly sworn.)
CHAIRMAN OLSON: All right. So the way
we do this is we have an order that we follow.
The petitioner will do their presentation and
then we will have those who wish to speak in
favor of the request, followed by those who wish
to speak in opposition to the request.

I run a tight ship; if we're going
to have multiple people that are saying the same
thing, I ask you to please kindly stay seated.
One viewpoint, somebody says something close,
that's good enough, we'll move on.

To start, may I have a motion,
please, then to open the public hearing on
petition number PZC 2022-08, special use permit
authorization rezoning approval and sign
variance, and also PZC 2022-17, temporary storage
container variance request.

MR. WILLIAMS: So moved.

MR. HYETT: Second.

CHAIRMAN OLSON: Roll call vote on the
motion, please.

MS. YOUNG: Yes. Williams.

MR. WILLIAMS: Yes.

Vitosh Reporting Service
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PZC - Public Hearings - August 10, 2022

MS. YOUNG: Horaz.

MS. HORAZ: Yes.

MS. YOUNG: Hyett.

MR. HYETT: Yes.

MS. YOUNG: And Olson.
CHAIRMAN OLSON: Yes.

All right. The public hearings up
for discussion tonight are PZC 2022-08, Thomas
Williamson, on behalf of Graham C Stores Company,
Petitioner, 1is seeking a special use permit
authorization, rezoning approval and a variance
to the sign regulations to develop a gasoline
service station with accessory convenient store.

The real property is located on five
and a half acres and is located at the northeast
corner of 47 and 71 intersection.

The second item we have up or public
hearing tonight is David Courtright, attorney, on
behalf of -- boy, a bunch of Roman numeral
looking things here, CIG TSP, LLC; GIG TSP AP,
LLC; CIG TSP CFP, LLC; CIG TSP K&SM II, LLC,
Petitioners, 1is seeking variance approval to
permit permanent accessory structures closer to

the public way than the principal building on a
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PZC - Public Hearings - August 10, 2022

lot and to permit expansion of a non-conforming
use.

The real property is located at 1602
North Bridge Street, on the east side of Bridge
Street, and north of the Route 34, which 1is also
then south of Dunkin Donuts.

The petitioner is seeking to keep
their temporary storage containers currently
located on the property as permitted through a
temporary building permit.

All right. So for PZC 2022-08, the
BP gas station, is the petitioner present and
ready to present?

MR. WILLTAMSON: Yes, we are.

CHAIRMAN OLSON: Come on up.

MR. WILLIAMSON: Over here?

CHAIRMAN OLSON: Yep, if you wouldn't
mind. When you get up there if you could state
your name, who you are, et cetera, et cetera.

MR. WILLIAMSON: Okay.

THOMAS WILLIAMSON,
having been first duly sworn, testified before
the Commission as follows:

MR. WILLIAMSON: My name is Thomas

Vitosh Reporting Service
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PZC - Public Hearings - August 10, 2022

Williamson. I am the GM for Graham C Stores
Company, and thank you for the time tonight, for
the speech, and, committee members, a little bit
about Graham C Stores, we are a third generation
family-owned company. We own and operate 26 gas
stations and convenient stores in the surrounding
collar counties around Chicago.

We are blessed enough to be in the
village now, we have one on Bridge Street and 47
and we have been there since 2013, took it over
from a prior owner, and we have enjoyed being in
the city, and as we kind of plot out our areas
and stuff, the other corner kind of fits our
requirements of what we like to look for and has
got the flow and stuff, so we're going up to 47
and Stagecoach Road, so we kind of have put
together a little packet, and we appreciate you
guys giving us the time to present.

David put together a lot of stuff
for us, so, again, it's basically our -- kind of
our background a little bit, and we are looking
forward to possibly continuing to grow with you
guys.

CHATIRMAN OLSON: Thank you.

Vitosh Reporting Service
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PZC - Public Hearings - August 10, 2022

MR. WILLIAMSON: Any questions for me?

CHAIRMAN OLSON: Not yet I don't think.
Thank you.

MR. WILLIAMSON: Okay.

CHAIRMAN OLSON: I don't want to speak
for you, Deb and Rusty, do you have any gquestions
so far? We will probably ask questions during
the later period.

MR. HYETT: No.

MS. HORAZ: No.

CHAIRMAN OLSON: Thank you. So there
are standards for us to grant these different
variances, et cetera, et cetera. Typically we
ask you as the property owner i1if you want them
entered into the record. We suggest that you do.

MR. WILLIAMSON: Yes.

CHAIRMAN OLSON: Thank you.

MR. WILLIAMSON: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN OLSON: All right. Did anyone
else want to speak about this from the Brand
team, are we --

(No response.)
CHAIRMAN OLSON: Okay. All right. Then

is there anyone who wishes to speak in favor of
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PZC - Public Hearings - August 10, 2022

these requests? And there is multiple requests;
there is -- I'11 fill in some blanks. We're
doing a -- there are four things we're going to
do for this, there is the rezoning, right now 1is
tipped -- it is at M-1, it was that -- I think it
was FS or the natural gas company for forever,
changing it from M-1 to a B-3, so that's the
first thing we'll vote on.

The second one is the special use,
which, let's see here, yeah, which Krysti just
whispered in my ear is required for a fuel-owned
gas service station. The third is the sign
variance, which we will talk about later, and the
fourth is -- no, that' is -- the final plat for
it?

MS. NOBLE: That does not require a
public hearing.

CHAIRMAN OLSON: Okay. So that will be
outside the public hearing portion. Okay. Is
there anyone who wishes to speak in favor of
these requests for this BP site?

(No response.)

CHAIRMAN OLSON: Is there anyone who

wishes to speak in opposition of these requests

Vitosh Reporting Service
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PZC - Public Hearings - August 10, 2022
10

for the BP site?
(No response.)
CHAIRMAN OLSON: Okay. Seeing as there
are none, do we have any questions right now from

commissioners for petitioner? I'm going to guess

no.
(No response.)
CHAIRMAN OLSON: All right. Then we
will move on. Do we have the petitioner present

for PZC 2022-17, storage unit variance approval?
Go ahead, sir, and, again, if you could let us
know your name, appreciate it.

DAVID COURTRIGHT,
having been first duly sworn, testified before
the Commission as follows:

MR. COURTRIGHT: Good evening. My name
is Dave Courtright on behalf of the list of
letters you had said. We're going to say the
owners of the real property located at 1602 North
Bridge Street.

CHAIRMAN OLSON: Very good.

MR. COURTRIGHT: We are seeking a
variance, subject variance for a few reasons.

Okay, first of all, I think it's notable we're
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dealing with a unigque lot here, okay? We have
three existing principal primary buildings on
that lot on the east side. That would render the
property as legally non-conforming uses because
remember this business has gone back a long time
pre-existing the ordinance, so 1if we were to not
be granted a variance, we would essentially not
be able to use accessory structures anything
closer to Illinois Route 47 that constitutes the
entire remainder of the lot, okay?

And, again, this lot is oriented to
the north. We don't have any access on and off.
Typical when the ordinance was contemplated,
flagship blocks were discouraged.

The ordinance is intended to harbor
rectangular lots with frontage access on and off
of Illinois Route 47. That's not the case with
us . We don't have any access on and off the
street. We share the easement, access easement,
with all in order to get into our parcel from the
north, so everything is really oriented to the
north, which obviously it makes this parcel a
little bit different than the average for the

standard.
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Secondly, we operated a self storage
business, okay? This business has incurred
changes over the last ten, 20 years, and we are a
self storage business, we have been able to
operate viably with the number of units that
we've had in the past.

That's not the case today. The
industry has changed, and as you can see Dby
comparing us to the other self storage businesses
in the area, we have the smallest parcel in
addition to the smallest number of units.

We're trying to adapt. We're trying
to change with the industry. We're trying to
stay viable, to continue as a business, and if we
can't grow, we die. We die, right? I mean,
ultimately I suppose that would result in a
vacant lot for some period of time as opposed to
what we are proposing.

We understand the staff
recommendation; if the variance were to Dbe
granted, it would be done so on the condition
that my client erect a fence and landscaping to
beautify that stretch.

Look, we all know that the objective
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of the ordinance, the objective that we're trying
to do, i1s have sightly frontage on Illinois Route
47. We are a pre-existing legal non-conforming
use. We are oriented to the north. We are a
little bit out of sorts to apply that ordinance
to; however, what we are proposing -- and
everybody should have a handout in front of them
with a landscaping plan and a fence plan.

I apologize, that was not included
in the packet because we submitted it just this
week, not early enough to be; however, that's
$60,000 in beautification work to this lot,

specifically the frontage on Illinois Route 47.

We want to be a good business. We
want -- we want to continue serving a need. We
are rented out. We have all of our units

occupied right now, and we want to continue to
serve that need. We want to improve the property
on Illinois Route 47.

We have a fence plan and a
landscaping plan in which we can substitute on
certain sides of fence or landscaping based on
what may be more attractive and preferential to

the city, but, again, at the end of the day we're
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are asking for a way to move forward. We're
asking for the City's understanding given the
nature of this property, the flagship, the
orientation north, the ability to make this a
beautiful spot and continue to do our business,
which there is a need for in the city, and with
that, I'll pass.

CHAIRMAN OLSON: Thank you.

MR. COURTRIGHT: Thank you.

CHAIRMAN OLSON: All right. Any
questions, Deb, Rusty, right now, Danny?

MS. HORAZ: I don't have any at this
time.

CHATRMAN OLSON: Okay, thank you. Is
there anyone from the public here that wants to
speak in favor of the request?

(No response.)

CHATRMAN OLSON: Is there anyone who

wants to speak in opposition to the request?
(No response.)

CHATIRMAN OLSON: Seeing as there are
none, we will move on. Also, do you want your
responses to those questions added into the

record? We suggest that you do.

14
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COURTRIGHT: Yes.

CHATIRMAN OLSON: Thank you. All right.

Since all public testimony regarding these

petitions has been taken, may I please have a

motion to close the taking of testimony in this

public hearing?

MR.

MR.

WILLIAMS: So moved.

HYETT: Second.

CHAIRMAN OLSON: Roll call vote on the

motion, please.

MS.

MR.

MS.

MS.

MS.

MR.

MS.

YOUNG: Yes. Williams.
WILLIAMS: Yes.

YOUNG: Horaz.

HORAZ: Yes.

YOUNG: Hyett.

HYETT: Yes.

YOUNG: Olson.

CHATIRMAN OLSON: Yes.

MS.

YOUNG: Thank you.

CHATIRMAN OLSON: All right. Public

hearing portion of the meeting is closed.

(Which were all the proceedings
had in the public hearing portion

of the meeting.)
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STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) SS.
COUNTY OF LASALLE )

I, Christine M. Vitosh, a Certified Shorthand
Reporter, do hereby certify that I transcribed
the proceedings had at the pubic hearing and that
the foregoing, Pages 1 through 16 inclusive, 1is a
true, correct and complete computer-generated
transcript of the proceedings had at the time and
place aforesaid.

I further certify that my certificate annexed
hereto applies to the original transcript and
copies thereof, signed and certified under my
hand only. I assume no responsibility for the
accuracy of any reproduced copies not made under
my control or direction.

As certification thereof, I have hereunto set

my hand this 28th day of August, A.D., 2022.

Chrcictzne Wl itoak

Christine M. Vitosh, CSR
Illinois CSR No. 084-002883
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Memorandum

To: Planning and Zoning Commission
From: Krysti J. Barksdale-Noble, Community Development Director
CC: Bart Olson, City Administrator

Jason Engberg, Senior Planner
Date: September 12, 2022
Subject: PZC 2022-19 Restore Church — Windmill Farms
PUBLIC HEARING: Religious Institution Land Use Expansion

SUMMARY:

The petitioner, Jordan Gash, on behalf of Restore Church, Inc., is seeking rezoning approval of
three (3) parcels totaling approximately 33 acres located within the Windmill Farms development. The
previously approved Windmill Farms Annexation and Planned Unit Development Agreement permitted
certain land uses consistent with those found in the R-4 General Multi-Family Residence District and B-3
General Business zoning districts. The petitioner has utilized the existing one-story commercial structure
on one of the parcels as a religious institute. The requested new zoning of B-3 General Business District
would be consistent with the recently rezoned parcels to the west and remove the remnant Planned Unit
Development zoning established as part of the Windmill Farms agreement. Below is a map of the subject
property parcels and the overall boundary of the Windmill Farms PUD.

Restore Church Location Map

United City of Yorkville, lllinois
August 25, 2022




PROPERTY BACKGROUND:

As stated, the subject property was zoned within the Planned Unit Development (PUD) District
with B-3 General Business District and R-4 General Multi-Family Residence District land uses, as part of
the Windmill Farms’ annexation approved in 2008 per Ordinance 2008-40. Per Exhibit “E” of Ord. 2008-
40, the approximately 91-acre site, of which the subject parcels are included, was to be developed with a
mix of residential and commercial land uses. The annexation and concept site plan were the only approvals
granted for the Windmill Farms development. The subject property consists of the following three (3)
parcels:

PARCEL AREA LAND USE

05-03-300-029 27.5 acres Parking/Stormwater management/Undeveloped
05-03-300-031 0.5 acres Existing church structure

05-03-300-033 5.4 acres Undeveloped parcel

TOTAL AREA 33.4 acres

Per the City Attorney, since the Windmill Farms Planned Unit Development was never formalized
by final plat of subdivision, and with the passage of time, the approved concept plan for the development
is no longer valid. Therefore, concurrent with this rezoning request, a separate Annexation and PUD
agreement amendment has been requested that will invalidate the former PUD zoning classification and
removes the provisions of the concept plan from the subject property. This process is identical to the 2019
rezoning approval for the Hively Landscaping parcels and the Bricolage Wellness parcel, both also part of
the Windmill Farms PUD.

OWNERSHIP INFORMATION

PIN PROPERTY OWNER

05-03-300-036 KLER PROPERTIES LLC
05-03-300-035 KLER PROPERTIES LLC

05-03-300-016 KLER PROPERTIES LLC

05-03-300-037 KLER PROPERTIES LLC,
% TIMBRUMMERSTEDT

05-03-300-038 KLER PROPERTIESLLC,
% TIMBRUMMERSTEDT

05-03-300-006 KLER PROPERTIES LLC,
% TIMBRUMMERSTEDT

05-03-300-029 RESTORE CHURCH INC,DBA
OSWEGO FAMILY CHURCH INC

05-03-300-031 RESTORE CHURCH INC,DBA
OSWEGO FAMILY CHURCH INC

05-03-300-033 RESTORE CHURCH INC,DBA
OSWEGO FAMILY CHURCH INC

05-03-200-023 WALLIS, STEVEN J,
WEILAND, MARGARET

o
&
S
| )
&
<o
e
o
&
~

05-03-200-024 CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LLC
05-03-300-007 BW YORKVILLE HOLDINGS LLC
05-03-300-008 D'ARCY, TERRANCE

05-03-300-039 CAYCO ENTERPRISES LLC

Restore Church Ownership Map

United City of Yorkville, lllincis
August 25, 2022




SITE ANALYSIS:

The following map illustrates the current zoning and land uses of the entire 91-acre Windmill Farms
PUD, including the subject property parcels:

ZONING INFORMATION

& - B-3 General Business District
Q@&w ~ R-4 General Multi-Family Residence District
¥ y ﬁ A-1 Agricultural District
Fres o %a @g’ (Hively Landscaping, Ord 2016.23)
%D~ " 2 .

(Bricalage Wellnes, Ord. 2022-14)

@s\‘
2

Restore Church Zoning Map

United City of Yorkville, lllincis
April 25, 2022

Zoning

The proposed land use is considered a “large religious institution” as defined in the Zoning
Ordinance having 400 or more seats or larger than 8,000 square feet of total gross floor area and is outright
permitted within the requested B-3 General Business District zoning. The B-3 zoning is also consistent with
the underling zoning of the subject property established by the PUD, as the existing structure was formerly
used as a commercial office prior to being purchased by Restore Church, Inc. in 2017.

Further, the requested zoning is in keeping with the trend of development within the area immediately
surrounding the subject property since seventy-five percent (75%) of the properties are zoned B-3. The
most recent occurred earlier this year with the Bricolage Wellness rezoning for the parcel to the west on
Wing Road for a professional office use and, in 2019, when Hively Landscaping petitioned to have the
parcel directly north of that property rezoned from PUD to the B-3 General Business District for a
commercial landscaping and greenhouse business.

Comprehensive Plan (Future Land Use)

The subject property’s future land use is classified as “Estate/Conservation Residential (ERC)” which
is intended to provide flexibility for residential design in areas that can accommodate low-density detached
single-family housing but also include sensitive environmental and scenic features that should be retained
and enhanced. This land use category was implemented as a “holding” classification for those areas,
particularly on the outskirts or along the perimeter of the City’s corporate boundaries, that had an



entitlement plan approved but lacked the public infrastructure to support the development of the land within
the 10-year timeline of the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update.

As conditions change, reevaluation of this guiding document is necessary and anticipated. Therefore,
if the rezoning request is approved, an amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use map will
be required. This will provide a documentation of the change in the City’s approval of the development
conditions related to this property and align the proposed B-3 zoned parcel with a future land use
designation suitable for the professional services office land use, such as “Destination Commercial (DC)”.
The “Destination Commercial” future land use, as defined in the 2016 Comprehensive Plan Update, is
intended to accommodate mainly single-story in height and require deep setbacks and large parking areas,
such as large religious institutions.

Proposed Religious Institutional Use

Restore Church is a religious facility which provides in-person and media based (social media,
video and radio) ministry from their current building located at 8710 Route 71 in Yorkville. In 2018, Restore
Church renovated the existing approximately 6,800 square foot commercial storage structure for the current
church building for religious services and ancillary uses. At that time, there was an expansion of surface
parking, construction of a stormwater detention basin and site landscaping provided. As parishioners to the
church increased over the past few years, Restore Church has recently submitted plans for an approximately
10,000 square foot building expansion.

Restore Church Engineering Plan

United City of Yorkville, lllinois
August 26, 2022

The petitioner has stated they may seek future uses consistent with the B-3 General Business Zoning District
classification on the remaining undeveloped area of the subject parcels. Those future uses may or may not
require City Council review such as special uses, variances or final plat of subdivision approval.



Utilities
There are no nearby public utilities (water, sewer) in this area. The petitioner has been utilizing an
existing well and septic field for the on-site needs of the existing church. Per City Code, however, once

utilities are available within 250° of the subject property, they are required to connect to city water and
sewer.

Vehicular Access/Parking

The three (3) parcels are easily accessible via a right-in and right-out access point off of the newly
widened and reconstructed IL Route 71 (Stagecoach Trail) and full access off of Wing Road. Access is also
available to IL Route 126 9Schoolhouse Road) via Wing Road. Traffic layout seems to allow the flow of
vehicles from the west on IL 71 to turn southbound on Wing Road and then westward to an internal private
drive lane servicing the church. Vehicles traveling east on IL 71 can turn south onto the private drive lane
into the church’s property. Adequate parking is provided on the subject parcels for the existing religious
land use and planned 10,000 square foot church expansion. Furthermore, area for parking lot expansion is
also available for future land uses.

FINDINGS OF FACT FOR REZONING:

Section 10-4-10-B of the City’s Zoning Ordinance establishes criteria for findings of fact related
to rezoning (map amendment) requests. When the purpose and affect is to change the zoning of a property
and amend the City’s Zoning Map, the Planning and Zoning Commission shall consider each of the
following facts before rendering a decision on the request:

1. The existing uses and zoning of nearby property.
The extent to which the property values are diminished by the particular zoning restrictions.

3. The extent to which the destruction of the property values of plaintiff promotes the health, safety,
morals or general welfare of the public.

4. The relative gain to the public as compared to the hardship imposed upon the individual property
owner.

5. The suitability of the subject property for the zoned purpose.

6. The length of time the property has been vacant as zoned considered in the context of land
development in the area in the vicinity of the subject property.
The community need for the proposed use.

8. The care to which the community has undertaken to plan its land use development.

The petitioner has provided written responses to these findings as part of their application (see
attached) and requests inclusion of those responses into the public record at the October 12, 2022
Planning and Zoning Commission meeting.

STAFF COMMENTS:

Staff is supportive of the proposed rezoning; even though, if approved, would require an
amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Update. Our recommendation is in consideration of the length of
time the area has remained undeveloped under the current concept plan and zoning. This is in addition to
the existing annexation agreement not correctly approving a special use authorizing a PUD for the Windmill
Farm development and the recent rezoning of the adjacent parcel for the same requested B-3 zoning.

PROPOSED MOTION:

In consideration of testimony presented during a Public Hearing on October 12, 2022 and approval of
the findings of fact, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval to the City Council of
a request for a map amendment to rezone the following parcels: 05-03-300-029; 05-03-300-031; and 05-



03-300-033 from Planned Unit Development (PUD) to B-3 General Business District and further subject
to {insert any additional conditions of the Planning and Zoning Commission; ...

ATTACHMENTS:

1. Petitioner Rezoning Application
2. Ordinance 2008-40 - Windmill Farms Annexation and PUD Agreement
3. Public Hearing Notice



Units Gy Vorol APPLICATION FOR |

Yorkville, lllinois, 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350 R E Zo N l N G
Fax; 630-553-7575

Website: www.yorkville.ilus

DATE 0 |iCNuMBER | DEVELOPMENTNAME
PETITIONER INFORMATION | | |
NAME: JORDAN GASH (OMPANY: RESTORE CHURGH

MAILING ADDRESS: 8710 STATE ROUTE 71

CITY, STATE, 21p: YORKVILLE, IL 80560 TELEPHONE: O BUSINESS OHOME 630-450-4679
EMAIL: jordan@restorechurchyorkville.com FAX:
PROPERTY INFORMATION

NAME OF HOLDER OF LEGALTITLE: Old Second National Bank
IF LEGALTITLE |S HELD BY A LAND TRUST, LISTTHE NAMES OF ALL HOLDERS OF ANY BENEFICIAL INTEREST THEREIN:

PROPERTY STREET ADDRESS: 8710 Route 71, Yorkville, IL 60560

DESCRIPTION GF PROPERTY'S PHYSICAL LOCATION:
Property just east of the Route 71 and Route 126 intersection, on the northeast corner of Wing Road and State Route
71.

CURRENT ZONING CLASSIFICATION: PUD with underlying R-4, B-3 REQUESTED ZONING CLASSIFICATION: B-3

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUTURE LAND USE DESIGNATION: Commercial TOTAL ACREAGE: 34

ZONING AND LAND USE OF SURROUNDING PROPERTIES

NORTH: A-1

EAST R-4,B-3

SOUTH: B-3

WESE: B-3

KENDALL COUNTY PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER(S)

05-03-300-029
05-03-300-031

05-03-300-033




300 Game Fom oo APPLICATION FOR

Yorkvilie, Hlinois, 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350 R E Z o N I N G
Fax: 630-553-7575

Website: www.yorkvitie.ilus

ATI'OR“‘! INFORMATION

NAME: John Philipchuck COMPANY: Cobine West Gensler Philipchuck & Corrigan, Ltd.

MAILING ADDRESS: 111 East Jefferson Avenue

(ITY, STATE, ZIP: Naperville, il. 60540 TELEPHONE; (630} 355-5800
EMAIL JFP@dbcw.com FAX:

ENGINEER INFORMATIOH:

NAME: Jason Wiesbrock COMPANY:SpaceCo

MAILING ADDRESS: 22472 N. Liberty St.

CITY, STATE, Zip:Morris, IL. 60450 TELEPHONE; 815-941-0260

EMAIL; iwiesbrock@spacecoinc.com FAX:

LAND PLANNER/SURVEYOR INFORMATION

NAME: Alberto Agama COMPANY:Agama Designs

MAILING ADDRESS: 664 W Veterans Pkwy Suite A

Ty, STATE, ZiP: Yorkville, IL 60560 TELEPHONE: {630} 385-2945
EMAIL: alberto@agamadesigns.com FAX:
ATTACHMENTS

Petitioner must attach a legal description of the property to this application and title it as“Exhibit A"

Petitioner must ist the names and addresses of any adjoining or contigeous landowners within five hundred (500) feet of the property that are entitled notice
of application under any applicable City Ordinance or State Statute. Attach a separate list to this application and title it as “Exhibit B,




United City of Yorkville APPLICATION FOR

800 Game Farm Road

Yorkville, lliinois, 60560

Telephone: 630-553-4350 R E Z 0 N I N G
Fax: 630-553-7575

Website: www.yorkville.il.us

REZONING STANDARDS |
PLEASE STATE THE EXISTING ZONING CLASSIFICATIONES) AND USES OF THE PROPERTY WITHIN THE GENERAL AREA OF THE PROPOSED RFZONED PROPERTY:
The 3 parcels under consideration were a part of a commercial Planned Unit Development. The surrounding properties

are also B-3 commercial or A-1 agricultural.

PLEASE STATETHETREND OF DEVELOPMENT, IF ANY, INTHE GENERAL AREA OF THE PROPERTY IN QUESTION, INCLUDING CHANGES, tF ANY, WHICH HAVETAKEN PLACE SINCE

THE DAY THE PROPERTY IN QUESTION WAS PLACED IN ITS PRESENT ZONING CLASSIFICATION:
The property in guestion was used as a commercial property {The Kendall General Store) and was later purchased by a
developer and then became a part of a 2008 PUD. The property was purchased by Restore Church in 217 and has

been redeveloped.

PLEASE STATETHE EXTENT TO WHICH PROPERTY VALUES ARE DIMINISHED BY THE PARTICULAR ZONING RESTRICTIONS:

Upon leaving the PUD through the City's amendment process, zoning reclassification/designation is needed. B-3 zoning,
without the obsolete PUD restrictions, would give the property along State Route 71 maximum value for any potential

future development.

PLEASE STATETHE EXTENT TO WHICH THE DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY VALUES OF PETITIONER PROMOTES THE HEALTH, SAFETY, MORALS, AND GENERAL WELFARE OF THE

PUBLIC:
Destruction of the property's value in no way promotes the health, safety, morals, and general welfare of the public.




United City of Yorkville
300 Game Farm Road APPLICATION FOR
Yorkville, [llinois, 60560

Telephone: 630-553-4350 R E Z 0 N ' N G
Fax: 630-553-7575

Website: www.yorkville.ilus

REZONING STANDARDS o
PLEASE STATE THE LENGTH OF TIME THE PROPERTY HAS BEEN VACANT AS ZONED CONSIDERED IN THE CONTEXT OF LAND DEVELOPMENT IN THE AREA IN THE VICINITY OF

THE SUBJECT PROPERTY:
Prior to Restore Church purchasing the property, the building on site sat empty for over 10 years and the property was

unused and large portions were completely overgrown.

PLEASE STATE THE COMMUNITY NEED FOR THE PROPOSED LAND USE:
The City of Yorkville has continued to grow and develop. The B-3 zoning would preserve the property's potential

commercial use with over 700 feet of State Route 71 frontage.

WETH RESPECT TO THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, PLEASE STATE THE CARE WITH WHICH THE COMMUNITY HAS UNDERTAKEN TO PLAN TS LAND USE DEVELOPMENT:
In 2008, the City agreed to a commercial Planned Unit Development. Upon the amendment of the PUD, the subject
property can be zoned B-3 without the limitations of the PUD.

PLEASE STATETHE IMPACT THAT SUCH RECLASSIFICATIONWILL HAVE UPONTRAEFICAND TRAFFIC CONDITIONS ON SAID ROUTES; THE EFFECT, IF ANY, SUCH RECLASSIFICATION
AND/OR ANNEXATION WOULD HAVE UPON EXISTING ACCESSES TO SAID ROUTES; AND THE IMPACT OF ADDITIONAL ACCESSES AS REGUESTED BY THE PETITIONER LIPON
TRAFFIC AND TRAFFIC CONDITICNS AND FLOW ON SAID ROUTES {ORD., 1976-43, 11-4-1976):

The property has been in use since Aprit of 2019 and there have been no issues with traffic conditions. The road
widening of State Route 71 completed in 2021 has also improved access and traffic conditions.




United City of Yorkville

800 Game Farm Road APPLICATION FOR
Yorkvilie, iilinois, 60560

Telephone: 630-553-4350 R E Zo N I N G
Fax: 630-553-7575

Website: www.yorkville.il.us

REiOHIHG STANDARDS

PLEASE STATETHE RELATIVE GAIN TO THE PUBLIC AS COMPARED TO THE HARDSHIP IMPOSED UPON THE INDIVIDUAL PROPERTY OWNER:
Upon repeal of the PUD, the parcels under consideration have to be reclassified. B-3 Zoning would give the property
along State Route 71 the most development options which could potentially be a benefit to the City and community.

PLEASE STATE THE SUITABILITY OF THE SUBJECT PROPERTY FOR THE ZONED PURPOSES:
The property has been used for commercial purposes in the past and borders other commercial B-3 properties.

AGREEMENI'

FVERIFY THAT ALL THE INFORMATION IN THIS APPLICATION 1S TRUE TG THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE. | UNDERSTAND AND ACCEPT ALL REQUIREMENTS AND FEES AS
OUTLINED ASWELL AS ANY INCURRED ADMINISTRATIVE AND PLANKING CONSULTANT FEES WHICH MUST BE CURRENT BEFORE THIS PROJECT CAN PROCEED TO THE NEXT
SCHEDULED COMMITTEE MEETING.

FUNDERSTAND ALL GFTHE INFORMATION PRESENTED INTHIS DOCUMENT AND UNDERSTAND THAT IF AN APPLICATION BECOMES DORMANT IT (S THROUGH MY OWN FAULY
AND | MUST THEREFORE FOLLOW THE REQUIREMENTS QUTLINED ABGVE.

/W%\ 715/2022

FETTIONER SIGNATURE" DATE

OWNERHEREBY AUTH PPROPRIATE ENTITLEMENTS ONTHE PROPERTY.

715/2022
C—OWNER SIGNATURE ./ DATE

~Official Seal”
m ﬂzz/(_,_\ GINA M NELSON
THIS APPLICATION MUST BE Notary Public. State of Hiinois

NOTARIZED PLEASE NOTARIZE H My Commission Fxpires (14/22/2026 _




United City of Yorkville APPLICANT DEPOSIT ACCOUNT/

800 Game Farm Road

Yorkvill, linois, 60560 ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF FINANCIAL

Telephona; 630-553-4350

Fax: 630-553-7575 RESPONSIBILITY

Website: www.yorkville.ilus

PROECTNUMBER: =~ .~ |FUNDACCOUNT ~ . - © . | PROPERTY ADDRESS: 8710 Route 71, Yorkville, IL 60560

PETITIONER DEPOSIT ACCOUNT FUND:

Itis the policy of the United City of Yorkville to require any petitioner seeking appraval on a project or entitlement request to establish a Petitioner Deposit Account Fund
to cover alf actual expenses occurred as a result of processing such applications and requests. Typical requests requiring the establishment of a Petitioner Deposit Account
Fund include, but are not limited to, plan review of development approvals/engineering pemits. Deposit account funds may also be used to cover costs for services related
to legal fees, engineering and other plan reviews, processing of other governmental applications, recording fees and other outside coordination and consulting fees. Each
fund account is established with an initial depasit based upon the estimated cost for services provided in the INVOICE & WORKSHEET PETITION APPLICATION. This initial
deposit is drawn against to pay for these services related to the project or request. Periodically throughout the project review/approval process, the Financlally Responsible
Party witl receive an invoice reflecting the charges made against the account. At any time the balance of the fund account fall below ten percent (10%) of the original deposit
amount, the Financlally Responsible Party will receive an invoice requesting additional funds equal to one-hundred percent {100%) of the initial depasit if subsequent
reviews/fees related to the project are required. In the event that a deposit account Is not immediately replenished, review by the administrative staff, consultants, boards and
commissions may be suspended untit the account is fully replenished. i additional funds remain in the deposit account at the completion of the project, the city will refind
the balance to the Financially Responsible Party. A written request must be submitted by the Financiaily Responstble Party to the city by the 15th of the month in order for
the refund check to he processed and distributed by the 15th of the following month. All refund checks will be made payable to the Financially Responsible Party and mailed
to the address provided when the account was established.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

xaug. JORDAN GASH company: RESTORE CHURCH

MAILING ADDRESS: 87 10 STATE ROUTE 71
EmaiL [ordan @restorechurchyorkvilie.com FAX:

FINANCIALLY RESPONSIBLE PARTY:

I'acknowledge and understand that as the Financiaily Responsible Party, expenses may exceed the estimated initial deposit and, when requested by the United Gty of
Yorkville, { will provide additional funds to maintain the required account balance. Further, the sale or other disposition of the property does not relleve the individual or
Company/Corporation of their obligation to maintain a positive balance in the fund account, unless the United City of Yorkville approves a Change of Responsible Party and
transfer of funds. Should the account go into deficit, all City work may stop until the requested replenishment deposit Is received.

JORDAN GASH President

PRINT NAME TITLE
// 7i15/2022

SIGNATU DATE

*The name of the individual and the person who signs this declaration must be the same. If a corporation Is fisted, @ corporate officer must sign the declaration (President, Vice-
President, Chairman, Secretary or Treasurer)

INTTIAL ENGINEERINGILEGAI. DEPOSIT TOTALS

ENGINEERING DEPOSITS: - T LEGALDEROSITS:

Uptoone(lace - -~ - 85000 ¢ o lessthantwo{dacres. v S 81,000 _
‘Over one (1) acre, ut!essthanten(?ﬂ]acres L 0810,000 0 - Overtwo (2) aces, butlessthanten{m)acres S 82806
Over ten (10} acres, but less than forty (40) acres Cooo 815000 0 Overten(w)acres S o T $5,000
Overforty(w)acres,hutlessthanunehundred{wm _--._._520000 S L S P '

Inexcess afone hundred (10000)acres - 525,000




Exhibit A

PARCEL 1: 05-03-300-029

Legal Description

2760 AC TR LYG PT SW % & PT NW 14 SEC 3-36-7 (EXC PT DESCRBD AS “EXC"
PER DOC 17-16528, PG 5) CITY OF YORKVILLLE

"THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST, NORTHWEST ANO SOUTHWEST QUARTERS
OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST
CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4;, THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREE 10 MINUTES 48
SECONDS WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 1284.36
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 680.30
FEET; THENCE NORTH 09 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 27 SECONDS WEST 10.0 FEET
FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 09 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 27
SECONDS WEST 579.53 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF A TRACT OF
LANO CONVEYED TO ELSIE BOYD BY A DEED DATED MARCH 26, 1929 AND
RECORDED DECEMBER 14, 1938 IN DEED RECORD BOOK 88 ON PAGE 399;
THENCE NORTH 09 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 24 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE
EAST LINE OF SAID BOYD TRACT 748.57 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF
ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE NO. 71; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID
CENTER LINE, BEING ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF
11,459.20 FEET ANO A RADIAL BEARING OF NORTH 26 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 16
SECONDS WEST AT THE LAST DESCRIBED POINT 627.46 FEET; THENCE NORTH
60 DEGREES 02 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE 332.0
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST 264.0
FEET, THENCE SOUTH 84 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST 202.0
FEET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST 423.02
FEET TO SAID CENTER LINE; THENCE NORTH 60 DEGREES 02 MINUTES 30
SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE 472.58 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN
NORTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 48 SECONDS EAST PARALLEL WITH THE
WEST LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4, FROM A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF
SAID NORTHEAST 1/4 WHICH IS 598.62 FEET EASTEAL Y OF THE SOUTHWEST
CORNEA OF SAID NORTHEAST 1/4; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES
48 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE 880.56 FEET TO SAID SOUTH
LINE; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST ALONG
SAID SOUTH LINE 598.62 FEET TO SAID SOUTHWEST CORNER; THENCE SOUTH
00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID EAST LINE 1275.36
FEET TO A LINE DRAWN SOUTH 89 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 33 SECONDS EAST
FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 33
SECONDS WEST 681.94 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING IN KENDALL
TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS (EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PART
IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN)



PARCEL 2: 05-03-300-031

Legal Description

49 AC TR LYG SW 14 SEC 3-36-7 (EXC PT DESCRBD AS “EXC” PER DOC 17-
16528, PG 5) CITY OF YORKVILLE

THAT PART OF THE WEST 1/2 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
COMMENCING AT THE CENTER OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE SOUTH 00
DEGREES 14 MINUTES 45 SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 3, 1284.36 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89
DEGREES 50 MINUTES 00 DEGREES WEST, 684.42 FEET; THENCE NORTH 09
DEGREES 30 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST, 592.27 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 57
DEGREES 33 MINUTES 55 SECONDS WEST, 327.57 FEET TO THE EASTERLY
LINE OF WING ROAD; THENCE NORTH 21 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 29 SECONDS
WEST, ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE, 705.85 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-
OF-WAY LINE OF iLLINOIS ROUTE 71 FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE
SOUTH 21 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 29 SECONDS EAST, ALONG SAID EASTERLY
LINE, 119.0 FEET, THENCE NORTH 68 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 31 SECONDS
EAST, PERPENDICULAR TO SAID EASTERLY LINE, 211.0 FEET; THENCE NORTH
21 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST PARALLEL WITH SAID EASTERLY
LINE, 131.87 FEET TO SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ILLINOIS
ROUTE 71; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE, BEING A CURVE TO THE RIGHT WITH A RADIUS OF 11509.16 FEET,
AN ARC DISTANCE OF 211.36 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING IN KENDALL
TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS



PARCEL 3: 05-03-300-033

Legal Description

5.40 AC TR LYG SW % SEC 3-36-7 (EXC PT DESCRBD AS “EXC" PER DOC 17-
16528, PG 5) CITY OF YORKVILLE

THAT PART OF THE WEST 1/2 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
COMMENCING AT THE CENTER OF SAID SECTION 3, THENCE SOUTH 00
DEGREES 14 MINUTES 45 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE
SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 3, 1284.36 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89
DEGREES 50 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST, 684.42 FEET; THENCE NORTH 09
DEGREES 30 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST, 592.27 FEET FOR THE POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 57 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 55 SECONDS WEST,
327.57 FEET TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF WING ROAD; THENCE NORTH 21
DEGREES 52 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE,
586.85 FEET TO A POINT ON SAID EASTERLY LINE WHICH IS 119.0 FEET
(MEASURED ALLONG SAID EASTERLY LINE) SOUTHEASTERLY OF THE
SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 71; THENCE NORTH 68
DEGREES 07 MINUTES 31 SECONDS EAST, PERPENDICULAR TO SAID
EASTERLY LINE 211 .0 FEET; THENCE NORTH 21 DEGREES 62 MINUTES 29
SECONDS WEST, PARALLEL WITH SAID EASTERLY LINE, 131.87 FEET TO SAID
SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 71, THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE BEING A
CURVE TO THE LEFT WITH A RADIUS OF 11509.16 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF
261.03 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN NORTH 09 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 00 SECONDS
WEST FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 0% DEGREES 30
MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID LINE 695.72 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

(Loss and except from Above Parcels 1, 2 & 3 part of the Southwest Quarter and part of
the Northwest Quarter of Section 3, Township 36 North, Range 7 East of the Third
Principal Meridian, described as follows with bearings and distances based upon the
lllinois State Plane Coordinate System, (Grid) East Zone ( NAD-83, 2007 adj.):
Commencing at the southwest corner of said Section 3; thence North 01 degree 35
minutes 30 seconds West 1995.04 feet along the west line of said southwest quarter
section to the centerline of lllinois Route 71; thence North 69 degrees 55 minutes 19
seconds East 262.19 feet along said centeriine to the point of curvature of a 11,479.05
foot radius curve to the Jett: thence northeasterly 1163.11 feet along said curve whose
chord bears North 67 degrees 01 minutes 09 seconds East 1162.62 feet; thence South
25 degrees 53 minutes 00 seconds East 50.00 feet to the Point of Beginning on the
southeasterly right of way line of lllinois Route 71; thence northeasterly 1118.45 feet
along said southeasterly right of way line along a 11,529.02 foot radius curve to the left
whose chord bears North 61 degrees 20 minutes 15 seconds East 1116.01 feet: thence
North 58 degrees 33 minutes 29 seconds East 316.42 feet along said right of way line
to the west line of propenty described In document number 201300024064; thence
South 13 degrees 56 minutes 03 seconds East 15. 73 feet along said west line; thence



South 58 degrees 33 minutes 29 seconds West 65.67 feet; thence South 56 degrees 13
minutes 50 seconds West 246.22 feet to a non-tangential curve to the right; thence
southwesterly 656.26 feet along a 11,554.05 foot radius curve to the right whose chord
bears South 60 degrees 11 minutes 25 seconds West 658.17 feet; thence South 50
degrees 42 minutes 49 seconds Weal 51.33 feet; thence southwesterly 75.56 feet along
0 11,564.05 loot radius curve to the right whose chord bears South 62 degrees 15
minutes 33 seconds West 75.56 feet; thence South 73 degrees 52 minutes 10 seconds
West 76.98 feet; thence southwesterly 226.37 feet along a 11,549.05 foot radius' curve
to the right whose chord bears South 63 degrees 22 minutes 56 seconds West 226.37
feet; thence South 15 degrees 56 minutes 14 seconds West 40.32 feet; thence South
23 degrees 05 minutes 13 seconds East 100.12 feet; thence South 10 degrees 56
minutes 42 seconds East 51.74 feet to the easterly right of way line of Wing Road;
thence North 22 degrees 56 minutes 26 seconds West 200.26 feet along said right of
way line to the Point of Beginning.)
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Exhibit B

05-03-200-023
OWNER: WALLIS, STEVEN J, WEILAND, MARGARET
OWNER ADDRESS: 8614 RTE 71
YORKVILLE, IL 60560
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 8614 RTE 71
YORKVILLE, 1L 60560

05-03-200-024
OWNER: CLASSIC INVESTMENTS LLC
OWNER ADDRESS: 640 B RANCE RD

OSWEGO, IL 60543

05-03-300-006
OWNER: KLER PROPERTIES L1.C, % TIM BRUMMERSTEDT
OWNER ADDRESS: 10061 LEGION RD
YORKVILLE, IL 60560
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 8730 ROUTE 126
YORKVILLE, IL 60560

05-03-300-007
OWNER: BIG SKY MANAGEMENT LLC
OWNER ADDRESS: PO BOX 565
SUGAR GROVE, IL 60554
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 8721 ROUTE 126
YORKVILLE, IL 60560

05-03-300-008
OWNER: D’ARCY, TERRANCE
OWNER ADDRESS: 2022 ESSINGTON RD
JOLIET, IL 60435
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 6610 WING RD
YORKVILLE, IL 60560

05-03-300-016
OWNER: KLER PROPERTIES LLC, % TIM BRUMMERSTEDT
OWNER ADDRESS: 10061 LEGION RD
YORKVILLE, IL 60560
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 8720A ROUTE 126
YORKVILLE, IL 60560

05-03-300-029
OWNER: RESTORE CHURCH INC
OWNER ADDRESS: 8710 RTE 71
YORKVILLE, IL 60560
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 8710RTE 71
YORKVILLE, IL 60560



05-03-300-031
OWNER: RESTORE CHURCH INC
OWNER ADDRESS: 8710 RTE 71
YORKVILLE, IL 60560
PROPERTY ADDRESS:  8710RTE 71
YORKVILLE, IL 60560

05-03-300-033
OWNER: RESTORE CHURCH INC
OWNER ADDRESS: 8710 RTE 71
YORKVILLE, IL 60560
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 8710 RTE 71
YORKVILLE, IL 60560

05-03-300-034
OWNER: SCOTT & BETH LIMBERG
OWNER ADDRESS: 1627 N 17TH RD
STREATOR, IL 61364
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 1625 WING RD
YORKVILLE, IL 60560

05-03-300-035

OWNER: KLER PROPERTIES LLC

OWNER ADDRESS: 31 W 325 SCHOGER DR
NAPERVILLE, II. 60564

05-03-300-036

OWNER: KLER PROPERTIES LI.C

OWNER ADDRESS: 31 W 325 SCHOGER DR
NAPERVILLE, IL 60564

05-03-300-037
OWNER: KLER PROPERTIES LLC, % TIM BRUMMERSTEDT
OWNER ADDRESS: 10061 LEGION RD :
YORKVILLE, IL 60560
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 8996 A STAGECOACH TRL
YORKVILLE, 1. 60560

05-03-300-038
OWNER: KLER PROPERTIES LLC, % TIM BRUMMERSTEDT
OWNER ADDRESS: 10061 LEGION RD
YORKVILLE, IL 60560
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 8996 B STAGECQACH TRL
YORKVILLE, IL 60560

05-03-300-039

OWNER: CAYCO ENTERPRISES LLC

OWNER ADDRESS: 34 COUNTRYVIEW DR
YORKVILLE, TL, 60560



STATE OF ILLINOIS )
) ss.

COUNTY OF KENDALL )

Ordinance No. 2008- YO

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION OF AN ANNEXATION
AND
PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
(Windmill Farms)

WHEREAS, it is prudent and in the best interest of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall
County, Illinois, to enter into a certain Annexation and Planned Unit Development Agreement
pertaining to the annexation of real estate described on Exhibit A attached thereto and made a
part hereof; and,

WHEREAS, said Annexation and Planned Unit Development Agreement has been
reviewed, discussed and considered by the City Council; and,

WHEREAS, the legal owners of record of the territory which is the subject of said
Agreement are ready, willing and able to enter into said Agreement and to perform the
obligations as required hereunder; and,

WHEREAS, the statutory procedures as set forth in 65 ILCS 5/11-15.1-1, pertaining to
the approval and execution of annexation and planned unit development agreement have been
fully satisfied; and,

WHEREAS, the property is contiguous to the existing boundaries of the City.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the

United City of Yorkville that the City Code of the City of Yorkville be amended as follows:



Section I. The Mayor and City Council hereby approve the Annexation and Planned
Unit Development Agreement a copy of which is attached to this Ordinance (the “Annexation
and Planned Unit Development Agreement”), pertaining to the real estate 1egaliy described on
Exhibit A also attached hereto.

Section 2. The Mayor and City Clerk are herewith authorized and directed to execute, on
behalf of the City, said Annexation and Planned Unit Development Agreement and the Clerk is
further directed to file said Annexation and Planned Unit Development Agreement with the
Kendall County Recorder’s Office.

Section 3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect immediately from and after its
passage and approval according to law,

Passed by the City Council of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois, this

=N\ day of NME , A.D. 2008.

% § City Clerk

ROBYN SUTCLIFF N JOSEPH BESCO

ARDEN JOE PLOCHER £ WALLY WERDERICH L
GARY GOLINSKI O MARTY MUNNS A
ROSE SPEARS ) ;



APPROVED by me, as Mayor of the United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, Illinois,

this 27 dayof Maj{ , A.D. 2008.

/ //L%//l/(ﬂ‘/ \%/MAQ _

Mayor




EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIFTION

THAT PART OF THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE CENTER OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE SOUTH 00 L4'45” EAST, ALONG THE
EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 3, L284 36 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 89°50°00” WEST, 684.42 FEET
THENCE NORTH 09°30°00” WEST, 592.27 FEET; THENCE BOUTH 57°33’55” WEST, 327.57 FEET TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF WING
ROAD; THENCE NORTH 21°52°29™ WEST, ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE, 705.85 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY
LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 71 FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 21°52°29™ EAST, ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE,
£19.0, FEET; THENCE NORTH 68°07°31" EAST, PERPENDICULAR TO SAID EASTERLY LINE, 21 1.0 FEET; THENCE NORTH 2]

©52 26" WEST, PARALLEL WITH SAID EASTERLY LINE, 131.87 FEET TO SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ILLINCIS
ROUTE 71: THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, BEING A CURVE TO THE RIGHT
WITH A RADIUS OF 11509.16 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 211 39 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING IN KENDALL
TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS AND CONTADNING 0.6060 ACRE.

THAT PART OF THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE CENTER OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE SOUTH 00°/4'45 " EAST, ALONG THE
EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 3, 1284 36 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 89°50'00" WEST, 684 42 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 09°30°00" WEST, 592,27 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 57°33 '35 " WEST, 32757 FEET
TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF WING ROAD; THENCE NORTH 21°52'29” WEST, ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE, 586.85 FEET TO A
POINT ON SAID EASTERLY LINE WHICH IS 119.0 FEET (MEASURED ALONG SATD EASTERLY LINE) SOUTHEASTERLY OF THE
SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 71; THENCE NORTH 68°07°317 EAST, PERPENDICULAR TO SAID
EASTERLY LINE, 211.0 FEET; THENCE NORTH 21°52°28" WEST, PARALLEL WITH SAID EASTERLY LINE, 131.87 FEET TO SAID
SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OE-WAY LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 71; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-CF-
WAY LINE, BEING A CURVE TO THE LEFT WITH A RADIUS OF 11509.16 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 261.03 FEET TO A LINE
DRAWN NORTH 09°30°00” WEST FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 09°30°00" EAST, ALONG SAID LINE, 695.72
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS AND CONTAINING 5.6041 ACRES.

THAT PART OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD FRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 3;
THENCE SGUTH 0 DEGREES, 07 MINUTES, 44 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4, 1284.36 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 29 DEGREES, 47 MINUTES, 31 SECONDS WEST, 634.42 FEET; THENCE NORTH 09 DEGREES, 32 MINUTES, 39
SECONDS WEST, 590.03 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF A TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO ELSIE BOYD BY A DEED
DATED MATCH 25, 1929 AND RECORDED DECEMBER 14, 1938 IN DEED RECORD BOOK 88 ON PAGE 399; THENCE NORTH 09
DEGREES, 05 MINUTES, 46 SECONDS WEST, 748.40 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE TIC. 71; THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, BEING ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 11,459.20 FEET
AND A RADIAL BEARING OF NORTH 26 DEGREES, 50 MINUTES, 30 SECONDS WEST AT THE LAST DESCRIBED POINT. 627.46;
THENCE NORTH 60 DEGREES, 02 MINUTES, 30 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, 332.0 FEET FOR A POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 12 DEGREES, 27 MINUTES, 30 SECONDS EAST, 264.0 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 84 DEGREES, 27
MINUTES, 30 SECONDS EAST, 202.0 FEET: THENCE NORTH 0 DEGREES, 47MINUTES, 30 SECONDS WEST, 423.02 FEET TO SAID
CENTER LINE: THENCE SOUTH 60 DEGREES, (2 MINUTES, 30 SECONDS WEST ALONG CENTER LINE, 251.76 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE TOWNSHIP OF KENDALL, KENDALL COUNTY, LLINOIS.

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST, NORTHWEST AND SOUTHWEST QUARTERS OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE7
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER
OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF
SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1284.36 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 25 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 680.30 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 09 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 27 SECONDS WEST 10.0 FEET FOR A POINT CF

BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 09 DEGREES. 33 MINUTES 27 SECONDS WEST 579.63 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF A
RACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO ELSIE BOYD EY A DEED DATED MARCH 25, 1928 AND RECORDED DECEMBER 14, 1938 IN
DEED RECORD EOOK 88 ON PAGE 39%; THENCE NORTH 09 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 24 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE
OF SAID BOYD TRACT 744.57 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE NO. 71; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY
ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, BEING ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A

RADIUS OF 11, 459.20 FEET AND A RADIAL REARING OF NORTH 26 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 16 SECONDS WEST AT THE LAST
DESCRIBED POINT 62746 FEET; THENCE NORTH 60 DEGREES (2 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAIL) CENTER LINE
3320 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST 264.0 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 84 DEGREES 27
MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST 202.0 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST 423.02 FEET TO SAID
CENTER LINE: THENCE NORTH 60 DEGREES 02 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE 412.6% FEET TO A
TINE DRAWN NORTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST PARALLEL WITH TILE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST
QUARTER, FROM A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER WHICH 15 598.62 FEET EASTERLY OF THE
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SATD NORTHEAST QUARTER: THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST ALONG
SATD PARALLEL LINE 880.56 FEET TO SAID SOUTH LINE; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST
ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE 598 .62 FEET TO SAID SOUTHWEST CORNER; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 48
SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID EAST LINE 1275.36 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN SOUTH 89 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 33 SECONDS
EAST FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 8% DEGREES 40 MINUTES 33 SECONDS WEST 681.94 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:



COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE NORTH 0 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 09
SECONDS WEST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SATD SOUTHWEST 1/4, 798.60 FEET TO AN OLD CLAIM LINE; THENCE NORTH 57
DEGREES 52 MINUTES 05 SECONDS EAST ALONG SATD OLD CLATM LINE 293 .00 FEET FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE
SOUTH 1 DEGREE 51 MINUTES 32 SECONDS WEST, 402.10 FEET; THENCE SQUTH 59 DEGREES 55 MINUTES., 25 SECONDS
EAST, 256.51 FEET; THENCE NORTH 59 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 25 SECONDS EAST355.65 FEET; THENCE NORTH 62 DEGREES 43
MDNUTES 29 SECONDS EAST, 853.57 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 33 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 40 SECONDS EAST,. 542 27 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF [T LINOIS STATE ROUTE
NUMBER 126; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, BEING ALONG A CURVE TOQ THE LEFT HAVING A
RADIUS OF 2292 01 FEET AND A RADIAYL BEARING OF SOUTH 29 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST AT THE LAST
DESCRIBED POINT, 35841 FEET TO A POINT WHICH IS 151.00 FEET, AS MEASURED ATONG SAID CENTER LINE,
SOUTHEASTERLY OF THE INTERSECTION OF SAID CENTER LINE AND SAID OLD CLAIM LINE; THENCE SOUTH 45 DEGREES
05 MINUTES 49 SECONDS WEST, 265 .70 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 73 DEGREES 54 MINUTES 28 SECONDS WEST, 102.86 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH %¢ DEGEEES 11 MINUTES 54 SECONDS WEST, 280.96 FEET; THENCE NORTH 32 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 55
SECONDS WEST, 24.19 FEET TO SAID OLD CLATM LIRE; THENCE SOUTH 87 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 05 SECONDS WEST ALONG
SAID OLD CLAIM LINE 78992 FEET TO THE POINT OP BEGINNING IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

A PERPETUAL EASEMENT FOR THE OPERATION, MAINTENANCE AND USE OF A SEPTIC FIELD FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL
ONE HEREINABOVE DESCRIBED, UNDER AND UPCN THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCEL OF REAL ESTATE CONTIGUOUS
TO PARCEL ONE TO WIT:

COMMENCING AT THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF PARCEL ONE HEREINABOVE DESCRIBED ON THE CENTER LINE OF
ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE NUMBER 126; THENCE SOUTH 45 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 9 SECONDS WEST, 47.12 FEET TO THE
SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE NUMBER 126, FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE
CONTINUING SOUTH 45 DEGREES (05 MINUTES 49 SECONDS WEST, 105.0 FEET; THENCE NORTH 32 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 38
SBCONDS WEST, 152.18 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 76 DEGREES 09 MINUTES 49 SECONDS EAST, 528 PEEP; THENCE SOUTH 70
DEGREES 39 MINUTES #9 SECONDS EAST, 158.65 FEET, TO THE POINT OP BEGINNING IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP, ALL IN
KENDALL COUNTY ILLINOIS.

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE
NORTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4, 758.60 FEET TO AN OLD CLAIM LINE; THENCE NORTHERLY
ALONG SAD WEST LINE, 111827 FEET A POINT OF BEGINNING THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE WHICH FORMS AN
ANGLE OF 28 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 54 SECONDS WITH THE LAST DESCRIBED

COURSE, MEASURED COUNTERCLOCKWISE THEREFROM, 228.53 FEET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE WHICH
FORMS AN ANGLE OF 178 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 35 SECONDS WITH THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE, MEASURED
COUNTERCLOCKWISE THEREFROM, 112.67 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN PARALLEL WITH AND 160.0 FEET NORMALLY DISTANT,
BASTERLY OF SAID WEST LINE; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAIL) PARALLFEL 1INE, 71744 FEET TO SAID CLATM LINE;
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAD CLATM LINE, 941.92 FEET TO A POINT ON A LINE DRAWN SOUTHWESTERLY,
PERPENDICULAR TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINGIS STATE ROUTE NO. 126 FROM A POINT ON SAID CENTER LINE WHICH IS
104970 FEET, AS MEASURED ALONG SATD CENTER LINE, SOUTHEASTERLY OF THE INTERSECTION OF SAD CENTER LINE
WITH THE CENTER LINE OF JLLINOIS STATE ROUTE 71; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY TO SATD POINT ON SATD CENTER LINE
OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 126 AFORESAID; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID ROUTE 126 CENTER LINE AND TO SAID
ROUTE 71 CENTER LINE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID ROUTE 71 CENTER LINE, 3058 FEET TO SAID WEST LINE;
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 78.83 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING (EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT
PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT HE SOUTHWEST CORN R OF SAID SECTION. 3; THENCE NORTH (0 DEGREES 00
MINUTES 38 SECONDS EAST, ON A BEARING REFERENCED TO AN ASSUMED NORTH, 1925.21 FEET ON THE WEST LINE OF
SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 22 SECONDS EAST 58.55 FEET TO THE EXISTING
SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE-OF A F.AP. ROUTE 311 (IL ROUTE 71) AND THE FOINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE
NORTH 72 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST 3528 FEET ON SAID SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE TO THE
SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF S B 1. ROUTE 66 (IL ROUTE 126); THENCE SOUTH 70 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 35 SECOND3
EAST 125.66 FEET ON SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE; THENCE NORTH 81 DEGREES 09 MINUTES 04 SECONDS WEST
51.85 FEET; THENCE NORTH 76 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 103 47 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING), IN
KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWESTI/4; THENCE
NORTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4, 798.60 FEET TO AN OLD CLAIM LINE FOR A POINT OF
BEGINNING: THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 111827 FEET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE
WHICH FORMS AND ANGLE OF 28 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 54 SECONDS WITH THE LAST

DESCRIBED COURSE, MEASURE) COUNTERCLOCKWISE THEREFROM, 228 53 FEET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A
LINE WHICH FORMS AN ANGLE OF 178 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 35 SECONDS WITH TILE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE,
MEASURED COUNTERCLOCKWISE THEREFROM, 112.67 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN PARALLEL WITH AN) 1600 FEET
NORMALLY DISTANT, EASTERLY OF SAID WEST LINE; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE, 71744 FEET TO
SAID CLAIM LINE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CLAIM LINE, 188 42 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN
KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, TLLINOIS.

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL.
MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER,;
THENCE NORTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1995.6 FEET TQ THE CENTER LINE OF [LLINOIS



ROUTE 71; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SATD CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 71, 1411.3 FEET TO THE CENTER
LINE EXTENDED NORTHWESTERLY OF THE PUBLIC ROAD RUNNING SQUTHEASTERLY FROM SAID ILLINOIS ROUTE 7L,
COMMONLY KNOWN AS WING ROAD; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG TILE EXTENDED CENTER LINE AND THE CENTER
LINE OF SAID PUBLIC ROAD, BEING ALONG A LINE THAT FORMS AN ANGLE OF 93 DEGREES 25’ TO THE RIGHT WiTH THE
PROLONGATION NORTHEASTERLY OF THE TANGENT TO THE CENTER LINE OF SATD ILLINOIS ROUTE 71 AT THE LAST
DESCRIBED POINT, 761 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG A LINE THAT FORMS AN
ANGLE OF 79 DEGREES 47" TO THE RIGHT WiTH THE PROLONGATION GF THE LAST DESCRIBED LINE 265.6 FEET TO THE
CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 126; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAJD CENTER LINT OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 126 TO
THE CENTER LINE OF THE EASTERLY FORK OF THE PUBLIC ROAD AFORESAID WHICH RUNS SOUTHEASTERLY FROM SAID
TLLINGIS ROUTE 71; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE CENTER LINE OF SAID PUBLIC ROAD TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING; TO THE TOWNSHIP OF KENDALL, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

GRANTEE HEREBY ASSUMES AND AGREES TO PAY THE UNPAID BALANCE ON THE EXISTING MORTGAGE RECORDED IN
BOOK PAGE , THE DEBT SECURED THEREBY AND A1SO HERERY ASSUMES -THE OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE TERN OF THE
INSTRUMENTS CREATING THE LOANS DOCUMENT NO. 75-1053.

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER,;
THENCE - NORTH 00 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST ALONG-THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER, -
1,995.75 FERT TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE NO. 7}; THENCE NORTH 7] DEGREES 23 MINUTES 59
SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE 30.45 FEET TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF SAID CENTER LINE WITH
CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE NO. 126 FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 71 DEGREES 23 MINUTES
59 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID ROUTE 71 CENTER LINE 230.67 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG A CURVE TO-THE. LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1145920 FEET WHICH IS TANGENT TO THE LAST
DESCRIBED COURSE AT THE LAST DESCRIBED POINT AT THE LAST DESCRIPTION POINT, 1,141.60 FEET TO THE
INTERSECTION WITH THE- CENTER LINE EXTENDED NORTHWESTERLY OF WING ROAD; THENCE SOUTH 21 DEGREES 30
MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID WING ROAD CENTER LINE 761.0 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 58 DEGREES 16 MINUTES
47 SECONDS WEST 26535  FEET TO SAID ROUTE 126 CENTER LINE; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID ROUTE 126
CENTER LINE BEING ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 2,292.01 FEET WHICH IS TANGENT TO A
LINE DRAWN NORTH 72 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 06 SECONDS WEST FROM THE LAST DESCRIBED POINT 147.93 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 16 DEGREES 38 MINUTES 49 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID ROUTE 126 CENTERLINE 850.98 FEET; THENCE
NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID ROUTE 126 CENTERLINE BEING ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT AND HAVING A RADIUS
OF 2.148.79 FEET WHICH IS TANGENT TO THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE AT THE LAST DESCRIBED POINT, 383.53 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING, EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PART DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: THAT PART OF THE
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36- NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE-SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SATD SOUTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE NORTH
00 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST ALONG -THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1995.75 FEET TO THE
CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE 71; THENCE NORTH 71 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 59 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID
ROUTE 71 CENTER LINE 261.12 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG A CURVE TO THE
LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1545920 FEET WHICH IS TANGENT TO THE LAST-DESCRIBED COURSE 1141.60 FEET TO THE
INTERSECTION-WITH THE CENTER LINE EXTENDED NORTHWESTERLY OF WING ROAD FOR THE POINT OF
BEGINNING(THENCE SOUTH 21 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID WING ROAD CENTER LINE 258.05
FEET: THENCE SOUTH 58 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 47 SECONDS WEST 200.0 FEET; THENCE NORTH 21 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 13
SECONDS WEST PARALLEL WITH SAID WING ROAD CENTER LINE 250.0 FEET TO SAID ROUTE 71 CENTER LINE; THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID ROUTET! CENTER LINE 200,16 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, I¥ THE UNITED CITY OF
YORKVILLE, KENDALL COUNTY, (ILLINOIS, AND ALSO EXCEPTING, THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF
SBCTION 3 IN TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS,
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS WITH BEARINGS REFERENCED TO THE ILLINGIS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM EAST
ZONE (NADS3):

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE NORTH 01 DEGREE 35
MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST, 1,995.04 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 TO THE CENTERLINE OF A
PUBLIC HIGHWAY DESIGNATED IL 71; THENCE NORTH 69 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 19 SECONDS EAST, 31.52 FEET ALONG SAID
CENTERLINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 69 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 19
SECONDS EAST, 230.66 EEET ALONG SAID CENTERTINE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, 940.56 FEET ALONG AN 11 479.02
FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A CHORD BEARING NORTH 67 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 29 SECONDS EAST, 94031
FEET: THENCE SOUTH 22 DEGREES 56 MINUTES 31 SECONDS EAST, 60.03 FEET; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, 418.10 FEET ON
AN 11,539 02 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A CHORD BEARING SOUTH 66 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 29 SECONDS
WEST. 415,08 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 59 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 09 SECONDS WEST, 71.10 REET; THENCE SOUTH 25 DEGREES 14

MINUTES 24 SECONDS WEST, 60.52 FEET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY, 570.87, FEET ON AN 675.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO
THE LEFT HAVING A CHORD BEARING SOUTH 55 DEGREES 22 MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST, 560.80 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 74
DEGREES 04 MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST. 27441 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 64 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 29 SECONDS EAST, 35.85
FEET, THENCE SOUTH 55 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 00-SBCONDS WEST, 64.56 FEET TO THE CENTERLINE OF A PUBLIC
HIGHWAY DESIGNATED IL 126; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, 162.08 FEET ON SATD CENTERLINE BEING A 2,29L.64 FOOT
RADIUS CURVE TO TILE LEFT HAVING A CHORD BEARING NORTH 76 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 12 SECONDS WEST, 162,05 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 78 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 46 SECONDS WEST, 357.37 FEET ON SAID CENTERLINE; THENCE NORTH 53
DEGREES 52 MINUTES 46 SECONDS WEST, 96.76 FEET TO THE EXISTING NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF IL 126;
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, 267.03 FEET ON A 990,00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A CHORD BEARING
NORTH 45 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 03 SECONDS WEST, 295.92 FEET; THENCE NORTH 36 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 21 SECONDS
WEST. 23.77 FEET; THENCE NORTH 77 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 36 SECONDS WEST, 64.74 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 69 DEGREES 03



MINUTES 36 SECONDS WEST, 100,61 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 62 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 52 SECONDS WEST, 149.98 EEET TO THE
SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID IL 71; THENCE SOUTH &5 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST, 113.94 FEET
TO THE CENTERLINE OF SAID IL 126; THENCE

NORTHWESTERLY, 119.55 FEET ON SAID CENTERLINE BEING A 2,170.5% FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A
CHORD REARING NORTH 6% DEGREES 20 MINUTES 17 SECONDS WEST, 11954 FEET TO THE POINT CF BEGINNING.

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST
QUARTER; THENCE NORTH 07°44”EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1236.84 FEETTO A
POINT ON SAID EAST LINE WHICH TS 1284.36 FEET SOUTH GF THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SATD SOUTHWEST
QUARTER,; THENCE NORTH 89°47°31” WEST, 684.42 FEET, THENCE NORTH 09°32°39” WEST, 59.03 FEET

TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF A TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO ELSIE BOYD BY DEED DATED MARCH 25, 1529
AND RECORDED DECEMBER 14, 1938 IN DEED RECORD 88 ON PAGE 399, FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE SOUTH 57°58°56" WEST ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID BOYD TRACT AND SAID SOUTHERLY LINE
EXTENDED 352.89 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF WING ROAD; THENCE SOUTH 21°28°35” EAST ALONG SAID
CENTERLINE 131.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 57°58°'56 " EAST PARALLEL WITH SAID SOUTHERLY LINE 323 58 FEET

TO A POINT WHICH 18 SOUTH 09°32°39” EAST, 139.37 FEET FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH
06°32'39" WEST, 135.37 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE TOWNSHIP OF KENDALE, KENDALL COUNTY, [LLINOIS.

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER;
THENCE NORTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1905.6 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS
ROUTE 7TL: THENCE EASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTER LINE 322 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 126; THENCE
SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 126, 1049.7 FEET FOR THE POINT, OF BEGINNING; THENCE
SOUTHWESTERLY AT RIGHT ANGLES TO SAID CENTER LINE, 339.0 FEET TO AN QLD CLAIM LINE; THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID OLD CLAIM LINE WHICH MAKES AN ANGLE OF 44°21* (MEASURED CLOCKWISE FROM THE
LAST DESCRIBED COURSE) 46&.6 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF SAID TLLINOIS ROUTE 126; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY
ALONG SAID CENTER LINE 328.1 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE TOWNSHIP OF KENDALL, KENDALL COUNTY,
ILLINOIS. EXCEPT THEREFROM THE BELOW DESCRIBED PARCEL:

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS WITH BEARINGS
REFERENCED TO THE TLLINOIS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM EAST ZONE (NADE3):

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SATD SECTION 3; THENCE NORTH 01
DEGREE 35 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST, 1,995.04 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTEWEST QUARTER OF SAID
SECTION 3 TO THE ‘CENTERLINE OF A PUBLIC HIGHWAY DESIGNATED IL 71; THENCE NORTH 69 DEGREES 55 MINUTES
79 SECONDS EAST, 31,52 FEET ALONG SAID CENTERLINE TO THE CENTERLINE OF A PUBLIC HIGHWAY DESIGNATED IL
126; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTERLINE, 399.15 FEET ALONG A 2,170.5% FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE
1LEFT BAVING A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 73 DEGREES (11 MINUTE 41 SECONDS EAST, 358 58 FEET THENCE SOUTH 78
DEGREES 17 MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST, 649.36 FEET ALONG SAID CENTERLINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

EROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE SOUTH 78' DEGREES 17 MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST, 172.16 FEET ALONG SAID
CENTERLINE; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTERLINE, 162.08 FEET ALONG A 2,291 64 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO
THE RIGHT HAVING A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 76 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 12 SECONDS EAST, 162.05 FEET; THENCE
SOUTH 56 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 11 SECONDS WEST, 65.63 FEET; THENCE NORTH 74 DEGREES 04 MINUTES 13 SECONDS
WEST, 5.13 FEET; THENCE NORTH 65 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST, 5057 FEET, TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF
WAY LINE OF IL 126; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, 61.11 FEET ON SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE BEING ON A 2,251.64 FOOT
RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEET HAVING A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 77 DEGREES 31 MINUTES 09 SECONDS WEST, 61.11
FEET; THENCE NORTH 78 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 46 SECONDS WEST, 17227 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE;
'HENCE NORTH 11 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 19 SECONDS EAST, 46.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.257
ACRE MORE OR LESS, OF WHICH 0.290 ACRE, MORE OR LESS, IS LYING WITHIN PUBLIC ROAD RIGHT OF WAY, SITUATED IN
THE COUNTY OF KENDALL AND STATE OF JLLINOIS, HEREBY RELEASING AND WAVING ALL RIGHTS UNDER AND BY
VIRTUE OF THE HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION LAWS OF THE STATE.



March 14, 2008

Revised April 24, 2008
Revised April 28, 2008
Revised May 21, 2008

STATE OF ILLINOIS )
)ss.
COUNTY OF KENDALL )

ANNEXATION AND PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT TO THE
UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
WINDMILL FARMS
(Southwest and Southeast corner of the intersection of Illinois State Routes 126 and 71)
(JAKE LAND GROUP)

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this p??'bhday of [WJ; %,{ , 2008
by and between THE UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, Yorkville, Illinois, a municipal
corporation, located in Kendall County, Illinois (hereinafter referred to as “CITY™), and the
JAKE LAND GROUP, LLC, of the County of Kendall, State of Hlinois (hereinafter referred to
as “OWNER/DEVELOPER™), which is the OWNER/DEVELOPER of the real property
hereinafter referred to as the “PROPERTY™:

WITNESSETH
WHEREAS, OWNER/DEVELOPER is the owner of real property which ts the subject
matter of this Agreement comprising approximately 91.36 acres, more or less, and is more
particularly described in the attached Exhibit “A”, which is incorporated herein by reference;
and

WHEREAS, a portion of the PROPERTY consisting of 78.145 acres and described by
Exhibit “A-1" is located contiguous to the corporate boundaries of the CITY and is not located
within the corporate boundaries of any other municipality; and

WHEREAS, a portion of the PROPERTY consisting of 15.323 acres and described by
Exhibit “A-2" has previously been annexed to the CITY and zoned B-3 Service Business
District; and



WHEREAS, OWNER/DEVELOPER desires {o annex into the CITY the PROPERTY
described in the attached Exhibit “A-1" and depicted in the Annexation Plat which is attached
hereto and incorporated herein as Exhibit “B” The CITY Plan Commission has considered the
Petition to Annex and Zone and positively recommended the same and the City Council has
heretofore both requested and approved the proposed land use and the zoning of the same at the
request of OWNER/DEVELOPER; and

WHEREAS, with certain limitations, the CITY agrees to allow the real property
described in the attached Exhibit “A” to be zoned for Planned Unit Development (PUD)
allowing uses permitted within the B-3 Service Business District on a maximum of thirty-five
(35) acres located on the East Parcel as depicted on the Concept PUD Plan prepared by Schoppe
Design Associates, Inc. and dated revision 17, May 8, 2008; and, the CITY agrees to allow uses
permitted within the B-3 Service Business District for the real property described in Exhibit “C”
on a maximum of twenty-one (21) acres located on the West Parcel; and the CITY agrees to
allow uses permitted within the R-4 General Residence District for the real property described in
the attached Exhibit “D” on a maximum of two (2) acres of the real property allowing an age-
restricted age fifty-five and over single story townhomes; and the area located south of the B-3
and immediately east of the aforementioned age restricted area allowing a multi-story assisted
{iving facility consisting of approximately three and one-half (3 4) acres with a minimum of
ninety-nine (99) assisted living units allowed on the West Parcel as depicted on the Schoppe
Design Associates, Inc. Concept PUD Plan (Exhibit “E”), and

WHEREAS, the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Design Guidelines identifies Illinois State
Route 71 and Iilinois State Route 126 as ‘Gateway Corridors’; and

WHEREAS, all parties to this Agreement desire to set forth certain terms and conditions
upon which the land heretofore described will be annexed to the CITY in an orderly manner; and

WHEREAS, OWNER/DEVELOPER and its representatives have discussed the proposed
annexation and have held a Public Hearing with the Plan Commission, and The City Council,
prior to the execution hereof, duly published and held a public hearing was held to consider this
Agreement in front of the City Council, as required by the statutes of the State of THinois in such
case made; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with the powers granted to the CITY by the provisions of 65
ILCS 5/11-15.1-1 through 5/11-15.1-5 (2006), inclusive, relating to Annexation Agreements, the
parties hereto wish to enter into a binding agreement with respect to the annexation and zoning
of the subject Property and to provide for various other matters related directly or indirectly to
the annexation of the Property in the future, as authorized by, the provisions of said statutes; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to due notice and publication in the manner provided by law, the
appropriate zoning authorities of the CITY have taken all further action required by the
provisions of 65 ILCS 5/11-15.1.3 (2006) and the ordinances of the CITY relating to the



procedure for the authorization, approval and execution of this Annexation/Planned Unit
Development Agreement by the CITY.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants
herein contained, the parties agree, under the terms and authority provided in 65 ILCS 5/11-
15.1-1 through 65 ILCS 5/11-15.1-5 (2006}, as follows:

L. ANNEXATION AND ZONING.

A. The CITY shall adopt an ordinance annexing to the City all of the real property
described herein in the attached Exhibit “A-17; furthermore, the City shall adopt
an ordinance zoning the real property designated in the attached Exhibit “A” to
PUD subject to all of the terms of this Agreement and as follows:

1. The real property described in Exhibit “C” is allowed uses permitted
within the B-3 Service Business Zoning District subject to the alterations
described by Exhibit “C-1”. Said alterations include the removal of
several uses as well as the allowance for one (1) bank, one (1) daycare and
one (1) gasoline filling station/gas station as depicted on the Concept PUD
Plan (Exhibit “E”).

1i. The real property described in Exhibit “D” is allowed uses permitted
within the R-4 General Residence Zoning District.

2. SITE DEVELOPMENT

A. OWNER/DEVELOPER shall develop the subject property including the
preservation of open space, protection of the existing evergreen tree line on the west
boundary of the West Parcel, and installation of a trail system, stormwater management
facilities and roadway access points in general conformity with the Planned Unit
Development Concept Plan dated May 8, 2008, prepared by Schoppe Design Associates,
Inc. and which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference as Exhibit “E”.

B. OWNER/DEVEILOPER shall be responsible for providing landscaping, in
conformance with CITY standards along all perimeter boundaries of the subject

property.

C. OWNER/DEVELOPER shall establish the landscape buffer along Illinois State
Route 71 and Illinois State Route 126 outside of the proposed Right-of-Way expansion
line of the Illinois Department of Transportation. Said buffer shall be a minimum of 25
feet in width.

D. OWNER/DEVELOPER shall incorporate and apply all ‘Site Planning Principles’ as

defined by the CITY s “Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update Southern Study Area”
Design Guidelines a copy of which sections are attached in Exhibit “F” hereto and made
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a part hereof.

E. OWNER/DEVELOPER shall relocate the existing overhead utility lines along the
Illinois State Route 71 and Illinois State Route 126 frontage of the Subject Real Property
prior to issuance of any building permit for the property. Said relocation shall include
obtaining any and all necessary permits and approvals for the utility relocation and
OWNER/DEVELOPER shall be responsible for all costs associated with said relocation.

F. OWNER/DEVELOPER agrees to provide a cross-access casement allowing all
adjacent properties to access to and across the commercial portions of subject
PROPERTY as described by Exhibit “C” at the time of Final Plat of Subdivision.

G. OWNER/DEVELOPER agrees to construct and fund the trail depicted on the
Concept PUD Plan (Exhibit “E”) at time of Final Plat of Subdivision.

H. OWNER/DEVELOPER agrees that in all respects, the subject PROPERTY shall be
developed in conformance with the terms and conditions of the Yorkville Zoning
Ordinance, Subdivision Control Ordinance, Stormwater, and all other applicable
Ordinances.

1. OWNER/DEVELOPER, and successors, heirs, and assigns hereby agree that prior to
development taking place on the PROPERTY, a site development plan shall be
submitted along with approval of Preliminary Plat of Subdivision and Preliminary
Engineering as well as Final Plats of Subdivision and Final Engineering prior to
OWNER/DEVELOPER commencing construction on said PROPERTY.

J. The OWNER shall construct off-site right-of-way improvements within the Raintree
Village subdivision to provide connection to infrastructure on Hampton Lane. The
location of the said infrastructure shall be consistent with the location and typical
pavement section depicted on Exhibit “G” of this Agreement.

K. OWNER agrees within 45 days of a written request from the CITY, which includes
legal descriptions and exhibits as necessary, the OWNER/DEVELOPER shall grant
permanent and temporary construction easements as necessary for the construction of
extension of City utilities and appurtenances and/or other utilities to serve the subject
property and other properties within the City of Yorkville.

L. Owner agrees within 45 days of a written request from the United City of Yorkville,
which includes legal descriptions and exhibits as necessary, the OWNER/
DEVELOPER shall convey by Warranty Deed, fee simple title of future highway or
road right of way to the State of Illinois, Kendall County or the United City of Yorkville
as necessary, regardiess of whether or not these right of way needs have been previously
identified in this agreement. Such request for conveyance of right of way shall have no
impact on any previously entitled land development density.
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3. CITY'S AGREEMENTS.
A,

@ The CITY agrees that as to any of the non-residential use and zoning
classification parcels, OWNER/DEVELOPER has no obligation to pay
School Transition Fees or School-Park Land-Cash Fees.

(iiy  The OWNER/DEVELOPER shall pay l.and-Cash Fees for schools and
parks at the time of Building Permit Application. For each dwelling unit
all fees listed on attached Exhibit “H” shall be charged and paid likewise
at the time of application for each respective building permit. The amounts
listed in Exhibit “H” will remain for a period of 5 years commencing on
the date of this Agreement. Following said five (5) year period, the
OWNER/DEVELOPER shall be responsible to pay said fees at a rate
currently required by the CITY.

B. OWNER/DEVELOPER shall be required by THE UNITED CITY OF
YORKVILLE to hook-on to the City Water at the time of improving the subject
property, and shall be responsible for the cost of main extensions to the
PROPERTY if said mains do not touch the PROPERTY.

C. Upon annexation to the CITY, the OWNER/DEVELOPER will receive police
protection, 911 service, , and all services as provided by CITY to its property
owners and residents.

D. The CITY will require the OWNER/DEVELOPER to annex to Yorkville Bristol
Sanitary District prior to the time of applying for a building permit seeking to hook
up to the Sanitary District and the CITY Sanitary Sewer System. The
OWNER/DEVELOPER shall be responsible for the cost of utility extensions to the
PROPERTY if said utilities do not touch the PROPERTY.

E. CITY will use its best efforts to support issuance of a highway access permit by
IDOT to the CITY and OWNER/DEVELOPER permitting access cuts onto Ilinois
State Routes 126 and 71 at the approximate locations shown on the Preliminary PUD
Conceptual Plan as prepared by Shoppe Design Associates, Inc. and dated January
30, 2008.

4. RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS.

1t is specifically understood and agreed that OWNER/DEVELQOPER and its successors
and assigns shall have the right to sell transfer, mortgage and assign all or any part of the
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subject property and the improvements thereon to other persons, trusts, partnerships,
firms, or corporations, for investment, building, financing, developing and all such
purposes, and that said persons, trusts, partnerships, firms, or corporations shall be
entitled to the same rights and privileges and shall have the same obligations as
OWNER/DEVELOPER under this Agreement and upon such transfer, the obligations
pertaining to the property transferred or sold shall be the sole obligations of the
transferee, except for any performance bonds or guaranties posted by
OWNER/DEVELOPER on any subdivided or unimproved property for which an
acceptable substitute performance bond or letter of credit has not been submitted to the
CITY.

5. DORMANT SPECIAL SERVICE AREA and PROPERTY OWNER ASSOCIATION

Owner/Developer agrees to incorporate covenants into the final subdivision plat that
provide for the formulation of a Property Owners Association to be responsible to
maintain all common facilities, including, but not limited to, private common areas,
detention ponds, perimeter landscaping features and entrance signage within the Subject
Realty.

Owner/Developer agrees to the City enacting at the time of final plat approval, or
anytime thereafter, a Dormant Special Service Area (DSSA) to act as a back up in the
event that the Property Owners’ Association fails to maintain the Common Facilities,
including, but not limited to, private common areas, detention ponds, perimeter
landscaping features and entrance signage within the Subject Realty. Owner/Developer
agrees to execute any and all documentation necessary or proper to create the Dormant
Special Service Area and pay any and all fees, including legal expenses, for the
preparation and approval of said documentation.

6. TIME OF THE ESSENCE.

It is understood and agreed by the parties hereto that time is of the essence of this
Agreement and that all of the parties will make every reasonable effort, to expedite the
subject matter hereof. It is further understood and agreed by the parties that the
successful consummation of this Agreement requires their continued cooperation.

7. COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS.

The covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to be
covenants running with the land during the term of this Agreement shall inure to the
benefit of and be binding upon the heirs, successors and assigns of the parties hereto,
including the CITY, its corporate authorities and their successors in office, and is
enforceable by order of the court pursuant to its provisions and the applicable statutes of
the State of Illinois.



8. BINDING EFFECT AND TERM.

This Annexation Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto,
and their successors and owners of record of land which is the subject of this Agreement,
assignee, lessees, and upon any successor municipal authorities of said city, so long as
development is commenced within a period of twenty years from the date of execution of this
Agreement by the CITY.

9. NOTICE.
Any notices required hereunder shall be in writing and shall be served upon any other party in

writing and shall be delivered personally or sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt
requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

If to the CITY: City Clerk
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, IL 60560
With a copy to: Kathleen Field Orr
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, IL 60560
To OWNER/DEVELOPER:

Jake Land Group, LLC
¢/o 25615 Plantation Road
Plainfield, IL. 60544

With a copy to: Tony Perino
608 Lookery Ln.
Joliet, IL. 60431

And with a copy to: Law Offices of Daniel J. Kramer

1107A S. Bridge St.
Yorkville, IL. 60560

or to such other addresses as any party way from time to time designate ina
written notice to the other parties.

10. ENFORCEABILITY.

This Agreement shall be enforceable in any court of competent jurisdiction by any of the
parties hereto by an appropriate action of law or in equity to secure the performance of
the covenants herein contained.



In the event any portion of said agreement becomes unenforceable due to any change in
Illinois Compiled Statutes or court decisions, said unenforceable portion of this
Agreement shall be excised here from and the remaining portions thereof shall remain in
full force and effect.

11. ENACTMENT OF ORDINANCES.

The CITY agrees to adopt any ordinances which are required to give legal effect to the
matters contained in this Agreement or to correct any technical defects which may arise
after the execution of this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned have hereunto set their hands and seals this
A7*day of _Va , 2008.

UNITED CJTY OF Y%KVILL
By: [/ bonee ’ Fua

Valerie Burd, Mayor

Attest:
ity Clerk



JAKE LAND GROUP, LLC

/ Woweesve

Attest: C@QQQQJ"’ mW\f\\

Prepared by and Return to:

Law Offices of Daniel J. Kramer
1107A S. Bridge Street
Yorkville, Illinois 60560
630.553.9500



Exhibit “A”

Exhibit “A-1”

Exhibit “A-2”

Exhibit “B”

Exhibit “C”

Exhibit “C-1”

Exhibit “D”

Exhibit “E”

Exhibit “F”

Exhibit “G”

Exhibit “H”

EXHIBIT LIST

Legal Description — Subject Property

Unincorporated Portion of Subject Property — Legal Description

City of Yorkville Portion of Subject Property — Legal Description
Annexation Plat

B-3 Service Business District — Legal Description

B-3 Service Business District Allowable Uses

R-4 General Residence District — Legal Description

Concept PUD Plan - Schoppe Design Associates Plan dated May 8, 2008

Design Guidelines of the Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update Southern
Study Area

Offsite Infrastructure Improvements — Raintree Village/Hampton Lane
Connection

Fee Schedule

—10-—



EXHIBIT A
LEGAL DESCRIPTION

THAT PART OF THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NOR'TH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE CENTER OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE SOUTH 00 1.4°45” EAST, ALONG THE
EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 3, 1284 .36 FEET;, THENCE SOUTH 89°50°00” WEST, 684,42 FEET
THENCE NORTH (9°30°00” WEST, 592.27 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 57°33°55" WEST, 327.57 FEET TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF WING
ROAD; THENCE NORTH 21°52°29” WEST, ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE, 705.85 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY
LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 71 FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 21°52°29” EAST, ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE,
1,19.0. FEET, THENCE NORTH 68°07°31” EAST, PERPENDICULAR TO SAID EASTERLY LINE, 211.0 FEET; THENCE NORTH 21
©52°29"” WEST, PARALLEL WITH SAID EASTERLY LINE, 131,87 FEET TO SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ILLINOIS
ROUTE 7}; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, BEING A CURVE TO THE RIGHT
WITH A RADIUS OF 11509.16 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 211.39 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING IN KENDALL
TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS AND CONTAINING 0.6060 ACRE.

THAT PART OF THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE CENTER OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE SOUTH 00°/4°45” EAST, ALONG THE
EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 3, 1284.36 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 89°50°00" WEST, 684.42 FEET,
THENCE NORTH 09°30°00” WEST, 592.27 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE SOUTH §7°33'55” WEST, 327.57 FEET
TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF WING ROAD; THENCE NORTH 21°52°29” WEST, ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE, 586.85 FEET TO A
POINT ON SAID EASTERLY LINE WHICH IS 119.0 FEET (MEASURED ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE) SOUTHEASTERLY OF THE
SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 71, THENCE NORTH 68°(7°31” EAST, PERPENDICULAR TO SAID
EASTERLY LINE, 211.0 FEET; THENCE NORTH 21°52°29” WEST, PARALLEL WITH SAID EASTERLY LINE, 131 87 FEET TO SAID
SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 71; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE, BEING A CURVE TO THE LEFT WITH A RADIUS OF 11509.16 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 261.03 FEET TO A LINE
DRAWN NORTH 09°30°00” WEST FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE SOUTH 9°30°00” EAST, ALONG SAID LINE, 695.72
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS AND CONTAINING 5.6041 ACRES.

THAT PART OF THE NORTH 1/2 GF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 3;
THENCE SOUTH 0 DEGREES, 07 MINUTES, 44 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4, 1284.36 FEET,
THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES, 47 MINUTES, 31 SECONDS WEST, 684.42 FEET; THENCE NORTH 0% DEGREES, 32 MINUTES, 39
SECONDS WEST, 590.03 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF A TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO ELSIE BOYD BY A DEED
DATED MATCH 25, 1929 AND RECORDED DECEMBER 4, 1938 IN DEED RECORD BOOK. 88 ON PAGE 399, THENCE NORTH 09
DEGREES, 05 MINUTES, 46 SECONDS WEST, 748.40 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE TIC. 71; THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, BEING ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 11,459.20 FEET
AND A RADIAL BEARING OF NORTH 26 DEGREES, 50 MINUTES, 30 SECONDS WEST AT THE LAST DESCRIBED POINT. 627.46;
THENCE NORTH 60 DEGREES, 02 MINUTES, 30 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, 332.0 FEET FOR A POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 12 DEGREES, 27 MINUTES, 30 SECONDS EAST, 264.0 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 84 DEGREES, 27
MINUTES, 30 SECONDS EAST, 202.0 FEET: THENCE NORTH 0 DEGREES, 47TMINUTES, 30 SECONDS WEST, 423,02 FEET TO SAID
CENTER LINE: THENCE SOUTH 60 DEGREES, 02 MINUTES, 30 SECONDS WEST ALONG CENTER LINE, 291.76 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE TOWNSHIP OF KENDALL, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOGIS.

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST, NORTHWEST AND SOUTHWEST QUARTERS OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER
OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF
SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1284.36 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 680.30 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 09 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 27 SECONDS WEST 10.0 FEET FOR A POINT OF

BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 09 DEGREES. 33 MINUTES 27 SECONDS WEST 579.63 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF A
TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO ELSIE BOYD BY A DEED DATED MARCH 25, 1929 AND RECORDED DECEMBER 14, 1938 [N
DEED RECORD BOOK 88 ON PAGE 399; THENCE NORTH 09 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 24 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE
OF SAID BOYD TRACT 748.57 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE NO, 71; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY
ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, BEING ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A

RADIUS OF 11, 459.20 FEET AND A RADIAL BEARING OF NORTH 26 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 16 SECONDS WEST AT THE LAST
DESCRIBED POINT 627.46 FEET; THENCE NORTH 60 DEGREES ¢2 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAIL) CENTER LINE
332.0 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST 264.0 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 84 DEGREES 27
MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST 202.0 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST 423.02 FEET TO SAID
CENTER LINE; THENCE NORTH 60 DEGREES 02 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE 412.65 FEET TO A
LINE DRAWN NORTH 9¢ DEGREES 10 MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST PARALLEL WITH TILE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST
QUARTER, FROM A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER WHICH IS 598.62 FEET EASTERLY OF THE
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER: THENCE SOUTH (0 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST ALONG
SAID PARALLEL LINE 880,56 FEET TO SAID SQUTH LINE; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST
ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE 598.62 FEET TO SAID SOUTHWEST CORNER; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 48
SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID EAST LINE 1275.36 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN SOUTH 89 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 33 SECONDS
EAST FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 33 SECONDS WEST 681,94 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:



COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST |/4; THENCE NORTH 0 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 09
SECONDS WEST ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4, 798.60 FEET TO AN OLD CLAIM LINE; THENCE NORTH 57
DEGREES 59 MINUTES 05 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID OLD CLAIM LINE 299 .00 FEET FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE
SOUTH ! DEGREE 51 MINUTES 32 SECONDS WEST, 402.10 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 59 DEGREES 55 MINUTES., 25 SECONDS
EAST, 256.5! FEET, THENCE NORTH 59 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 25 SECONDS EAST 355.65 FEET; THENCE NORTH 62 DEGREES 43
MINUTES 29 SECONDS EAST, 853.57 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 33 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 40 SECONDS EAST,. 542.27 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE
NUMBER 126; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SA1D CENTER LINE, BEING ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A
RADIUS OF 2292 .0§ FEET AND A RADIAL BEARING OF SOUTH 29 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST AT THE LAST
DESCRIBED POINT, 358.41 FEET TO A POINT WHICH IS 151.00 FEET, AS MEASURED ALONG SAID CENTER LINE,
SOUTHEASTERLY OF THE INTERSECTION OF SAID CENTER LINE AND SAID OLD CLAIM LINE; THENCE SOUTH 45 DEGREES
05 MINUTES 49 SECONDS WEST, 265 .70 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 73 DEGREES 54 MINUTES 28 SECONDS WEST, 102.86 FEET,
THENCE SOUTH 84 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 54 SECONDS WEST, 280.96 FEET, THENCE NORTH 32 DEGREES 06 MINUTES 55
SECONDS WEST, 24.19 FEET TO SAID OLD CLAIM LIRE; THENCE SOUTH 87 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 05 SECONDS WEST ALONG
SAID OLD CLAIM LINE 789.92 FEET TO THE POINT OP BEGINNING IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

A PERPETUAL EASEMENT FOR THE OPERATION, MAINTENANCE AND USE OF A SEPTIC FIELD FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL
ONE HEREINABOVE DESCRIBED, UNDER AND UPON THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCEL OF REAL ESTATE CONTIGUOUS
TO PARCEL ONE TO WIT:

COMMENCING AT THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER OF PARCEL ONE HEREINABOVE DESCRIBED ON THE CENTER LINE OF
ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE NUMBER 126; THENCE SOUTH 45 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 49 SECONDS WEST, 47.12 FEET TO THE
SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE NUMBER 126, FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE
CONTINUING SOUTH 45 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 49 SECONDS WEST, 105.0 FEET, THENCE NORTH 32 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 38
SECONDS WEST, 152,18 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 76 DEGREES 09 MINUTES 49 SECONDS EAST, 5.28 PEEP; THENCE SOUTH 70
DEGREES 39 M]NUTE§ 49 SECONDS EAST, 158.65 FEET, TO THE POINT OP BEGINNING IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP, ALL IN
KENDALL COUNTY ILLINOIS.

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST |/ OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE
NORTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4, 798.60 FEET TO AN OLD CLAIM LINE; THENCE NORTHERLY
ALONG SAD WEST LINE, 1118.27 FEET A POINT OF BEGINNING THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE WHICH FORMS AN
ANGLE OF 28 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 54 SECONDS WITH THE LAST DESCRIBED

COURSE, MEASURED COUNTERCLOCKWISE THEREFROM, 228.53 FEET, THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE WHICH
FORMS AN ANGLE OF 178 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 35 SECONDS WITH THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE, MEASUREID
COUNTERCLOCKWISE THEREFROM, 112.67 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN PARALLEL WITH AND [60.0 FEET NORMALLY DISTANT,
EASTERLY OF SAID WEST LINE; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAIL) PARALLEL LINE, 717.44 FEET TO SAID CLAIM LINE;
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAD CLAIM LINE, 941.92 FEET TO A POINT ON A LINE DRAWN SOUTHWESTERLY,
PERPENDICULAR TO THE CENTER LINE OF 1LLINOIS STATE ROUTE NO. 126 FROM A POINT ON SAID CENTER LINE WHICH IS
1049.70 FEET, AS MEASURED ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, SOUTHEASTERLY OF THE INTERSECTION OF SAD CENTER LINE
WITH THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE 71; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY TO SAID POINT ON SAID CENTER LINE
OF ILLINCIS ROUTE 126 AFORESAID; THENCE NORTHWESTERI Y ALONG SAID ROUTE 126 CENTER LINE AND TO SAID
ROUTE 71 CENTER LINE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID ROUTE 71 CENTER LINE, 30,58 FEET TO SAID WEST LINE;
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 78.83 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING (EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT
PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT HE SOUTHWEST CORN R OF SAID SECTION. 3; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 00
MINUTES 38 SECONDS EAST, ON A BEARING REFERENCED TO AN ASSUMED NORTH, 1925.21 FEET ON THE WEST LINE OF
SATD SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 22 SECONDS EAST 58.53 FEET TO THE EXISTING
SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE-OF A.F.A.P. ROUTE 311 (IL ROUTE 71) AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE
NGORTH 72 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST 3528 FEET ON SAID SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE TO THE
SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF $B.I ROUTE 66 (IL ROUTE £26),; THENCE SOUTH 70 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 35 SECONDS
EAST 725.66 FEET ON SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE; THENCE NORTH 81 DEGREES 09 MINUTES 04 SECONDS WEST
51.85 FEET, THENCE NORTH 76 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 103.47 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING), IN
KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST1/4; THENCE
NORTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST L/4, 798.60 FEET TO AN OLD CLAIM LINE FOR A POINT OF
BEGINNING:; THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 111827 FEET, THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE
WIICH FORMS AND ANGLE OF 28 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 54 SECONDS WITH THE LAST

DESCRIBED COURSE, MEASURE) COUNTERCLOCK WISE THEREFROM, 228 53 FEET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A
LINE WHICH FORMS AN ANGLE OF 178 DEGREFS 11 MINUTES 35 SECONDS WITH TILE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE,
MEASURED COUNTERCLOCKWISE THEREFROM, 112.67 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN PARALLEL WITH AN) 160.0 FEET
NORMALLY DISTANT, EASTERLY OF SAID WEST LINE; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE, 717.44 FEET TO
SAID CLAIM LINE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CLAIM LINE, 188.42 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN
KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINGIS.

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL.
MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SATD SOUTHWEST QUARTER,
THENCE NORTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1995.6 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS



ROUTE 71; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SAID CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 71, 1411.3 FEET TO THE CENTER
LINE EXTENDED NORTHWESTERLY OF THE PUBLIC ROAD RUNNING SOUTHEASTERLY FROM SAID ILLINOIS ROUTE 71,
COMMONLY KNOWN AS WING ROADY, THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG TILE EXTENDED CENTER LINE AND THE CENTER
LINE OF SAID PUBLIC ROAD, BEING ALONG A LINE THAT FORMS AN ANGLE OF 93 DEGREES 25" TO THE RIGHT WITH THE
PROLONGATION NORTHEASTERLY OF THE TANGENT TO THE CENTER LINE OF SAID ILLINOES ROUTE 71 AT THE LAST
DESCRIBED POINT, 761 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG A LINE THAT FORMS AN
ANGLE OF 79 DEGREES 47 TO THE RIGHT WITH THE PROLONGATION OF THE LAST DESCRIBED LINE 265.6 FEET TO THE
CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 126; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTER LINT OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 126 TO
THE CENTER LINE OF THE EASTERLY FORK OF THE PUBLIC ROAD AFORESAID WHICH RUNS SOUTHEASTERLY FROM SAID
ILLINOIS ROUTE 71; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE CENTER LINE OF SAID PUBLIC ROAD TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING; TO THE TOWNSHIP OF KENDALL, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

GRANTEE HEREBY ASSUMES AND AGREES TO PAY THE UNPAID BALANCE ON THE EXISTING MORTGAGE RECORDED IN
BOOK PAGE , THE DEBT SECURED THEREBY AND ALSO HEREBY ASSUMES -THE OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE TERN OF THE
INSTRUMENTS CREATING THE LCANS DOCUMENT NO. 79—1053.

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER,
THENCE - NORTH 00 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST ALONG-TEE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER, -
1.995.75 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF 1LLINQIS STATE ROUTE NO. 71; THENCE NORTH 71 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 59
SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE 30.45 FEET TQ THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF SAID CENTER LINE WITH
CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE NO. 126 FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE NORTH 71 DEGREES 23 MINUTES
59 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID ROUTE 71 CENTER LINE 230.67 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE, THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG A CURVE TO-THE. LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 11,459.20 FEET WHICH I8 TANGENT TO THE LAST
DESCRIBED COURSE AT THE LAST DESCRIBED POINT AT THE LAST DESCRIPTION POINT, 1,141.60 FEET TO THE
INTERSECTION WITH THE- CENTER LINE EXTENDED NORTHWESTERLY OF WING ROAD; THENCE SOUTH 21 DEGREES 30
MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID WING ROAD CENTER LINE 761.0 FEET: THENCE SOUTH 58 DEGREES 16 MINUTES
47 SECONDS WEST 26535  FEET TO SAID ROUTE 126 CENTER LINE; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID ROUTE 126
CENTER LINE BEING ALONG A CURVE TC THE LEFT AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 2,292.01 FEET WHICH 18 TANGENT TO A
LINE DRAWN NORTH 72 DEGREES 57 MINUTES 06 SECONDS WEST FROM THE LAST DESCRIBED POINT 147.93 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 16 DEGREES 38 MINUTES 49 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID ROUTE 126 CENTERLINE 850.98 FEET; THENCE
NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID ROUTE 126 CENTERLINE BEING ALONG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT AND HAVING A RADIUS
OF 2,148.79 FEET WHICH IS TANGENT TO THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE AT THE LAST DESCRIBED POINT, 383.53 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING, EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PART DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: THAT PART OF THE
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36- NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE-SQUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE NORTH
00 DEGREES 0% MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST ALONG -THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1995.75 FEET TO THE
CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE 71; THENCE NORTH 71 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 39 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID
ROUTE 71 CENTER LINE 261.12 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG A CURVE TO THE
LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 15.459.20 FEET WHICH IS TANGENT T THE LAST-DESCRIBED COURSE 114160 FEET TO THE
INTERSECTION-WITH THE CENTER LINE EXTENDED NORTHWESTERLY OF WING ROAD FOR THE POINT OF
BEGINNING(THENCE SOUTH 21 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID WING ROAD CENTER LINE 258 05
FEET: THENCE SOUTH 58 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 47 SECONDS WEST 200.0 FEET; THENCE NORTH 21 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 13
SECONDS WEST PARALLEL WITH SAID WING ROAD CENTER LINE 250.0 FEET TO SAID ROUTE 71 CENTER LINE; THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID ROUTETL CENTER LINE 200.16 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE UNITED CITY OF
YORKVILLE, KENDALL COUNTY, (JLLINOIS, AND ALSO EXCEPTING, THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF
SECTION 3 IN TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOILS,
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS WITH BEARINGS REFERENCED TO THE ILLINOIS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM EAST
ZONE (NAD83):

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE NORTH 01 DEGREE 35
MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST, 1,995.04 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4 TO THE CENTERLINE OF A
PUBLIC HIGHWAY DESIGNATEE IL 71; THENCE NORTH 69 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 19 SECONDS EAST, 31.52 FEET ALONG SAID
CENTERLINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 69 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 19
SECONDS EAST, 230.66 FEET ALONG SAID CENTERLINE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, 940.56 FEET ALONG AN 11,479.02
FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A CHORD BEARING NORTH 67 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 29 SECONDS EAST, 940.3!
FEET: THENCE SOUTH 22 DEGREES 56 MINUTES 3t SECONDS BAST, 60.03 FEET, THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, 418.10 FEET ON
AN 11,539.02 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A CHORD BEARING SOUTH 66 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 29 SECONDS
WEST, 418,08 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 59 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 09 SECONDS WEST, 71.10 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 25 DEGREES 14

MINUTES 24 SECONDS WEST, 60.52 FEET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY, 570.87. FEET ON AN 675.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO
THE LEFT HAVING A CHORD BEARING SOUTH 55 DEGREES 22 MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST, 560.80 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 74
DEGREES 04 MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST. 27441 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 64 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 29 SECONDS EAST, 35.85
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 55 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 00-SECONDS WEST, 64.56 FEET TO THE CENTERLINE OF A PUBLIC
MGHWAY DESIGNATED IL 126; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, 162.08 FEET ON SAID CENTERLINE BEING A 2,25L.64 FOOT
RADIUS CURVE TO TILE LEFT HAVING A CHORD BEARING NOR'TH 76 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 12 SECONDS WEST, 162.05 FEET,
THENCE NCRTH 78 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 46 SECONDS WEST, 357.37 FEET ON SAID CENTERLINE; THENCE NORTH 53
DEGREES 52 MINUTES 46 SECONDS WEST, 96.76 FEET TO THE EXISTING NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF IL 126;
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, 297.03 FEET ON A 990.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A CHORD BEARING
NORTH 45 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 03 SECONDS WEST, 295.92 FEET, THENCE NORTH 36 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 21 SECONDS
WEST, 23.77 FEET, THENCE NORTH 77 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 36 SECONDS WEST, 64.74 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 69 DEGREES 03



MINUTES 36 SECONDS WEST, 100,61 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 69 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 52 SECONDS WEST, 149.98 FEET TO THE
SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF SAID IL 71; THENCE SOUTH 65 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST, 113.94 FEET
TO THE CENTERLINE OF SAID I1., 126; THENCE

NORTHWESTERLY, 119.55 FEET ON SAID CENTERLINE BEING A 2,170.59 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A
CHORD BEARING NORTH 69 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 17 SECONDS WEST, 119.54 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST
QUARTER; THENCE NORTH 07°44”EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1236. 84 FEETTO A
POINT ON SAID EAST LINE WHICH IS 1284.36 FEET SOUTH OF THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST
QUARTER; THENCE NORTH 89°47°31” WEST, 684.42 FEET; THENCE NOR'TH 09°32°39” WEST, 590.03 FEET

TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF A TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO ELSIE BOYD BY DEED DATED MARCH 25, 1929
AND RECORDED DECEMBER 14, 1938 IN DEED RECORD 88 ON PAGE 399, FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE SOUTH 57°58 '56” WEST ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID BOYD TRACT AND SATD SOUTHERLY LINE
EXTENDED 352.89 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF WING ROAD; THENCE SOUTH 21°28°35” EAST ALONG SAID
CENTERLINE 131.00 FEET, THENCE NORTH 57°58°56 " EAST PARALLEL WITH SAID SOUTHERLY LINE 323.58 FEET

TO A POINT WHICH IS SOUTH 99°32°39” EAST, 139.37 FEET FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE NORTH
09°32°39” WEST, 139.37 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE TOWNSHIP OF KENDALL, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER;
THENCE NORTH ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1995.6 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS
ROUTE 7L; THENCE BASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTER LINE 32.2 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLENOIS ROUTE 126; THENCE
SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG $AID CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 126, 1049.7 FEET FOR THE POINT, OF BEGINNING; THENCE
SOUTHWESTERLY AT RIGHT ANGLES TO SAID CENTER LINE, 339.9 FEET TO AN OLD CLAIM LINE, THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID OLD CLAIM LINE WHICH MAKES AN ANGLE OF 4421° (MEASURED CLOCKWISE FROM THE
LAST DESCRIBED COURSE) 468.6 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF SAID ILLINOIS ROUTE 126; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY
ALONG SAID CENTER LINE 328.1 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE TOWNSHIP OF KENDALL, KENDALL COUNTY,
ILLINGIS. EXCEPT THEREFROM THE BELOW DESCRIBED PARCEL:

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS WITH BEARINGS
REFERENCED TO THE ILLENOIS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM EAST ZONE (NAD83):

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER. OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE NORTH 01
DEGREE 35 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST, 1,995.04 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID
SECTION 3 TO THE ‘CENTERLINE OF A PUBLIC HIGHWAY DESIGNATED IL 71; THENCE NORTH 69 DEGREES 55 MINUTES
19 SECONDS EAST, 31.52 FEET ALONG SAID CENTERLINE TO THE CENTERLINE OF A PUBLIC HIGHWAY DESIGNATED IL
126, THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTERLINE, 399.15 FEET ALONG A 2,170.59 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE
LEFT HAVING A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 73 DEGREES 01 MINUTE 41 SECGNDS EAST, 398 58 FEET THENCE SOUTH 78
DEGREES 17 MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST, 649.36 FEET ALONG SAID CENTERLINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE SOUTH 78° DEGREES 17 MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST, 172.16 FEET ALONG SALD
CENTERLINE; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTERLINE, 162.08 FEET ALONG A 2,291,64 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO
THE RIGHT HAVING A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 76 DEGREES t6 MINUTES |2 SECONDS EAST 162.05 FEET; THENCE
SOUTH 56 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 11 SECONDS WEST, 65.63 FEET, THENCE NORTH 74 DEGREES 04 MINUTES 13 SECONDS
WEST, 5.13 FEET;, THENCE NORTH 65 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST, 56.57 FEET, TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF
WAY LINE OF IL 126; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, 61.11 FEET ON SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE BEING ON A 2,251.64 FOOT
RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 77 DEGREES 31 MINUTES 09 SECONDS WEST, 61.11
FEET; THENCE NORTH 78 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 46 SECONDS WEST, 172.27 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE;
THENCE NORTH 11 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 19 SECONDS EAST, 40.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.297
ACRE MORE OR LESS, OF WHICH 0.290 ACRE, MORE OR LESS, 18 LYING WITHIN PUBLIC ROAD RIGHT OF WAY, SITUATED IN
THE COUNTY OF KENDALL AND STATE OF ILLINOIS, HEREBY RELEASING AND WAVING ALL RIGHTS UNDER AND BY
VIRTUE OF THE HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION LAWS OF THE STATE.



EXHIBIT A-1

PARCEL “B” DESCRIPTION

THAT PART OF THE SOQUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36
NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOQUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER;
THENCE NORTHE 0 DEGREES 7 MINUTES 44 SECONDS EAST ALCNG THE EAST
LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1,236.84 FEET TO A POINT ON SAID
EAST LINE WHICH IS 1284.36 FEET SQUTH OF THE NORTHEAST CCORNER OF
SATD SOUTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE NORTH 8% DEGREES 47 MINUTES 31
SECONDS WEST, 684,42 FRET; THENCE NORTH 09 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 39
SECONDS WEST, 590.03 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST CCGRNER OF A TRACT OF
LAND CONVEYED TO ELSIE BOYD BY DEED DATED MARCH 25, 1929 AND
RECORDED DECEMBER 14, 1938 IN DEED RECORD 88 ON PAGE 399 FOR THE
POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 57 DEGREES 58 MINUTES 56 SECONDS
WEST ATLONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID BOYD TRACT AND SAID
SOUTHERLY LINE EXTENDED 352.89 FERT TC THE CENTER LINE OF WING
ROAD; THENCE SQUTH 21 DEGREES 28 MINUTES 35 SECONDS EAST ALONG
SAID CENTER LINE 131.0 FEET; THENCE NORTH 57 DEGREES 58 MINUTES
56 SECONDS EAST PARALLEL WITH SAID SOUTHERLY LINE 323,58 FEET TO
A POINT WHICH IS SOUTH 09 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 39 SECONDS EAST,
139.37 FRET FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NCRTH 02 DEGREES
32 MINUTES 39 SECONDS WEST, 139.37 FEET TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING; IN THE TOWNSHIP OF KENDALL, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL “D” DESCRIPTION

THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST, NORTHWEST AND SOUTHWEST QUARTERS OF
SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NCRTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SQUTHWEST QUARTER;
THENCE SQUTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE EAST
LINE OF SATD SOUTHWEST QUARTER, 1,284.36 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89
DEGREES 29 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST, 680.30 FEET; THENCE NORTH 09
DEGREES 33 MINUTES 27 SECONDS WEST, 10.0 FEET FOR A POINT OF
BECINNING; THENCE NORTH 0% DEGREES 33 MINUTES 27 SECONDS WEST,
579.53 FEET TC THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF A TRACT CF LAND CCNVEYED
TO ELSIE BOYD BY A DEED DATED MARCH 25, 1929 AND RECORDED
DECEMBER 14, 1938 IN DEED RECORD BOOK 88 ON PAGE 399; THENCE
NORTH 09 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 24 3ECONDS WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE
OF SATD BCOYD TRACT, 748.57 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS
STATE ROUTE NO. 71; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTER LINE,
BEING ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 11,459.20 FEET
AND A RADTAL BEARING OF NORTH 26 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 16 SECONDS
WEST AT THE TAST DESCRIBED PCINT, 627.46 FEET; THENCE NORTH 60
DEGREES 02 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, 332.0
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 30 SECCNDS EAST, 264.0
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 84 DREGREES 27 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, 202.0
FEET: THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 30 3ECONDS WEST, 423.02
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FEET TC SATID CENTER LINE; THENCE NORTH 60 DEGREES 02 MINUTES 30
SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, 472.5% FEET TO A LINE DRAWN
NORTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 48 SECONDS EAST PARALLEL WITH THE
WEST LINE QF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER, FROM A POINT ON THE SOUTH
LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER WHICH IS 598.62 FEET EASTERLY OF
THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH GO
DEGREES 10 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID PARALLEL LINE,
880.56 FEET TC SAID SOUTH LINE; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 34
MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID SCUTH LINE, 528.62 FEET TO
SAID SOUTHWEST CORNER; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 1C MINUTES 48
SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID EAST LINE, 1275.36 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN
SOUTH 89 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 33 SECONDS EAST FROM THE POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGRREES 40 MINUTES 33 SECONDS WEST,
£81.94 FEET TC THE POINT OF BEGINNING IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP,
KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL “E” DESCRIPTION

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36
NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SCOUTHWEST QUARTER;
THENCE NCRTH 0 DREGREES 08 MINUTES 09 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE WEST
LINE OF SAID SCUTHWEST QUARTER, 798.60 FEET TC AN OLD CLAIM LINE;
THENCE NORTH 57 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 05 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID CLD
CLAIM LINE, 299.00 FEET FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 1
DEGREE 51 MINUTES 32 SECONDS WEST, 402.10 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 59
DEGREES 25 MINUTES 54 SECONDS EAST, 256.51 FEET; THENCE NORTH 59
DEGREES 55 MINUTES 25 SECONDS EAST, 355.65 FREET; THENCE NORTH 62
DECREES 43 MINUTES 29 SECONDS RAST, 8533.57 FEET; THENCE NORTH 33
DEGREES 24 MINUTES 40 SECONDS EAST, 542.27 FEET TO THE CENTER
LINE OF ILLINQIS STATE RCUTE NUMBER 126; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY
ALONG SATD CENTER LINE, BEING ALONG A CURVE TC THE LEFT HAVING A
RADTUS OF 2,292.01 FEET AND A RADIAL BEARING CF SCUTH 29 DEGREES
23 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST AT THE LAST DESCRIBED POINT, 358.41
FEET TO A POINT WHICH IS 151.00 FEET, AS MEASURED ALONG SAID
CENTER LINE, SOUTHEASTERLY OF THE INTERSECTION OF SAID CENTER
LINE AND SAID OLD CLAIM LINE; THENCE SOUTE 45 DEGREES 05 MINUTE
49 SECONDS WEST, 265.70 FEET; THENCE SOUTE 73 DEGREES 54 MINUTES
28 SECONDS WEST, 192.86 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 84 DEGREES 11 MINUTES
54 SECONDS WEST, 280.96 FEET; THENCE NORTH 32 DEGREES 00 MINUTES
55 SECONDS WEST, 24.19% FEET T0 SAID OLD CLAIM LINE; THENCE SOUTH
87 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 05 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID CLD CLAIM LINE,
789,92 FERET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP,
KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINCIS.
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PARCEL “F” DESCRIPTICHN

THAT BART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36
NORTH, RANGE 7, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SCUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SQUTHWEST QUARTER;
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER,
798.60 FEET TO AN OLD CLAIM LINE; THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG SAID
WEST LINE, 1118.27 FEET FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE
SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE WHICH FORMS AN ANGLE CF 28 DEGREES 33
MINUTES 54 SECONDS WITH THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE, MEASURED
COUNTERCLOCKWISE THEREFROM, 228.53 FEET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY
ALONG A TLINE WHICH FORMS AN ANGLE OF 178 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 35
SECONDS WITH THE TLAST DESCRIBED CQURSE, MEASURED COUNTERCLOCKWISE
THEREFROM, 112.67 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN PARALLEL WITH AND 160.0
FEET NORMALLY DISTANT, EASTERLY OF SAID WEST LINE; THENCE
SOUTHERLY ALONG SATID PARALLEL LINE, 717.44 FEET TO SAID CLAIM
LINE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ATONG SAID CLAIM LINE, 941.92 FEET TO
A POINT ON A LINE DRAWN SOUTHWESTERLY, PERPENDICULAR TO THE
CENTER LINE OF ILLINOLS STATE ROQUTE NO. 126 FROM A PCINT ON SAID
CENTER LINE WHICH IS 1,04%.70 FEET, AS MEASURED ALONG SAID CENTER
LINE, SOUTHEASTERLY OF THE INTERSECTION OF SAID CENTER LINE WITH
THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINCIS STATE ROUTE 71, THENCE NORTHEASTERLY
TO SAID POINT ON SAID CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 126
AFORESATD; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID ROUTE 126 CENTER LINE
AND TO SATD ROUTE 71 CENTER LINE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID
ROUTE 71 CENTER LINE, 30.58 FEET TO SAID WEST LINE; THENCE
SOUTHERTY ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 78.83 FEET, TO THE POINT OF
BEGINNING (EXCEPTING THEREFRCM THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER
OF SECTICN 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FCLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE NCRTH OC DEGREES 00
MINUTES 38 SECONDS EAST, ON A BEARING REFERENCED TG AN ASSUMED
NORTH, 1,925.21 FEET ON THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER;
THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 22 SECONDS EAST, 58.55 FERT TO
THE EXISTING SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF A F.A.P. ROUTE
311 {TI. ROUTE 71) AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 12
DEGREES 34 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST, 35.28 FEET ON SAID
SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY
LINE OF $.B.I. ROUTE 66 (IL ROUTE 126); THENCE SOUTH 70 DEGREES
08 MINUTES 35 SECONDS EAST, 125.66 FEET ON SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT
OF WAY LINE; THENCE NORTH 81 DEGREES 09 MINUTES 04 SECONDS WEST,
51.85 FEET; THENCE NCRTH 76 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST,
163.47 FEET TO TEE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP,
KENDALL COUNTY, TILLINOIS.

PARCEL “G” DESCRIPTION
THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36

NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS:
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COMMENCING AT THE SQUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER;:
THENCE NORTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOQUTHWEST QUARTER,
798.60 FEET TO AN OLD CLAIM LINE FCR A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE
NORTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 1,118.27 FEET; THENCE
SQUTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE WHICH FORMS AN ANGLE OF 28 DEGREES 33
MINUTES 54 SECONDS WITH THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE, MEASURED
COUNTERCLOCEWISE THEREFROM, 228.53 FEET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY
ALONG A LINE WHICH FORMS AN ANGLE OF 178 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 35
SECONDS WITH THE LAST DESCRIBED CQURSE, MEASURED COUNTERCLOCKWISE
THEREFROM, 112.67 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN PARALLEL WITH AND 160.0
FEET NORMALLY DISTANT, FASTERLY OF SAID WEST LINE; THENCE
SOUTHERLY ALCNG SAID PARALLEL LINE, 717.44 FEET TO SAID CLAIM
LINE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CLAIM LINE, 188.42 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN KENDALL TOWNSEIP, KENDALL CCUNTY,
ILLINOIS.

PARCEL “J” DESCRIPTION

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36
NCRTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SCUTHWEST CCRNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER;
THENCE NORTH ATONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1995.6
FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF TLLINOIS ROUTE 71; THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THF SAID CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS RQUTE 71, A
DISTANCE OF 1411.3 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE EXTENDED NORTHWESTERLY
OF THE PUBLIC ROAD RUNNING SOQUTHEASTERLY FROM SAID ILLINOIS ROUTE
71, COMMONLY XNOWN AS WING ROAD; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG THE
EXTENDED CENTER LINE AND THE CENTER LINE OF SALD PUBLIC ROAD,
BEING ALONG A LINE THAT FORMS AN ANGLE OF 93 DEGREES 25 MINUTES
TO THE RIGHT WITH THE PROLONGATION NORTHEASTERLY OF THE TANGENT
70 THE CENTER LINE OF SAID ILLINOIS RQUTE 71 AT THE LAST
DESCRTIBED POINT, 761 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE
SOUTHWESTERLY ATONG A LINE THAT FORMS AN ANGLE OF 79 DEGREES 47
MINUTES TC THE RIGHT WITH THE PROLONGATION OF THE LAST DESCRIBED
LINE, 265.6 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 126; THENCE
SQUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 12¢ TO THE
CENTER LINE OF THE EASTERLY FORK OF THE PUBLIC ROAD AFORESAID
WHICH RUNS SQUTHEASTERLY FROM SAID ILLINOIS ROUTE 71; THENCE
NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE CENTER LINE OF SAID PUBLIC ROAD TO TEE
POINT OF BEGINNING; IN THE TOWNSHIP OF KENDALL, KENDALL COUNTY,
ILLINOIS.

PARCEL “K” DESCRIFPTION
THAT PART OF THE NORTH HALF OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH,

RANGE 7 BAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS:
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COMMENCING AT THE NCRTHEAST CORNER CF THE SQUTHWEST QUARTER OF
SATD SECTION 3; THENCE SOUTH 0 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 44 SECONDS WEST
ATONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER, 1284.36 FREET;
THENCE NORTH 89 DEGREES 47 MINUTES 31 SECONDS WEST, 684.42 FEET;
TEENCE NORTH 09 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 39 SECONDS WEST, 5%0.03 FEET
TG THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF A TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO ELSIE BOYD
BY A DEED DATED MARCH 25, 1929 RND RECORDED DECEMBER 14, 19238 IN
DEED RECORD BOOK 88 ON PAGE 39%; THENCE NORTH 09 DEGREES 05
MINUTES 46 SECONDS WEST, 748.40 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF
ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE NO. 71; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SALD
CENTER LINE, BEING ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF
11,459.20 FEET AND A RADIAL BEARING OF NORTH 26 DEGREES 50
MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST AT THE LAST DESCRIBED POINT, 627.46¢ FEET;
THENCE NORTH 60 DEGREFS 02 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID
CENTER LINE, 332.0 FEET FOR A PQINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 12
DEGREES 27 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, 264.0 FEET; THENCE SOUTH B84
DEGREES 27 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST, 202.0 FEET; THEENCE NORTH 0
DEGREES 42 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST, 432.02 FEET TC SAID CENTER
LINE; THENCE SCUTH 60 DEGREES 02 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST, ALONG
CENTER LINE, 291.76 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE
TOWNSEIP OF KENDALL, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

PARCEL “L” DESCRIPTION

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36
NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SQUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER;
THENCE NORTH ATONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1995.6
FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 71; THENCE EASTERLY
ALONG SAID CENTER LINE 32.2 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS
ROUTE 126; THENCE SQUTHEASTERLY ALONG SATD CENTER LINE OF
ILLINOTS ROUTE 126, 1049.7 FEET FOR THE PCINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY AT RIGHT ANGLES TO SAID CENTER LINE, 339.9
FEET TO AN OLD CLAIM LINE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID OLD
CLAIM LINE WHICH MAKES AN ANGLE OF 44 DEGREES 21 MINUTES
(MEASURED CLOCKWISE FROM THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE) 468.6 ¥EET TO
THE CENTER LINE OF SAID ILLINOIS ROUTE 126¢; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY
ALONG SAID CENTER LINE 328.1 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, LN
THF TOWNSHIP OF KFENDALL, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS, EXCEPT THAT
PREVIOUSLY ANNEXED.

{PARCELS CONTAIN 78.145 ACRES MORE OR LESS.)



EXHIBIT A-2

PARCEL “A" DESCRIPTION

THAT PART OF THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE
7 BAST OF THE THIRD PRINCTPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE CENTER OF 3AID SECTION 3; THENCE SQUTH 00
DEGREES 14 MINUTES 45 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 3, 1,284.36 FEET; THENCE SOUTH
89 DEGREES 50 MINUTES 00 SECCONDS WEST, 684.42 FEET; THENCE NORTH
09 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST, 5%2.27 FEET FOR THE POINT
OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 57 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 55 SECONDS WEST,
327.57 FEET TC THE EASTERLY LINE OF WING ROAD; THENCE NORTH Z1
DEGREES 52 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE
705.85% FEET TO THE SQUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE
71; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALCNG SAID SCUTHERLY LINE, BEING ALONG A
CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 11,509.16 FEET; A DISTANCE
OF 472.3%9 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN NCRTH (09 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 00
SECONDS WEST FROM THE PCINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTIH 09 DEGREES
30 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID LINE, 625.72 FEET TC THE
POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE TOWNSHIP? OF KENDALL, KENWDALL COUNTY,
ILLINOIS.

PARCEL "H" DESCRIPTION

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTICN 3, TOWNSHIP 36
NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER;
THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE
WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER, 1,995.75 FEET TO THE
CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE NO. 71; THENCE NORTH 71
DEGCREES 23 MINUTES 59 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE,
30.45 FEET TO THE POINT OF INTERSECTION OF SATD CENTER LINE
WITH CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE NC. 126 FOR THE
POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 71 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 59
SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID ROUTE 71 CENTER LINE, 230.67 FEET TO A
POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG A CURVE TO THE
LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 11,459.20 FEET WHICH IS TANGENT TO
THE LAST DESCRIBED CCURSE AT THE LAST DESCRIBED POINT AT THE
LAST DESCRIPTION POINT, 1,141.60 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION WITH
TEE CENTER LINE EXTENDED NORTHWESTERLY OF WING ROAD; THENCE
SOUTH 21 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST ALONG SATID WING
ROAD CENTER LINE, 761.0 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 58 DEGREES 16
MINUTES 47 SECONDS WEST, 265.38 FEET TO SAID ROUTE 126 CENTER
LINF; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID ROUTE 126 CENTER LINE,
BEING ALONG A CURVE TC THE LEFT AND HAVING A RADIUS OF
2,292.01 FEET WHICH IS TANGENT TO A LINE DRAWN NORTH 72 DEGREE



EXHIBIT A-2

57 MINUTES 06 SECONDS WEST FROM THE LAST DESCRIBED POINT,
147.83 FEET; THENCE NORTH 76 DEGREES 38 MINUTES 49 SECONDS
WEST ALONG SAID ROUTE 126 CENTER LINE, 850.98 FEET; THENCE
NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID ROUTE 126 CENTER LINE, BEING ALONG A
CURVE TO THE RIGHT AND HAVING A RADIUS OF 2,148.795 FEET WHICH
1§ TANGENT TO THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE AT THE LAST DESCRIBED
POINT, 383.53 FEET TO THE PCINT CF BEGINNING, EXCEPTING
THEREFROM THAT PART DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: THAT PART OF THE
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTICN 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER;
THENCE NORTE 00 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE
WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER, 1,995.75 FEET TO THE
CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE 71; THENCE NORTH 71
DEGREES 23 MINUTES 59 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID ROUTE 71 CENTER
LINE, 261.12 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF
11,459.20 FEET WHICH IS TANGENT TO THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE,
1,141.60 FEET TO THE INTERSECTION WITE THE CENTER LINE
EXTENDED NORTHWESTERLY OF WING ROAD ¥OR THE POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 21 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST
ALONG SATD WING ROAD CENTER LINE, 258.05 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 68
DEGREES 29 MINUTES 47 SECONDS WEST, 200.0 FEET; THENCE NORTH
21 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 13 SECONDS WEST, PARALLEL WITH SAID WING
ROAD CENTER LINE, 250.0 FEET TO SAID ROUTE 71 CENTER LINE;
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALCNG SAID ROUTE 71 CENTER LINE, 200.1%6
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE UNITED CITY OF
YORKVILLE, XENDALL COUNTY, ILLINCIS, AND ALSO EXCEPTING,

THAT PART OF THE SOUTEWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3 IN TOWNSHTIP 36
NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST CF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, KENDALL
COUNTY, ILLINOILS, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS WITH BEARINGS
REFERENCED TO THEE ILLINOIS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM EAST
ZONE (NADS3).

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF
SATD SECTION 3; THENCE NORTH 01 DEGREE 35 MINUTES 30 SECONDS
WEST, 1,995.04 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST
QUARTER TO THE CENTER LINE COF A PUBLIC HIGHWAY DESIGNATED IL
71; THENCE NCORTH 69 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 12 SECONDS EAST, 31.52
FEET ALONG SATID CENTER LINE TO THE PCINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE
NORTH 69 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 19 SECONDS EAST, 230.66 FEET ALONG
SAID CENTER LINE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, 940.58 FEET ALONG AN
11,479.02 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TC THE LEFT HBAVING A CHORD BEARING
NORTE 67 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 29 SECONDS EAST, 940.31 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 22 DEGREES 56 MINUTES 31 SECONDS EAST, 60.03
FEET; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, 418.10 FEET ON AN 11,539.02 FOOT
RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A CHORD BEARING SOUTH 66
DEGREES 146 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, 418.08 FEET; THENCE SOUTH
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59 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 09 SECONDS WEST, 71.10 FEET; THENCE
SOUTH 25 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 24 SECONDS WEST, 60.52 FRET;
THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY, 57(0.8&7 FEET ON AN 875.00 FOOT RADIUS
CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A CHORD BEARING SOUTH 55 DEGREES 22
MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST, 560.80 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 74 DEGREES
04 MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST, 274.41 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 64
DEGREES 05 MINUTES 29 SECONDS BEAST, 35.85 FEET; THENCE SO0UTH
56 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST, 64.56 FEET TO THE
CENTER LINE OF A PUBLIC HIGHWAY DESIGNATED IL 12Z6; THENCE
NORTHWESTERLY, 162.08 FEET ON SAID CENTER LINE BEING A
2,291.64 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A CHORD BEARING
NORTH 76 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 12 SECONDS WEST, 1€2.05 FEERT;
TEENCE NORTH 78 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 46 SECONDS WEST, 357.37
FEET ON SAID CENTER LINE; THENCE NORTH 53 DEGREES 52 MINUTES
46 SECONDS WEST, 96.76 FERT TO THE EXISTING NORTHERLY RIGHT OF
WAY LINE OF Il 126; THENCE NCRTHWESTERLY, 297.03 FEET CON A
990.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A CHORD BEARING
NORTH 45 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 03 SECONDS WEST, 295.92 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 36 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 21 SECONDS WEST, 23.77
FEET; THENCE NORTH 77 DEGREES 19 MINUTES 38 SECONDS WEST,
84.74 FEET; THENCE SCUTH 69 DEGREES 03 MINUTES 36 SECONDS
WEST, 100.61 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 69 DEGREES 55 MINUTES 52
SECONDS WEST, 149.98 FEET TO THE SCOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE
OF SATD IL 71; THENCE SOUTH 65 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 40 SECONDS
WEST, 113.94 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF SAID IL 126; THENCE
NORTHWESTERLY, 119.55 FEET ON SAID CENTER LINE BEING A
2,170.59 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A CHORD BEARING
NORTH 69 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 17 SECONDS WEST, 119.54 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

(PARCELS CONTAIN 15.323 ACRES MORE CR LESS.)
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BXHIBIT “C* B-3 SERVICE BUSINESS DISTRICT

"THAT PART OF THE WEST HALF OF SECTION 3, TOWNSEIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD FRINCIPAL MERIDIAN
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE CENTER OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE SOUTH 00 L4"45" EAST, ALONG THE
EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER. OF SAID SECTION 3, 1284.36 FEBT; THENCE SOUTH 89°30°00” WEST, 684.42 FEET
THENCE NORTH 09°30°00" WEST, 592,27 FEET; THENCE SOUTH S7°33°55" WEST, 327,57 FEET TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF WING
ROAL, THENCE NORTH 21°52'29” WEST, ALONG SAID BASTERLY LINE, 705.85 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY
LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 71 FOR THE POINTOF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 21952°29" BAST, ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE,
L19.9. FEET; THENCE NORTH 68°07'31" BEAST, PERPENDICUTLAR TO SAID EASTERLY LINE, 211.0 FEET; THENCE NORTH 21
©52°29" WEST, PARALLEL WITH SAID EASTRRLY LINR, 131.87 FEET TO SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ILLINOIS
ROUTE 71; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE, BENG A CURVE TO THE RIGHT
WITH A RADIUS OF 11509,16 FEET, AN ARC DISTANGE OF 211 39 FEET TO THE POINT QF BEGINNING TN KENDALL
TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS AND CONTAINING 06060 ACRE. :

THAT PART OF THE WEST HALF QF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE CENTER OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE $OUTH 00°74°¢5 " BAST, ALONG THE
EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER. OF SAID SECTION 3, 1284,36 FEET, THENCE SOUTH 89°5(°00” WEST, 684.42 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 09°30°C0™ WEST, 592.27 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 57°33 55" WEST, 321.57 FEET
TG THB BASTERLY LINE OF WING ROAD; THENCE NORTH 21°52'29" WEST, ALONG SAID BASTERLY LINE, 586.85 FEET TO A
POINT ON SAID EASTERLY LINE WHICH IS 119.0 FEET (MEASURED ALONG SAID EASTERLY LINE) SQUTHEASTERLY OF THE
SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 71; THENCE NORTH 68°07"3 1” BAST, PERPENDICULAR TO SAID
EASTERLY LINE, 211.0 FEET; THENCE NORTH 21°5229" WEST, PARALLEL WITH SAID EASTERLY LINE, 131.87 FBET TO SAID
SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF l{,LINGIS ROUTE 71; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY, ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-
WAY LINE, BEING A CURVE TO THE LEFT WITH A RADIUS OF 11509.16 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 26103 FERTTO A LINE
 DRAWN NORTH 09°30°00” WEST FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 09°30°00” BAST, ALONG SAID LINE, 695,72
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOTS AND CONTAINING 5.6041 ACRES,

THAT PART OF THE NORTH 1/2 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIFR 35 NORTH, RANGE 7 BAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MBRIDIAN,
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SAID SECTION 3;
THENCE SOUTH 0 DEGREES, 07 MINUTES, 44 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4, 1284.36 FEET;
- THENCE NOR'TH 89 DEGREES, 47 MINUTRS, 31 SECONDS WHST, 684.42 FEET; THENCE NORTH 60 T'BGREES, 32 MINUTES, 30
SECONDS WEST, §90.03 FEET TO THE SOUTHBAST CORNER OF A TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED 1O BLSIE BOYD BY A DBED
DATED MATCH 25, 1929 AND RECORDED DECEMBER 14, 1938 IN DEED RECORD BGOK 88 ON PAGE 399; THENCE NORTH 09
DEGREES, 05 MINUTES, 46 SECONDS WEST, 748.40 FERT TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE TIC. 71; THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY-ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, BEING ALONG A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1,459.20 FBET
AND A RADIAL BEARING OF NORTH 26 DEGREES, 50 MINUTES, 30 SECONDS WEST AT THE LAST DESCRIBED FOINT, 62746,
THENCE NORTH 60 DEGREES, 02 MINUTES, 30 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, 332.0 FEET FOR A POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH 12 DEGRERS, 27 MINUTES, 30 SECONDS EAST, 264.0 FBET: THENCE SOUTH 84 DEGREES, 27
MINIFTES, 30 SECONDS EAST, 2020 REET: THENCE NORTH 0 DEGREES, 47MINUTES, 30 SBCONDS WEST, 423,02 FEET TO SAID
CENTER LINE: THENCE §OUTH 60 DEGREES, 02 MINUTES, 30 SECONDS WEST ALONG CENTER LINE, 291.76 FEET TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE TOWNSHIP OF KENDALL, KENDALJ, COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

. THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST, NORTHWEST AND SOUTHWEST QUARTERS OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGB 7
EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: . COMMENCING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER
OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE BEAST LINE OF
SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1284.36 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 68030 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 09 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 27 SBCONDS WEST £0.0 BEET FOR A POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 09 DEGREES, 33 MINUTES 27 SECONDS WEST 579.63 FEET TO THE SOUTHBEAST CORNER OF A
TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED TO ELSIE BOYD BY A DEED DATED MARCH 25, 1929 AND RECORDED DECEMSBER 14, 1938 IN

. DEED RECORD BOOK. 88 ON PAGE 399; THENCE NORTH 0¢ DEGREES 05 MINUTES 24 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE EAST LINE
OF SAID BOYD TRACT 744.57 FEET FO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOJS STATE ROUTE NO, 71; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY
ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, BEING ALONG A CURVE TO THE LERT HAVING A
RADIUS OF 11, 459.20 FEET AND A RADIAL BEARING OF NORTH 26 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 16 SECONDS WEST AT THRE LAST
DESCRIBED POINT 627.46 FBET,; THENCE NOKTH 60 DEGREBS 02 MINUTES 30 SECONDS BEAST ALONG SAIL) CENTER LINE
332.0 FERT; THENCE SOUTH 12 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST 264.0 FEET; THENCE SQUTH 84 DEGREES 27

MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST 202.0 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST 423.02 FBET TO SAID

CENTER LINE; THENCE NORTH 60 DEGREES 02 MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE 412.69 FEET 10 &

LINE DRAWN NORTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 46 SECONDS FAST PARALLEL WITH TILE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST

QUARTER, FROM A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER WHICH IS 598.62 FERT EASTERLY OF THE

SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID NORTHEAST QUARTER: THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST ALONG

SAID PARALLEL LINE 830.56 FEET TO SAID SOUTH LINE; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREBS 34 MINUTES 48 SECONDS WEST

ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE 598.62 FEET TO SAID SCUTHWHST CORNER; THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 48

SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID EAST LINR 1275.36 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN SOUTH 89 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 33 SECONDS

EAST FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 89 DEGRERS 40 MINUTES 33 SECONDS WEST 681.94 FEET TO THE

POINT OF BEGINNING IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINGIS

A PERPETUAL EASEMENT FOR THE OPERATION, MAINTENANCE AND USE OF A SEPTIC FIELD FOR THE BENEFIT OF PARCEL
ONE HEREINABOVE DESCRIBED, UNDER AND UPON THE FOLLOWING DESCRIBED PARCEL OF REAL ESTATE CONTIGUOUS



TO PARCEL ONB TO WIT:

COMMBENCING AT THE MOST NORTHERLY CORNER GF PARCEL ONE HEREINABOVE DESCRIBED ON THE CENTER LINE OF
ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE NUMBER 126; THENCE SOUTH 45 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 49 SECONDS WEST, 47.12 FEBT TO THE
SQUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE NUMBER 126, FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE
CONTINUING SQUTH 45 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 49 SECONDS WEST, 105.0 FERT; THENCE NORTH 32 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 38
SECONDS WEST, 152.18 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 76 DEGREES 09 MINUTES 49 SECONDS BAST, 5.28 PEEP; THENCE SOUTH 70
DEGREES 39 MINUTES 49 SECONDS BAST, 158.65 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP, ALL IN
EENDALL COUNTY ILLINOJS,

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 14 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTIL, RANGE 7, EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE
NORTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 114, 798.60 FEET TO AN OLD CLAIM LINE; THENCE NORTHERLY
ALONG SAD WEST LINE, 1118.27 FEET A POINT OF BEGINNING THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE WHICH FORMS AN
ANGLE OF 28 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 54 SECONDS WITH THE LAST DESCRIBED
COURSE, MEASURBD COUNTERCLOCKWISE THEREFROM, 228.53 FEET; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE WHICH

FORMS AN ANGLE OF 178 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 35 SECONDS WITH THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE, MEASURED
COUNTERCLOCKWISE THEREFROM, 112.67 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN PARALLEL WITH AND 160.0 FEET NORMALLY DISTANT,
EASTHERLY OF SAID WEST LINE; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAIL} PARALLEL LINE, 717.44 FEET TO SAID CLATM LINE;
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAD CLAIM LINE, 541,92 FEET TO A POINT ON A LINE DRAWN SOUTHWESTERLY,
PERPENDICULAR TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE RGUTE NO. 126 FROM A PGINT ON $AID CENTER LINE WHIGH 3
104976 FEBT, AS MEASURED ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, SOUTHEASTERLY OF THE INTERSECTION OF SAD CENTER LINE
-WITH THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE 71; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY TO SAID POINT ON SAID CENTER LINE
OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 126 ARFORESAID; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID ROUTE 126 CENTER LINE AND TO SAID
ROUTE 71 CENTER LINB; THENCE SOUTHWRSTERLY ALONG SAID ROUTE 71 CENTER. LINE, 30.58 FEET 70 SAID WEST LINE;
THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 78.83 FEET, TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING (BEXCEFTING THEREFROM THA'T
PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 BAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN,
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT HE SOUTHWEST CORN R OF SA!D SECTION, 3; THENCE NORTH 60 DEGREES 00
MINUTES 38 SECONDS BAST, ON 4 BEARING REFERENCED TO AN ASSUMED NORTH, 1925.21 FEET ON THE WEST LINE OF
SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4; THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 50 MINUTES 22 SECONDS BAST 58.55 FEET TO THE EXISTING
SOUTHEASTERLY RIGHY OF WAY LINE-OF A.F.A.D. ROUTE 311 (IL ROUTE 71) AND THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE

“ NORTH 72 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 00 SECONDS EAST 35.28 FBET ON SAID SOUTHBASTHRLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE TO THR
SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF 8.B.L ROUTE 66 (L ROUTE 126); THENCE SOUTH 70 PRGREES 08 MINUTES 35 SECONDS
EAST 125.66 FEET ON SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE; THENCE NORTH £1 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 04 SECONDS WEST
51.85 FEEY; THENCE NORTH 76 DEGREES 30 MINUTES 40 SECONDS WEST 103.47 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING), IN

KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 BAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL

" MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS ROLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SATD SOUTHWESTL/A; THENCE
NORTHERLY ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4, 798.60 FEET TO AN OLD CLAIM LINE FOR A POINT OF
BBGINNING; THENCE NORTHEREY ALONG SAID WRST LINE, 111827 FERT; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG A LINE
WHICH FORMS AND ANGLE OF 28 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 5¢ SECONDS WITH THE LAST
DESCRIBED COURSE, MEASURE) COUNTERCLOCK WISE THEREFROM, 228.53 FEET; THENCE SOUTHBASTERLY ALONG A
LINE WHICH FORMS AN ANGLE OF 178 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 35 SECONDS WITH TILE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE,
MEASURED COUNTERCLOCKWISE THEREFROM, 112.67 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN PARALLEL WITH AN) 1609 FEET
NORMALLY DISTANT, EASTERLY OR SAID WEST LINE; THENCE SOUTHERLY ALONG SAID PARALLYL LINE, 717.44 REET TO
SAID CLAIM LINE; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CLAIM LINE, 188.42 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN
KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINCIS. :

. THAT PART-OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL.
MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHW EST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER;
THENCE NORTH ALONG THE WHST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER. 1995.6 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS
ROUTE 71; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG THE SAID CENTER LINE OF TLLINOIS ROUTE 71, 1411.3 FEET TO THB CENTER
LINE EXTENDED NORTAWESTERLY OF THE PUBLIC RGAD RUNNING SOUTHEASTERLY FROM SAID ILLINOIS ROUTE 71,
COMMONLY KNOWN AS WING ROAD; THENCE SOUTHHEASTERLY ALONG TILE EXTENDED CENTER LINE AND THE CENTER
LINE OF SAID PUBLIC ROAD, BEING ALONG A LINE THAT FORMS AN ANGLE OF 93 DEGREES 25 TO THE RIGHT WITH THE
PROLONGATION NORTHEASTERLY OF THE FANGENT TO THE CENTER LINE OF SAID ILLINOIS ROUTE 71 AT THE LAST
DESCRIBED POINT, 761 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG A LINE THAT FORMS AN
ANGLE OF 79 DEGREHS 47° TO THE RIGHT WITH THE PROLONGATION OF THE LAST DESCRIBED LINE 265.6 FEET 70 THE
CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 126; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTER LINT OF ILLINOIS ROUTE 126 TO
THE CENTER LINE OF THB BASTERLY FORK OF THE FUBLIC ROAD AFORESAID WHICH RUNS SOUTHEASTERLY FROM SAID
LLINOIS ROUTE 71; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG THE CENTER LINE OF SAID PUBLIC ROAD TO THE POINT OF )
BEGINNING; TO THE TOWNSHIP OF KENDALL, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.

GRANTEE HEREBY ASSUMES AND AGREES TO PAY THE UNPAID BALANCE ON THE EXISTING MORTGAGE RECORDED IN
BOOK PAGE , THE DEBT SECURED THEREBY AND ALSO HEREBY ASSUMES -THE OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE TERN OF THE
INSTRUMENTS CREATING THE LOANS DOCUMENT NO, 7%--1053.

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SQUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER;



‘THENCE - NORTH 00 DBGREES 08 MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST ATONG-THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTEK, -
1,995.75 FBET TO THE CENTER LINE OF 1LLINOIS STATE ROUTE NO. 71; THENCE NORTH 71 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 59

59 SECONDS BAST ALONG SAID ROUTE 71 CENTER LINE 230.67 FEET TO A FOINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG A CURVE TO-THE. LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 11,459.20 FEET WHICH [$ TANGENT T0 THE LAST
DESCRIBED COURSE AT THE LAST DESCRIBED POINT AT THE LAST DESCRIPTION POINT, 1,141,60 FEET TO THB

NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID ROUTE 126 CENTERLING BEING ALONG A CURVE TO 'FHE RIGHT AND HAVING A RADIUS
-OF 2,148.79 FEET WHICH IS TANGENT TO THE LAST DESCRIBED COURSE AT THE LAST DESCRIBED POINT, 383.53 FBET TO
THB POINT OF BEGINNING, EXCEPTING THEREFROM THAT PART DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: THAT PART OF THE
SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36- NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE-SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER; THENCE NORTH
00 DEGREES 0§ MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST ALONG -THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1995.75 FEET T0 THE
CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE 7t; THENCE NORTH 71 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 59 SECONDS BAST ALONG SAID
ROUTE 71 CENTER LINE 261.12 FEET TO A POINT OF CURVATURE; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG A CURVE ‘10 THE
LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 15,459.20 FEET WHICH 1§ TANGENT TO THE LAST-DESCRIBED COURSE 1141.60 FEET TO THE
INTERSECTION-WITH THE CENTER LINE EXTENDED NORTHWESTERLY OF WING ROAD FOR THE POINT OF
. BEGINNING(THENCE SOUTH 21 DEGRBES 30 MINUTES 13 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID WING ROAD CENTER LINE 258.05

SECONDS WEST PARALYEL WITH SAID WING ROAD CENTER LINE 250.0 FEET TO SAID ROUTE 71 CENTER LINE; THENCE -
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID ROUTE71 CENTER LINE 200.16 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, IN THE UNITED CIiTY OF
YORKVILLE, KENDALL COUNTY, (ILLINCGIS, AND ALSO EXCEPTING, THAT PART QF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF
SECTION 3 IN TOWNSHIP 38 NOKTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, KENDALL COUNTY, JLLINOIS,
DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS WITH BEARINGS REFERENCED TO THE {LLINOIS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM EAST

ZONE (NADE3):

. HIGHWAY DESIGNATED IL 126; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, 162,08 FEET ON'SAID CENTERLINE BEING A 2,200.64 FOOT
RADIUS CURVE TG TH.E LEFT HAVING A CHORD BEARING NORTH 76 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 12 SECONDS WEST, 162.05 FEET;
THENCE NORTH 78 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 46 SECONDS 'WEST, 357.37 FEET ON SAID CENTERLINE; THENCE NORTH 53
DEGREES 52 MINUTES 46 SECONDS WEST, 96.76 FEET TO THE EXISTING NORTHERLY RIGHT OF WAY LINE OF IL 126;
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, 297.03 FEET ON A 990.00 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A CHORD BEARING
NORTH 45 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 03 SECONDS WEST, 205.92 EEBT; THENCE NORTH 36 DEGREES 39 MINUTES 21 SECONDS
WEST, 23.77 FEET; THENCE NORTH 77 DEGREES 19 M| 36'SECONDS WEST, 64.74 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 69 DRGREES (3

TO THE CENTERLINE OF SAID I1. 126; THENCE
NORTHWESTERLY, 119.55 FEET ON SAID CENTERLINE BEING A 2,170.59 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO THE RIGHT HAVING A

CHORD BEARING NORTH 69 DEGREES 20 MINUTES §7 SBCONDS WEST, 119.54 FEET TG THR POINT OF BEGINNING. ‘
THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGR 7 FAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER. OF SAID SOUTHWEST
QUARTER; THENCE NORTH 07°44”EAST ALONG THE SAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1236.34 FEET TO A
POINT ON SAID EAST LINE WHICH IS 1284.36 FERT SOUTH OF THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST
QUARTER; THENCE NORTH 89°47'31” WEST, 684.42 FEET; THENCE NORTH 09°32'39" WEST, 590.03 FEET

TO THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF A TRACT OF LAND CONVEYED 10 BLSIE BGYD BY DEED DATED MARCH 25,1920

AND RECORDED DECEMBER 14, 1938 IN DEED RECORD $8 ON PAGE 399, FOR THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE SOUTH 57°58 56" WEST ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID BOYD TRACT AND SAID SOUTHERLY LINE
EXTENDED 352.89 FEET ¥O THE CENTER LINE OF WING ROAD; THENCE SOUTH 21°28°35" BAST ALONG SAID
CENTERLINE 131.00 FEET; THENCE NORTII 57958 56 EASTPARALLEL WITH SAID SOUTHBRLY LINE 323,58 FERT

TO A POINT WHICH IS SOUTH 09°32°39" EAST, 139.37 FEET FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH

09°32°39” WEST, 139.37 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, N THE TQWNSHIP OF KENDALY, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOS.



THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 BAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL
MERIDIAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THR SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER;

. THENCE NORTH ALGNG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST QUARTER 1995.6 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS
ROUTE 71; THENCE BASTBRLY ALONG SAID CENTER LINE 32.2 FEET T THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS ROUTR 126; THENCE
SCUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIE ROUTE 126, 1049.7 FEET FOR. THE POINT, OF BEGINNING; THBENCE
SOUTHWESTERLY AT RIGHT ANGLES TO SAID CENTER LINE, 339.5 FEET TO AN OLD CLAM EINE; THENCE
NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID OLD CLAIM LINE WHICH MAKES AN ANGLE OF 44'21" (MEASURED CLOCKWISE FROM THE
LAST DESCRIBED COURSY) 468.6 FEET TO THE CENTER LINE OF SAID ILLINOIS ROUTE 126; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY
ALONG SAID CENTER LINE 328.1 FEBT TO THE POINT OR BEGINNING, IN THE TOWNSHIP OF KENDALL, KENDALL COUNTY,
ILLINOIS. EXCEPT THEREFROM THE BELOW DESCRIBED PARCEL:

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MBRIDHAN, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS WiTH BEARINGS
REFERENCED TO THE ILLINOIS STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM EAST ZONE (NADS3)

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID SECTION 3; THENCE NORTH 01
DEGREE 35 MINUTES 30 SECONDS WEST, 1,995.04 FEET ALONG THE WEST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF SAID
SECTION 3 TO THE ‘CENTBRLINE OF A PUBLIC HIGHWAY DESIGNATED IL 71; THENCE NORTH 60 DEGREES 55 MINUTES
{2 SECONDS BAST, 31.52 FEET ALONG SAID CENTERLINE TO THE CENTERLINE OF A PUBLIC RIGHWAY DESIGNATED IL
126; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTERLINE, 389.15 FEET ALONG A 2,170.59 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TG THR
LEFT HAVING A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 73 DEGREES 0 MINUTE 41 SECONDS EAST, 398.58 FEET THENCE SOUTH 78
DEGREES 17 MINUTES 46 SECONDS EAST, 649.36 FEET ALONG SAID CENTERLINE TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

FROM THE POINT OF BEGINNING, THENCE SOUTH 78" DEGREES 17 MINUTES 46 SECONDS EASY, 172,16 FEET ALONG SAID
CENTERLINE; THENCE SOUTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTERLINE, 162.08 FEET ALONG A 2,291,64 FOOT RADIUS CURVE TO
THE RIGHT HLAVING A CHORD BEARING OF SOUTH 76 DEGREES 16 MINUTES 12 SECONDS EAST, 162.05 FEET; THENCE
SOUTH 56 DEGREES 32 MINUTES 11 SECONDS WEST, 65.63 FEBT; TRENCE NORTH 74 DEGREES 04 MINUTES 13 SECONDS
WEST, 5.13 FEET; THENCE NORTH 65 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 14 SECONDS WEST, 50.57 FERT, TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF
WAY LINE OF I, 126; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, 61.11 FEET ON SAID RIGHT OF WAY LINE BEING ON A 2,251.64 FOOT
RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A CHORD BEARING OF NORTH 77 DEGREBS 31 MENUTES 09 SECONDS WEST, 61.11
FEET; THENCE NORTH 78 DEGREES 17 MINUTES 46 SECONDS WHST, 172.27 FEET ALONG SAID SOUTH RIGHT OF WAY LINE;
"FHENCE NORTH i1 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 1¢ SECONDS BAST, 40.00 FERT TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.267
ACRE MORE OR LESS, OF WHICH 0.290 ACRE, MORE OR, LESS, 18 LYING WITHIN PUBLIC ROAD RIGHT OF WAY, SITUATED IN
THE COUNTY OF KENDALL AND STATE OF JELINOIS, HEREBY RELEASING AND WAVING ALL RIGHTS UNDER AND BY
VIRTUR OF THE HOMESTEAD EXEMPTION LAWS OF THE STATE.



EXHIBIT “C-1”
Windmill Farms - B-3 Service Business Permitted Uses

This exhibit lists all permitted uses within the B-3 Service Business District as they exist
in the current Zoning Ordinance. Uses excluded and not permitted by this Agreement are

crossed out as follows: (ret-permitted-use)

OFFICE DISTRICT (O)

Advertising agency.

Bank (allowable by provisions of Windmill Agreement)
Barber shop.

Beauty shop.

Bookkeeping service.

Coftee shop.

College, university or junior college.
Commercial school, trade school - offering training in classroom study.
Detective agency.

Employment office.

Engineering office.

Government office.

Income tax service.

Insurance office.

Library.

Manufacturing agent's office.
Medical clinic.

Park.

Professional offices.

Public accountant.

Real estate office.

Stenographic service,

Stock broker.

Telegraph office.

TFielet-office:

Title company.

Travel agency.

Utility office. (Ord. 1973-56A, 3-28-74)

Special Uses

LIMITED BUSINESS DISTRICT (B-1)
All uses permitted in the O district.
Antique sales.
single family] Lin busi buildines.
Bakery - retail.




Barbershop.
Beauty shop.
Bookstore.
Cafeteria (diner).
Camera shop.
Church or other place of worship.
Cipar e e .
Clothes - pressing and repair.
i .
Community center.
Dressmaker - seamstress.
Drugstore.
Florist sales.
Fruit and vegetable market - retail.
Gift shop.
Grocery store - supermarket.
Gymnasium.
Health food store.
Hobby shop.
Hospital (general).
Hospital or treatment center.
Household furnishing shop.
Ice cream shop.
Jewelry - retail.
Laundry, cleaning and dyeing - retail.
Library.
Magazineand-nevwsstand:
Meat market.
Medical clinic.
Mortuary - funeral home.
Park.
Photography studio.
Playground.
Post office.
Professional building.
Recreation center.
Restaurant.
Shoe and hat repair.
Substation:
Swimming pool - indoor.

Tennis club - private or daily fee.
ila L)

GENERAL BUSINESS DISTRICT (B-2)




All uses permitted in the O and B-1 Districts.
Appliances - sales.
Army/Navy surplus sales.
Art gallery - art studio sales.
Art supply store.
fitori

Automatic food service.
Automobile accessory store.
Automobile rental.

Bicycle shop.

Billiard parlor.

Blueprint and photostat shop.
Bowling-aHey-

Carry-out food service.
Catalog sales office.
Clothing store - all types.
Danee-hat-

Department store.

Discount store.

Drygoods store - retail.

Floor covering sales.
Furniture sales - new/used.
Hardware store.

Health club or gymnasium.
Hotel.

Interior decorating studio.
Junior department store.
Leather goods.

Locksmith.

Motel.

Music, instrument and record store.
Newspaper publishing.
Office equipment and supply sales.
Paint/wallpaper store.
Pawnshep-

Personal loan agency.

Pet store,

Picture frame store.

Radio and television studios.
Reduecingsalonmasseur-and-stearn-bath.
Sporting goods.

Stationery.

Taxidermist.

Theater.

Toy store.

Typewriter - sales and repair.



Variety store.
Watch and clock sales and repair.
Weaving and mending - custom. (Ord. 1973-56A, 3-28-1974; amd. 1994 Code)

SERVICE BUSINESS DISTRICT (B-3)

All uses permitted in the B-2 district.

Agricultural implement sales and service.

Appliance - service only.

Automotive sales and service.

Boatsales:

Building material sales.

Business machine repair.

Car wash without mechanical repair on the premises.
Catering service.

Daycare (allowable by provisions of Windmill Agreement)
Drive-in restaurant.

Electrical equipment sales.

Feed and grain sales.

Frozen food locker.

Furniture repair and refinishing.

Gasoline Filling Station (allowable by provisions of Windmill Agreement)
Golf driving range.

Greenhouse.

Kennek

Miniature golf.

Motorcycle sales and service.

Nursery,

Orchard.

Park - commercial recreation.

Plumbing supplies and fixture sales.

Pump sales.

Recreational vehicle sales and service.

Sports-arena:

Faxieab-garage:

Tennis court - indoor.

Fratlerrental:

Fruclrentak

Truck salesandservice:

Upholstery shop.

Veterinary clinic. (Ord. 1973-56A, 3-28-1974; amd. Ord. 1986-1, 1-9-1986; Ord. 1988-7,
4-14-1988; Ord. 1995-19, 8-10-1995; Ord. 1998-21, 6-25-1998; Ord. 2005-58, 7-12-
2005)




EXHIBIT “D” R-4 GENERAL RESIDENCE DISTRICT

THAT PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH
RANGE 7 E4ST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4;
THENCE NORTH 0 DEGREES 08 MINUTES 09 SECONDS WEST ALONG THE
WEST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4, 798.60 FEET TO AN OLD CLATM LINE;
THENCE NORTH 57 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 05 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID
OLD CLAIM LINE 299 .00 FEET FOR A POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE SOUTH
1 DEGREE 51 MINUTES 32 SECONDS WEST, 402.10 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 59
DEGREES 55 MINUTES., 25 SECONDS EAST, 256.51 FEET; THENCE NORTH 59
DEGREES 55 MINUTES 25 SECONDS EAST 355.65 FEET; THENCE NORTH 62
DEGREES 43 MINUTES 29 SECONDS EAST, 853.57 FEET;

THENCE NORTH 33 DEGREES 24 MINUTES 40 SBCONDS EAST,. 542.27 FEET
TO THE CENTER LINE OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE NUMBER 126; THENCE
NORTHWESTERLY ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, BEING ALONG A CURVE TO
THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 2292 .01 FEET AND A RADIAL BEARING OF
SOUTH 29 DEGREES 23 MINUTES 51 SECONDS WEST AT THE LAST
DESCRIBED POINT, 358.41 FEET TO A POINT WHICH IS 151.00 FEET, AS
MEASURED ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, SOUTHEASTERLY OF THE
INTERSECTION OF SAID CENTER LINE AND SAID OLD CLAIM LINE; THENCE
SOUTH 45 DEGREES 05 MINUTES 49 SECONDS WEST, 265 .70 FEET; THENCE
SOUTH 73 DEGREES 54 MINUTES 28 SECONDS WEST, 102.86 FEET; THENCE
SOUTH 84 DEGREES 11 MINUTES 54 SECONDS WEST, 280.96 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 32 DEGREES 00 MINUTES 55 SECONDS WEST, 24.19 FEET TO SAID
OLD CLAIM LIRE; THENCE SOUTH 87 DEGREES 59 MINUTES 05 SECONDS
WEST ALONG SAID OLD CLAIM LINE 789.92 FEET TO THE POINT OP
BEGINNING IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINOIS.
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EXHIBIT F Design Guidelines
Site Planning pvincip|es

Site Planning Principles

The Site Planning Principles address issues that affect the way that individual sites should be
developed in order to blend in with the existing character of the City.

PRINCIPLE 4:  Incorporate existing site conditions into development plans

PRINCIPLE 5:  Provide a sense of architectural interest and unique identity throughout the
City

PRINCIPLE 6:  Enhance pedestrian expetience and establish sense of place through careful
design and location of open spaces

PRINCIPLE 7:  Thoughtful consideration of vehicular and pedestrian circulation within
individual developments

PRINCIPLE 8:  Appropriate design of parking lots, utilities, service areas and detention areas
to reduce the negative impact of typically unatiractive site components

s Desirable Elements:
The following elements shall be incorporated into development within the City:

s Richness of building surface and
texture

s Articulated mass and bulk

v Clear visibility of entrances

e Well organized  commercial
signage

s Landscaped and screened
parking

= Special paving identifying
intersections and crosswalks

= Pedestrian friendly streetscapes
and open spaces

= Thoughtful  consideration  of
circulation

s Screening of mechanical
equipment, service areas, parking
lots and any undesirable elements

= Step-down of building scale along
pedestrian routes and building
entrances

= Recognition of building hierarchy

= Formal entry plazas and
courtyards

= Detention used as an amenity

»  Existing trees incorporated into
development

= Multi-planed, pifiched rocfs

= Roof averhangs and arcades

= Provide defined entrance roads
into developments and provide
adequate vehicle storage bays at
agress drives

Landscaping softens the view of parking

United City of Yorkville

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update o




EXHIBIT F Design Guidelines

Site planniv\g pi‘ihciples

8 Undesirable Elements:

The following elements are discouraged in developments
within the City:

= Concrete detention basins

s Large, blank, unarticulated wall surfaces

s Visible outdoor storage, loading, equipment and
mechanical areas

» Disjointed parking areas and confusing circulation
patterns

= Large expanses of parking/asphalt

= Service areas near major entries and/or that are easily
visible from roadway

=  Poorly defined site access points

PRINCIPLE 4: Incorporate existing site conditions into development plans

4 |

s Large “boxlike” structures " Avoid large blank wall surfaces

New development shall protect the existing
environmental features throughout the City and minimize
the impact of the development on the site and the
surrounding land.

s Drainage Patterns

Proposed site plans shall incorporate existing
drainage patterns on site in an effort to avoid
significantly altering the manner in which drainage
flows offsite. At the time of site plan submittal to the
City, a drainage and detention plan must be
submitted. The location and type of drainage
facilities must be shown.

B Topography and Soils

Drainage swale ulilizes natural drainage patterns

= Minimize cut and fill on site to reduce
effects upon the natural drainage
pattern and natural character of the
site.

= Minimize disturbance in areas of
significant existing vegetation. if
necessary for site development,
consider using tree wells and retaining
walls io preserve existing trees where
possible.

Worlc with existing topegraphy to avoid large cut and fill

United Cr{’y o-f YOV‘!{Vi”e

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update

10



EXHIBIT F

Design Giidelines

space component of the site plan.

Stockpile top soil for later use in landscape areas.
s Vegetation

Site Planning Principles

Development on unsuitable soils is prohibited. Incorporate unsuitable soils into an open

Preserve existing trees

Every effort should be made in
the  planning  process  to
incorporate quality, existing trees
into the site plan design. Any
guality, existing tree that occurs
within the specific buffer yard as
required per PRINCIPLE 9 shall
remain undisturbed and be
protected as part of the landscape

[k

buffer.

PRINCIPLE 5: Provide a sense of
City

The Architectural standards are provided to preserve and guide
the character of architecture throughout the City while allowing
for individual architectural interpretation.  All architectural
proposals must be compatible with the vernacular of the
northern lllinois region. In order to ensure compliance with the
following architectural guidelines, the City requires that building
elevations, plans, materials samples, cclor samples and
illustrations be submitted for review and approval prior to the
commencement of building construction.

Buildings

Orientation

Preservation of existing vegetation as buffer

architectural interest and unigue identity throughout the

N : : i
Building orientation creates central open
space on axis with the main enfry drive

Building orientation should take
advantage of the building to site
relationship. The orientation and
location of buildings defines open
spaces and circulation corridors.

= Align focal architectural
elements along major view or
circulation axis.

Define pedestrian spaces and
streetscapes  with  building
orientation.

Qrient primary buildings on axis and use as focal points

United City of Vorkville

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update




EXHIBIT F Design Guidelines

Site 'Plomning princip|es

s Create view corridors
between buildings, plazas,
courtyards and adjacent
buildings.

- CONSIDER OPPORTUNITY
FOR VIEWS OFF STE

JJ,—FDOTPR]NTMD

I3 VEGETATION CREATE
I T GOOD OPPORTUNITY
| FOR PATIO

LOCATE BUILDANG TO
i PRESERVE VEGETATION

s Create pedestrian spaces
and plazas by varying
building facades.

s @y = PORCH ENGOURAGES.
= Cluster buildings whenever TQ}P FRONT (R0 ACTWIY
possible, creating *
opportunities for plazas and Residential building orientation creates
pedestrian malls.  Prevent private, inlimate backyard space

long, linear facades from
dominating the view.

s Buildings adjacent to
Routes 47, 71 and 126
must face the primary
roadway. No service rimATe suDiGs
access, storage, etc. is e e

allowed to face Routes

47,71 and 126.

BULDINGS FORM A

s Develop sites in a SO RXAL
comprehensive and
coordinated manner to
provide  order  and
compatibility (especially
in the case of large sites Building orieniation can define main activity areas
which will be developed
in phases).

» The exterior character and
orientation of all buildings and
the spaces they define should
encourage and  enhance
pedestrian activity.

= Attention should be given to
the quality and usability of the
outdoor spaces formed by the
exterior of a dwelling and
adjacent dwellings. Avoid
locating the private area of
one dwelling adjacent to the
public area of an adjacent

dwelling. Rear and side facades should incorporale
architectural design elements

United City crf Yc: vlville

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update 12



EXHIBIT F Design Guidelines

Site Planning pvinciples

» In multi-family residential developments, buildings should be oriented to create
functional outdoar spaces.

= In residential neighborhoods, consideration should also be given to the views from
adjacent dwellings and public spaces.

n  [Facades

Building facades should achieve a high level of visual interest when viewed from
automobile and pedestrian vantage points.

= In residential developments, front yards and
porches should be used to create a sense of
place and community. Tanera

= Natural stone and masonry materials are to be g B N BN

used on the lower portions of buildings to create
a visual anchor to the ground and provide
interest at the pedestrian level.

s Vary the planes of exterior walls in depth and/or
direction.

= Wall planes shall not run in a continuous
direction more than 65 feet without an offset
of at least 3 feet.

s Wall planes of more than 20 feet high are
prohibited without incorporating meaningful
techniques, such as awnings or a change in
building material, to break up the perceived
building mass.

= Awnings are encouraged along facades to
provide color, shade and architectural
interest. Where awnings are used along a
row of contiguous buildings, a consistent
form, material, color, location and mounting
arrangement must be used.

= Awnings should be located to provide a
consistent minimum 8 feet vertical clearance,
with a maximum generally not to exceed 12
feet.

s Colors of awnings must complement the Anmings provide pedeastiian scale slament

buildings.

United City of Yorkville

Com p-v‘ehehsiv-e Land Use Plan Utpd'cde 13



EXHIBIT F Design Guidelines

Site p!anning Prihciple_s

s |ncorporate the awnings along
with any signage to provide a
uniformly  designed  building
fagade.

e Signs on awnings are permitted.

s |nternally illuminated awnings are
prohibited.

Garage doors oriented to side
s Awnings and canopies may be
made of sheet metal or canvas membrane. Plastic or vinyl awnings are not permitted.

= |n new residential neighborhoods, houses shall not repeat the same elevations without
two lots of separation. Houses across the street from each other and back-to-back
corner lots shall not be of the same elevation.

= In residential areas, garages should not dominate the street view. Rather, provide
parking and garages to the side or rear of lots or set the garage face back from the
primary fagade of the house. Avoid allowing the garage to become the primary
architectural feature.

= Roof Treatment

Rooftops  should be considered
important design elements as viewed
from a variety of vantage points such
as at ground level, from other
buildings and from adjacent perimeter
roadways, A well-composed
“roofscape” achieves an interesting
skyline without becoming overly busy
or contrived. Roof forms should serve
as natural transitions from the ground |
level to intermediate masses to the [EEEE gy w, S8's
tallest masses and back to the Variation in roof treatments creates an interesting roofscape’
ground. Form should also be

interesting when seen from above in

adjacent buildings.

= Materials & Colors

Visual continuity in major building materials and colors is desired throughout the City.
Specific criteria include the following:

= Material samples of all proposed buildings must be provided for review and be
approved by the City.

= Materials should be consistent with the Community Character principles outlined in
these guidelines.

United City of Vorkville

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update 14



EXHIBIT F Design Guidelines

Site planning Principles

= Wall materials that are muted, earth tone in color and
have texture are to be used.

" Reserve the use of strongly contrasting materials and
colors for accents, such as building entrances, railings
and trim.  Avoid an excessive variety of fagade
materials.

= Avoid using highly reflective materials and surfaces,
such as polished metal, that generate glare, particularly
at the pedestrian level.

= Materials which may be incorporated include: native
stone, brick, stucco and textured concrete. Alternative
materials that achieve similar looks and are of high
quality and low maintenance may be considered.

=« Common materials shall be located on all sides of the
building with the exception of service areas not visible [EEEFT 0 0l
from a public street. Varying rooffine breaks up long
expanse of building facade

= Coordinating materials within a development can tie
together buildings of different sizes, uses and forms.

= In new residential neighborhoods at the time of initial building permit, houses shall not
be the same color unless there are at least two lots of separation. Houses across the
street from each other are not permitted to be the same color.

s Use contrasting but compatible building materials and textures to unify exterior building
elements and to create depth, proportion and scale.

= In residential developments, buildings should complement each other by using
materials and colors within the same “family”.

»  Building colors should be derived from, and related to, the finishes of primary building
materials.

= Height

The overall appearance of development shall be low
and horizontal, with building heights throughout the
community generally low to medium scale. Building
heights are expected (and desired) to vary to ensure
visual interest.

= Consider the use of taller buildings and/or
elements to highlight significant intersections and
pedestrian nodes.

»  Building heights shall be determined in a manner ~
which enhances an overall residential quality. Taller buildings help identify intersections

United City of Vorkville

Comprehensi\)e Land Use Plan Mpcla{'e 15



EXHIBIT F Design Guidelines

Site p|anhih9 princip|es

« Maintain compatible relationships with
adjacent dwellings and street frontages.

«  Building heights shall be responsive to
heights of homes located on slopes above
and below the dwelling.

= Sight lines to greenbelts, open areas,
water features and scenic horizon views
are to be optimized and maintained to the
fullest extent possible by minimizing the
building height and cbstruction.

=« Scenic view compatibility shall be
considered in determining building height.

= Within a neighborhood, a combination of
ong, one and a half and two story
dwellings is encouraged to add diversity
to the streetscape. Entire neighborhoods
or blocks of continuous two story
dwellings are discouraged.

s For multilevel dwellings on corner lots, W= e
locate a one-story element of the dwelling — Front porch roof provides human scale element
at the street corner to help reduce the
feeling of enclosure in the neighborhood.

= Atwo-story dwelling can best relate to a neighboring one story if it contains a one-story
element.

= Scale

Buildings should appear to be of a
“pedestrian” or “human” scale. When
components in the built environment are
designed in such a way that people feel
comfortable, then human scale has been
achieved. In general, this means that
the size, patterns, textures, forms and
overall three-dimensional composition
can be appreciated at the pedestrian
level.

Varied building scale provides distinction between masses

= Vary the height of buildings, and/or
building elements where feasible, so
they appear to be divided into
distinct elements or masses.

United City of chkvi“ie

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update 7 - 16



EXHIBIT F Design Guidelines

Site p|ahnih9 Pl‘ihciples

= Avoid  large-scale
buildings that are

“box-like” and
typically dominate a |~ ~
site. ~

g i1/
= Use building mass WO
appropriate to the i ;
site. Place buildings
with larger 5\ )
footprints, height :
and massing in core \
activity areas or in PaLLi

the heart of the /A !l‘l‘
- !:.r,;._, : il /4

f!%ﬁ

N
development  near N2 =¥ il |Iﬂ%j‘]%\‘
similar densities. By : 'al@’} e V.
doing so, the impact | s P T (s 1
on adjacent land Pedestrian scale elements located along building facade

uses will be reduced.

= In residential areas, the relationship
between the lot size, street width and
building scale are important to creating a
human scale. Elements such as trees,
pedestrian path lighting and porches can
aid in achieving human scale.

= Hierarchy

It is important to recognize that future
projects will be developed using a variety of
buildings with various uses. Vehicular and
pedestrian traffic should be able fo
recognize the hierarchy of buildings and be
able to decipher primary buildings from
secondary buildings.

»  Primary Buildings

Primary buildings; such as major anchors, public
buildings or major attractions, shall be located at
prominent locations, anchoring a major view axis and
serving as focal points in the community.

s Gateway Buildings

s Buildings at major entrances, corners, intersections
or along significant roads should use special
architectural elements to help identify that location as
a “gateway”. These elements also begin to define the
sense of place for the community.

Primary buildings located on
axis and create focal paint

Utnifed City of Vorkville

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update 17



EXHIBIT F Design Guidelines

Site Planning Principles

= Special architectural features may include corner towers, cupolas, clock towers,
balconies, colonnades or spires.

= The use of vertical elements helps to frame the entrance and guide people into and
through the development.

TOWERS HELP |DEMTIFY
CORMER OF BUILDIMNG 25 A
GATEWAY IMTO THE
DEVELCPMENT

ATTIEEIOE

EAE

=
Lol
AHE i

BALCOMIES HELP BREAK
BiEAK P HEIGHT OF TOWER

; [
= E

JHBE =

B .’F:ﬁ

= Entrances

= Primary entrances should be easily identifiable and relate
to both human scale as well as the scale of the building(s)
they serve.

e Wherever possible, entrances should be inviting without
becoming dark.

s Main building entrances should be designed to be clearly
identifiable from primary driveways and drop-offs.
Additionally, they should be visible from parking areas.

®  Retaining walls

s All retaining walls must be faced (veneered) with masonry Main entry to store
(stone, brick, stucco or approved equal). clearfy identifiable

= Retaining walls adjacent to or visible from any street shall not exceed 4 feet in height.
Grade changes that require retaining walls exceeding 4 feet must be terraced with a
minimum of 4 feet clear separation between each wall. Exceptions may be reviewed and
approved by the City in order to preserve existing tree stands.

United Ci'ly o-f y:.nrl(vi”e
Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update 18




EXHIBIT F Design Guidelines

Site Planning Principles

= Walls should be designed as an integral part of the dwelling design. Stone sizes should be
consistent and laid in a horizontal course. Masonry materials shall match or complement
the facade of surrounding buildings.

= Walls at intersections must not interfere with safe sight distances.

PRINCIPLE 6: Enhance pedestrian experience and establish sense of place through careful
design and location of open spaces

The creation of open space throughout the City is an essential technique used to break up building
facades. The use of such pockets of interest creates views into the various developments. A wide
range of open spaces such as public gathering plazas, open “greens”, common play areas,
neighborhood parks and natural preserves can be incorporated into development plans.

s View Corridors

»  Open space is considered a valuable amenity, therefore
careful consideration of vistas into open spaces from
residential lots, streets and drives is required.

= Maintain view corridors to provide vistas of amenities,
natural features, open spaces and other significant
elements.

= Create focal points at main entries, on axis with major [SES.
circulation route and pedestrian corridors to establish a = Community Park
strong identity and structure for the project.

s
M’W’L‘? ?}
W o e R aer S ——

Tl B \‘ J ]/o{lf.:{ T - —_ jf‘(,q,jv
LOCATE SPECIAL FEATURES *—--——% 5
ATTERMINUS OF DRIVES \ i \J // ‘:%-3 — e s Z \; £

P / /JZ,—}% S S I \
R /: e i P -— 7:_ - T B
\ R\ Y /z_’:", S}.?a- ~ L o
\ = ’f (%o B N &
5 ,;t‘ Y o
7 o e ; N e
VEGETATION FRAMES VIEW soacl At > '"L AT -
AMND CREATES CORRIDOR 1 : @ A
— = . By -~ o =
= i G —

View of amenity feature is framed by use of vegetation and
road alignment, creating a signature element

United City of Vorkville
Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update 19




EXHIBIT F Design Guidelines

Parks and Trails

= Courtyards and Plazas

Site plannir\g prihcipie.s

In residential areas, parks should be located within a 5 minute
walk (approximately 1,000 feet) from each home.

Trail linkages should be provided from proposed neighborhoods
to the City's comprehensive trail system, forest preserve trails
and adjacent developments.

21

Nelghbrhood rk

Courtyards, plazas and terraces should be designed at a human scale and incorporated as
public amenities around non-residential buildings. Interrupting building facades to create
“outdoor rooms” as well as varying the width of walkways will help create pedestrian spaces.
These pedestrian spaces will create opportunities for comfortable outdoor experiences and are
critical in defining plazas and courtyards.

Orient plazas and courtyards to views
of site amenities such as open space,
water features, sculptural elements or
landscaped areas.

Consider opportunities to orient plazas
and courtyards toward views of
significant  buildings or down long
corridors.

Wherever possible, create a sense of
enclosure for outdoor seating areas.

Such areas should be light and airy | . s ey e
while providing a sense of safety from Landscaping and special paving give the
the elements. seating area a sense of enclosure

Add elements such as trees, water features, a variety of seating areas and landscape color
to give the public spaces an inviting appearance and visual interest.

Incorporate pedestrian scaled lighting for safety and to promote use in the evening.

Incorporate pavers and paving patterns to add interest and enhance the aesthetic quality of
the spaces.

Allow for outdoor tables |
and seating to promote use
of the space. By doing so,
an energy is created along
the structure.

INCORPCRAIE A VAREETY
OF SEATING, PAVERS,
COLCR, EIC. 1O ACO
YISUAL INTEREST

LOCATE STTE FURNSHING .
1O ENCOURAGE USE -

United City of YVorkville

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Mpd-a+e 20



EXHIBIT F

Design Guidelines

Site Planning Princip!es

individual developments

Vehicular Circulation

Primary Site Entrances

Each entrance to a parcel, individual
building site or residential
neighborhood  from a  primary
roadway should be designed as a
‘gateway” to the area it serves.
Design elements should be visually
interesting and consistent with other
streetscape materials used
throughout the City.

When designing entries into
residential and  non-residential
tracts, developers shall:

= Coordinate with adjacent properties to consolidate entries and minimize access points

along major roadways

= Minimize pedestrian and vehicle conflicts by reducing the quantity of crosswalks.

PRINCIPLE 7: Thoughtful consideration of vehicular and pedestrian circulation within

%

Prirary residential entrance hr‘ghfigme with sgnage,
landscaping and water elemenis

= Clearly identify site entries and provide a clear entry/arrival sequence.

»  Provide “secondary” entries to parking lots and smaller residential neighborhoods from
adjacent perpendicular minor roadways to major roadways. Paving material, plants,
signs and lighting should match primary entrance treatments, although landscaping

intensity and signage may be reduced in scale.

= Provide at least one “primary” entry to parking lots or residential communities. The use

The purpose of the circulation standards is to minimize hazards and conflicts and establish logical
circulation patterns. The appropriate integration of vehicular and pedestrian circulation is intended
to provide safe and convenient access to all sites while being attractive, efficient and functional.

of medians and/or special paving or landscaping to identify primary entries is required.

CROSSWALKS DENTIFED
WITH PAYNG

SECCONDARY ENIRY CONSISTENT
WITH FRAVARY GATEWAY

DESIGN PARRING WITHA
LOGICAR FLOW,
RIVZING IERSECTIONS
AND CORFLCTS

PRIARY ENTRY 1O
PARKING LOT EENNFED
BY LANDSCAFNG AHD

'kﬁ MECHIH

United City of Yorkville

Single primary entrance reduces access paints along Corridor

Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update
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EXHIBIT F Design Guidelines

Site Planning Principles

s« |nternal Drives

All internal drives should visually
lead drivers to building entries,
site amenities or focal elements.

= Design drives and parking
areas to fit the natural
contours of the site in order to
minimize cut and fill and &5
maintain natural drainage. e

e R ;

* Align streets and drives to Street allgnment offers views of significant architectural feature
offer views to significant
architectural features and site amenities and
to direct drivers.

= Internal streets shall be separated from
parking lots by landscape islands and
walkways.

= Drop-Off Areas

Drop-off areas for vehicle passengers shall be
incorporated into development plans and should
provide safe, convenient access to building
entries, pedestrian plazas and public open
spaces. Drop-off areas must conform to all ADA
regulations and standards.

Landscaped island separales
parking lot from internaf drive

»  Emphasize drop-off areas with special paving material.
= Design drop-off lanes so they do not obstruct traffic flow when vehicles are stopped.

» [nstall bollards at drop-offs to provide protection for buildings and pedestrian walkways.

LAMDSCAPIFEG CREATES
BTN G EMTRANCE

————— USE RCLLARDS. TO CREAIE SPACE ARD
PROTECT PEDESTRIANS
E= IDENTIFY DRCP-OFF AREAWITH SFECIAL
PAVING
DROF-GFF AREA DOES MO CBSTRUCT
TRAFFIC FLOWE

Drop-off area doesn't conflict with regular traffic
and is identified with paving and bollards

United City of Yorkville
Comprehensive Land Use Plan Update 292




EXHlBIT F Design Giuidelines

Site Plahhihg pv‘incipfas

= Service Areas

Service vehicle circulation throughout the City shall
be designed to provide safe and efficient delivery
routes for all anticipated service and delivery
vehicles.  The design of individual parcels to
accommodate truck access shall meet all regulatory
requirements  for turning movements  without
sacrificing other important design cbjectives.

= |ocate service areas away from major streets
and building entrances.

= A noise barrier is required in situations where
service areas are adjacent to a residential land
use.

= Minimize pedestrian and service vehicle conflicts.

= Hide/screen views into service areas. Screening can be provided with landscaping or
screen walls. Screen walls shall repeat materials and elements of the primary building.

= Adjoining uses should share service drives where possible.

» Design service drives to accommodate the traffic intended to use them including all
entrance roads and access aisles that will be used to access the service areas.

s Pedestrian Circulation

The purpose of pedestrian circulation standards is to establish guidelines for creating a
pedestrian circulation system that is safe and efficient. Good walking environments include:
continuous routes between sites, clearly defined access from parking areas, a variety of
connected destinations and a feeling of safety and security. In essence, creating a sense of
comfort.

= Sidewalks

Sidewalks must be constructed to
provide pedestrian access to adjacent
development and connections to the
pedestrian trails throughout the City.
Within specific developments,
sidewalks shall provide access to and
from parking lots, neighborhoods,
schoaols, parks and open spaces.

= Create distinct pedestrian corridors,
which funnel pedestrians to logical
gateways, plazas or  other
destinations.

Path provides access to park and adjacent neighborhood

United City of Yorkville
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EXHIBIT F Design Quidelines

Site P]anning princip]es

s Place special emphasis on pedestrian connections that
link schools, recreation areas and other major activity
areas.

s Neighborhoods should have access to open space and
pocket parks by way of sidewalks and trails.

= |n residential areas, sidewalks should be located on both
sides of the street.

e Pavers or other changes in material should be used for
walks adjacent to buildings and at street intersections to Pavers next to building
identify and enhance pedestrian routes. anhatice appeatanoe

s Crosswalks

Crosswalks are required at all intersections and key pedestrian
crossings. Crosswalks must be identified by a change in color,
height, width, texture, or materials. Refer to ADA regulations
and standards for any specific criteria regarding crosswalks and
ramps.

. . . . delineates crosswalk
= Pedestrian Circulation in Parking Lots

Walkways that lead pedestrians from parking areas to buildings
ot plazas should be designed to facilitate easy movement and
minimize crossing conflicts with vehicles. Pedestrians should
feel comfortable about their walkways to buildings and pedestrian
corridors should be clearly identified.

= Pedestrians should not be required to cross service drives to
reach major entrances from primary parking lots.

= Where major pedestrian routes within parking lots cross
roadways and drives, use textured or colored paving
materials to distinguish the route.

= Medians with sidewalks allow for safe
circulation and reduce circulation conflicts.

=  Wherever feasible orient parking aisles
perpendicular to building entrances.

APECINL PAVIHG RGHIFES
AR € FRCHE

PARMNG LCT

DIREC il
TRAFAC PERFEMDICIAAR
13 BULDNG BITRANCE

— PROVIDE SIDEWALK N
PETAAN WATH SHACE TREES |

Median with sidewalk allows safe
access to building entry

Crosswalk delineated with paving and b&a

United City of Yorkville
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EXHIBIT F Design Quidelines

Site Planning princip]es

= Accessibility

Owners and developers are expected to meet or exceed all requirements of the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA), 1992, and all amendments thereto in the design and development of
individual parcels, sites, buildings, and facilities. To the greatest extent possible, provide equal
access in a manner that integrates ADA accessibility with ordinary accessibility, rather than
separately.

PRINCIPLE 8: Appropriate design of parking lots, utilities, service areas and detention
areas to reduce the negative impact of typically unattractive site
componernis

This section provides standards for the siting and layout of parking lots, service and loading areas,
utilities, trash, storage and detention facilities. Specific landscaping criteria for these areas are
included in the Landscape Principles section. Site plans specifying parking and circulation designs,
utility and detention requirements shall be submitted to the City for review.

= Parking

= Parking ratios and quantity of spaces shall comply
with the criteria set forth in the United City of
Yorkville Zoning Ordinance.

" Parking areas should be designed and located so
they provide safe and efficient vehicular and
pedestrian circulation within a site.

= Minimize negative visual impacts from adjacent

roadways.
n  Break large expanses of pavement with landscape Minimize negative visual impacts of
medians and islands. parking from roadways

= Divide parking areas which accommodate a large number of vehicles into a series of
smmaller, connected lots.

e Avoid situations where parking spaces directly abut structures.

»  Separate parking aisles from interior collectors and entry drives whenever possible.

Ciluster buildings to
create open space

courtyards

Walkways to buildings or

plazas should be designed fo
facilitale easy movement and
minimize crossing conflicts

with vehicles

Arrange parking aisfies

Provide pedestrian

perpendicular to building

entrances access lo adjacent

developments

United City of Vorkville
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EXHIBIT F Design Giuidelines

Site Planning Prim:ip]es

= Shared Parking

Where opportunities exist for shared parking between uses with staggered peak parking
demands, consider reducing the total number of parking spaces within each site or parcel.
Parking should be shared between complementary uses such churches and office
buildings.

= Store Front & Street Parking Requirements

All store front parking areas shall use angled parking or parallel parking. Areas shall be
provided for sidewalks and landscaping between the store front and the edge of parking
stall.

= Bicycle

To encourage and accommodate alternative transportation modes, provide bicycle parking
within each building site. Locate bicycle parking areas so they are visible from building
entrances and convenient for riders. Parking areas shall be landscaped in a manner
consistent with pedestrian plazas. Also, bike racks should be of a style consistent with
other site elements.

m  Substations/Water/Wastewater Stations
Proposed electric substations, water pump stations and wastewater lift stations shall be
screened from public views by a means of a 6 foot masonry wall on all sides with the exception
of the area for gate access to the facility combined with landscaping. Service access shall be
considered and incorporated into the screening program.

s Detention

= Drainage facilities should be used as an amenity to
a development. If the existing topography allows,
the location can be incorporated into an entry
feature or can be the foundation for a park with
trails and open space.

= Natural and/or vegetated drainage swales provide
open space connections, filter runoff and improve
the aesthetic appearance of development.

= Detention facilities should not be designed as to
require chain link fencing or concrete walls. If such
designs are reqguired due to engineering
requirements, consider using decorative modular
stone to give the appearance of a retaining wall.

* Detention ponds located in the front yard building
setback shall be designed as a curvilinear, Naturalistic drainage channel provides
confoured shape. opportunities for trail connection

United City of Yorkville
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EXHIBIT F Design Guidelines
Site plahning princip]es

s Location of Utilities

Visual and sound impacts of utilities, mechanical equipment, data transmission dishes, towers
and other equipment should be minimized in all development plans.

«  Design and install all permanent utility service lines underground.

= During construction and maintenance, minimize disruptions to other sites and businesses
within the City.

=  Temporary overhead distribution power and telephone lines are permitted during
construction but shall be removed immediately upon completion of site and building
construction.

= Wherever possible, mount data transmission and receiving telecommunication devices at
ground level to the rear of structures and screen views from adjacent roadways, pedestrian
paths and building sites.

= Screen all electrical transformers, gas meters and other utility cabinets from view.

=  Structures are prohibited from being located in utility easements. Avoid locating signs,
special landscape features, etc. in utility easements.

»  Air conditioning units, vent systems and other mechanical systems that must be located on
building roofs shall be screened from sight at the ground plane.

s |n residential communities:

»  |tems requiring screening should be located on the rear or side yards when possible
and should be integrated into the unit design.

= Air conditioning units must be located behind a screen wall or planting hedge.
= Utility meters must be located on side or rear elevations of the dwelling.
m  Location of Service/Delivery/Trash/Storage Areas
The visual impacts of service, delivery, trash and outdoor equipment or storage areas should
be minimized, particularly relative to views from public roadways and pedestrian corridors.

Thoughtful placement and integration into the architecture and site design is a priority for all
sites.

» Qrient service entrances, loading docks, waste
disposal areas and other similar uses toward service
roads and away from major streets and primary
building entrances.

= Locate loading, service, trash and delivery areas so
they do not encroach on any setbacks.

‘ Screen dumpsters with walls and naen‘af
that match architecture of primary building

United City of Yorkville
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EXHIBIT F Design Guidelines

Site Planning Principles

= Avoid locating service areas where they
are visible from adjacent buildings or
where they may impact view corridors.
Such facilities are more appropriate at the
rear of buildings or sites.

s Trash enclosures must be located away
from residential property lines.

s Wherever possible, coordinate the
locations of service areas between
adjacent users or developments, so that
setrvice drives can be shared.

malch architecture of primary building

= Locate parking areas for outdoor equipment, trucks, trailers, service vehicles, etc. away
from public parking lots and major pedestrian circulation routes. Unless totally out of view,
screen these areas architecturally and with landscaping.

= All proposed dumpsters, trash receptacles, refuse storage containers, outdoor storage, and
ground mounted equipment should be located within an enclosure providing screening
along with landscaping along the perimeter. Such enclosures shall repeat materials and
elements on the primary building.

United City of Vorkville
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The Data is provided without warranty or any representation of
accuracy, timeliness, or completeness. It is the responsibility of the
“Requester” to determine accuracy, timeliness, completeness, and

appropriateness of its use. The United City of Yorkville makes no
warranties, expressed or implied, to the use of the Data.
-Parcel Data provided by Kendall County GIS
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Exhibit “G”
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66" ROW
CcL
33 33
18.0' 15.0' 15.0' 18.0"

} 5'1[ w TC=CL+0.15 oy

FL=CL-0.35 CL=0 2% WN 9%

EP=CL~0.27 N 2.0% MIN. =T

STRUCT #

1.5x0.40 = 0.
] 2.5¢0.33 = 0.
‘% é - 1 10x0.10 = 1.0
2

66" R.0.W.

TYPICAL PAVEMENT SECTION -
1

@ 20006808

1.5" BITUMINOUS CONCRETE SURFACE COURSE, CL I, TY. 2, MIX. D
2.5" BITUMINOUS CONCRETE BINDER COURSE,
4.5" BITUMINOUS CONCRETE BINDER COURSE,

10" CRUSHED AGGREGATE SUB-BASE, TY. B.
12" CRUSHED AGGREGATE SUB—BASE, TY. B.
COMPACTED SUBGRADE WITH GEO-TEXTILE FABRIC, AMOCO 4551 OR APPROVED EQUAL
5" PCC SIDEWALK WITH W/4" CRUSHED AGG. SUB—BASE
COMB. CONC. CURB AND GUTTER, TYPE B—6.12

6" TOP SOIL AND SEEDING

CL I, TY. 2
CL I, TY. 2 (2 UFTS)

Joint filling with hot-poured rubberized asphalt cement

NT.E



EXHIBIT H - WINDMILL FARMS ANNEXATION - RESIDENTIAL FEE SCHEDULE

Name of Fee

Amount

Time of Payment

=

School District Transition Fee

$3,000 per unit

Paid to School District Office prior to issuance for building permit

N

Yorkvitie Bristol Sanitary District Connection Fee

$1,400 per unit

At time of building permit, paid at City Hall with separate check made out fo
YBSD

L]

Yorkvitle Bristol Sanitary District Annexation Fee

3806 per acre

Paid for entire development, at time of annexation to sanitary districl

Yorkville Bristol Sanitary Disfrict Infrastructure

diFea 3608 per acre Paid for entire development, at time of annexation to sanitary district
$650 + $.0.20 par

5|Residential Buikling Permit Fee square foot Building Permit
6|Residential YWater Connecticn Fee $3,700 per unit Building Permit
7| wWater Meter Cost {not applicable fo fee lock) $390 per unitfor SF {Building Permit
&iResidential City Sewer Connection Fee $2,000 per unit Buiiding Permit
9|Water and Sewer Inspection Fee $25 per unit Building Permit
40| Public Walks and Driveway [nspection Fee $35 per unit Building Permit
14a|Public Works (Development Impact Fee) $70C per unit Building Permit
11blPolice (Development Impact Fee} $300 per unit Buitding Permit

Municipal Building Impact Fee is set up as $5,509 per unit if paid at time of
permit, or $3,288 per unit if paid at time of final plat for all units in the

11¢|Municipai Building (Development impact Fee) see "time of payment" |entirety of the annexed development.
11d|Library {Development Impact Fee) $500 per unit Building Perrrit
11e{Parks and Rec (Development Impact Fee) $50 per unit Building Permit

11f

Engineering (Development impact Fee)

$100 per unit

Buitding Permit

119

Bristol Kendall Fire District {Development lmpact
Fee)

$1,000 per unit

Building Permit

12

Parks Land Cash Fee

Calcuiated by
ordinance, $101,000
per acre

Building Permit or Final Piat, depending on annexation/development
agreement and land/cash donations negotiated

1

(2]

Schocl Land Cash Fee

Caiculated by
ordinance, $101,000
per acre

Buildirg Permit or Final Plat, depending on annexation/development
agreement and land/cash donations negotiated

1

I

Road Contribution Fund

$2,000 per unit

Building Permit

County Road Fee

$1,707 per unit,
escalating each
calendar year at a rate
determined by
crdinance

Building Permit

Weather Warning Siren

$75 per acre

Final Plat

17

Administration Review Fee

1.75% of Approved
Engineer's Estimate of
Cost of Land
improvements

Final Piat

18

Engineering Review Fee

1.25% of Approved
Engineer's Estimate of
Costof Land
Improvements

Final Plat

19

Engineering Coordination Fee

0.35% of Approved
Engineer's Estimate of
Cost of Land
lmprovemenis

Final Plat




. R EXHIBIT H - COMMERCIAL PERMIT FEES
United City of Yorkville

County Seat of Kengall County
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, Illinois, 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350
Fax: 630-553-7575

Website: www,yorkville.il.us

COMMERCIAL PERY
Permit/Pian Review
Building Permit £750.00 plus $0.20 per square foot
Plan Review Based on building size (Ses Attachad}
Contributions
Development Fee $3000.00* - See Attached Grdinance 2004-55
{Increase in Bristol-Kendall Firs Protection District Fee}
Water/Sewer
Sewer Tap See Attached Ordinance #96-11
Water Tap Water Mater Size Water Connection Fes
1 $3,700
1127 $ 4,000
2 $ 5,000
37 $ 8,000
47 $15,000
6" and larger TBD
Water Meter Water Meter Size Water Meter Price
1” $ 485.00
1ar 5 790.00
27 $2800.00
a» $3550.00
47 $5420.00
6" $8875.00
Enginecring Inspections $60.00
River Crossing fee $25.00 per drain unit, See attached Ordinance 97-11

#*Engineering and Landscaping review fees will be billed separately.

ik Dlease call the Yorkville Bristol Sanitary District for sanitary permit fees (630) 553-7657
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EXHIBIT H

PL/ AW REVIEW FERES (May vary due o oulside consuliont’s fee schedufes.)
i . » . S

BULLDING CODE

Building Size Fez

1t 60,000 cubie {set $355.00
60,001 10 80,000 cublc feat $400.00
80,001 10 100,000 cubic fee $475.00
100,001 1o 150,000 cube $550.00
150,001 10 200,000 cubic feet $65C.00
over 200,000 cubic feet $650.00 -+ $6.50 per 10,000 cubic feet over 200,000
REMODELING PLAN REVIEW 142 of Plan Review Fee Listed Above
LECTRICAL, MECHANICAL, OR PLUMBING PLAN REVIEW ONLY
1/4 of Plan Review Fee Listed Abave

FIRE DETRECTION/ALARN SYSTEMS

$115.00 per 10,000 square feet of Hoor area

PIRT SPRIMELER SYSTEMS

Mumber of Sprinklers Pipe Schedule Hydroulic Calewlated

Upio200 $250.00 $500.00
201-300 $300.00 ' §575.00
301-500 $400.00 $775.00
Over 500 $450.00 $850.00
PLUS, for each Sponlder over 500 $0.60/each 50

ALTHERMNATE FIRE SUPPRESSION SYSTENLS

Standpipe

w‘)

Specialized Sutinguisher Agent (Dry or Other Chamical Agent 12500 ner 50 j;’}(_)l}i{'a(i:‘-:‘3,53;{:‘:11"6

HMood & Duct Cooki O flat rate per system.

NOTE: \,f plan has to 1



CHICAGO TRIBUNE

media group

Sold To:

United City of Yorkville - CU00410749
800 Game Farm Rd

Yorkville,IL 60560-1133

Bill To:

United City of Yorkville - CU00410749
800 Game Farm Rd

Yorkville,IL 60560-1133

Certificate of Publication:

Order Number: 7291126
Purchase Order: PZC 2022-19

State of lllinois - Kendall

Chicago Tribune Media Group does hereby certify that it is the publisher of the The Beacon-News. The
The Beacon-News is a secular newspaper, has been continuously published Daily for more than fifty (50)
weeks prior to the first publication of the attached notice, is published in the City of Aurora, Township of
Aurora, State of lllinois, is of general circulation throughout that county and surrounding area, and is a
newspaper as defined by 715 IL CS 5/5.

This is to certify that a notice, a true copy of which is attached, was published 1 time(s) in the The
Beacon-News, namely one time per week or on 1 successive weeks. The first publication of the notice
was made in the newspaper, dated and published on 9/23/2022, and the last publication of the notice was
made in the newspaper dated and published on 9/23/2022.

This notice was also placed on a statewide public notice website as required by 715 ILCS 5/2. 1.

PUBLICATION DATES: Sep 23, 2022.

The Beacon-News
In witness, an authorized agent of The Chicago Tribune Media Group has signed this certificate executed
in Chicago, Illinois on this

24th Day of September, 2022, by

Chicago Tribune Media Group
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Jeremy Gates
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PUBLIC NOTICE
MOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

BEFORE
UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
PLAMNING AND ZONING COMMISSION
PIC 2022-19

MOTICE 15 HEREBY GIVEN THAT Jordan Gash, on behalf of Restore
Church, Inc., petitioner, has filed an application with the United City
of Yorkville Kendall County, 1llinois, _request|n§ rezoning classification
of three (2] parcels totaling approximately 34 acres located at 8710
Route 71 in vorkyille, 1lingis. The real property, situated east of Illinois
State Route 71 and lllinois State Route 124 intersection on the north-
east corner nfmn&rﬁoad_a nd Minois State Route 71, is partof the pre-
viously approved Windmill Farms Annexation Agreement. The Wind-
mill Farms Annexation Agreement zoned the parcels as a Planned Unit
Development (PUD) which allowed for certain land uses consistent
with those found in the R-4 General Multi-Family Residence District
and B-3 General Business Zoning districts. The petitioner is seeking to
rezone the three (3) parcels totaling 34 acres from the Planned Unit
Development (PUD) 2oning designation to the B-3 General Business
District. The purpose of the rezoning is to continue to operate the
existing religious institution land use and accommodate future com-
mercial development.

The legal description of said parcels are as follows:

PARCEL 1:
i?SéEKﬁéE TR LG PT SWs & PT NWW SEC 3-267 (EXC PT DESCRED

PER DOC 17-16528, PG 5) CITY OF YORKVILLLE

*THAT PART OF THE NORTHEAST NORTHWEST ANC SOUTHWEST
QUARTERS OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 MORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF
THE THIRD PRIMCIPAL MERIDIAN DESCRIEED AS FOLLOWS. COM-
MEMCING AT THE MORTHEAST CORMNER OF SAID SOUTHWEST 1/4;
THENCE SOUTH 00 DEGREE 10 MINUTES 43 SECONDS WEST ALONG
THE EAST LINE OF SAID SOUTHWEST 170 1284.36 FEET, THEMCE
SOUTH 89 DEGREES 29 MINUTES 40 SECOMNDS WEST &80.30 FEET,
THENCE MORTH 09 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 27 SECONDS WEST 10.0
FEET FOR A POINT OF BEGINMING, THENCE MORTH 0% DEGREES 33
MINUTES 27 SECONDS WEST 579.53 FEET TO THE SOUTHEAST COR-
MER OF A TRACT OF LANC CONVEYED TO ELSIE BOYD BY A DEED
DATED MARCH 26, 192% AND RECORDED DECEMBER 14, 1938 IN DEED
RECORD BOOK 83 ON PAGE 3%9; THENCE NORTH 07 DEGREES 05 MIN-
LTES 24 SECONDS WEST ALOMG THE EAST LINE OF SAID BOYD TRACT
748.57 FEET TO THE CENTER LIME OF ILLINOIS STATE ROUTE NO. 717
THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID CENTER LINE, BEING ALONG
A CURVE TO THE LEFT HAVING A RADIUS OF 1145220 FEET ANO A
RADIAL BEARING OF NORTH 26 DEGREES 49 MINUTES 14 SECONDS
WEST AT THE LAST DESCRIBED POINT 627.44 FEET, THENCE MORTH &0
DEGREES 0Z MINUTES 30 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID CENTER LINE
332.0 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 12 DEGREES 27 MIMUTES 30 SECOMDS
EAST 264.0 FEET, THEMCE S0UTH 84 DEGREES 27 MINUTES 30 SEC-
ONDS EAST 202.0 FEET, THENCE NORTH 00 DEGREES 42 MINUTES 30
SECONDS WEST 423.02 FEET TO SAID CENTER LIME; THEMCE MORTH
&0 DEGREES 02 MIMUTES 30 SECOMDS EAST ALONG SAID CEMTER
LIME 472.59 FEET TO A LINE DRAWM NORTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES
48 SECONDS EAST PARALLEL WITH THE WEST LINE OF SAID NORTH-
EAST 1/4, FROM A POINT OM THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID NORTHEAST
1/4 WHICH 1S 598 .62 FEET EASTEAL ¥ OF THE SOUTHWEST CORMEA
OF 3AI0 NORTHEAST 1/4; THEMCE S0UTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES
48 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID PARALLEL LIME 880.56 FEET TO SAID
SOUTH LIME; THEMCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 34 MINUTES 48 SECOMDS
WEST ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE 598.62 FEET TO SAID SOUTHWEST
CORNER, THEMCE SQUTH 00 DEGREES 10 MINUTES 48 SECOMDS
WEST ALONG SAID EAST LINE 127536 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN S0UTH
289 DEGREES 40 MINUTES 33 SECOMNDS EAST FROM THE POINT OF
BEGINMNIMG; THENCE NORTH 8% DEGREES 40 MINUTES 33 SECOMDS
WEST 681.94 FEET TO THE POIMT OF BEGIMMING [N KEMDALL TOWN-
SHIE, KEMDALL COUNTY, ILLINCIS (EXCEPTIMG THEREFROM THAT PART
IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 36 NORTH,
RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN)

PIN# 05-03-300-029

PARCEL 2:

A2 AC TR LYG SW SEC 3-34-7 (EXC PT DESCRED AS “"EXC™ PER DOC
17- 16528, PG 5) CITY OF YORKVILLE

THAT PART OF THE WEST 1,2 OF SECTION 3, TOWNSHIF 3& NORTH,
RAMNGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD PRIMCIPAL MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE CENTER OF SAID SECTION 3; THEMCE
SOUTH 00 DEGREES 14 MINUTES 45 SECONDS EAST, ALONG THE EAST
LIMNE OF THE SOUTHWEST 174 OF SAID SECTION 3, 1284.36 FEET;
THENCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES 50 MINUTES 00 DEGREES WEST, 48447
FEET, THEMCE NORTH 0% DEGREES 30 MIMUTES 00 SECOMDS WEST,
592.27 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 57 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 55 SECONDS

Chicago Tribune - chicagotribune.com
160 N Stetson Avenue, Chicago, IL 60601
(312) 222-2222 - Fax: (312) 222-4014
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WEST, 327.57 FEET TO THE EASTERLY LIME OF WING ROAD; THEMCE
NORTH 21 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST ALONG SAID
EASTERLY LINE, 705.85 FEET TO THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT OF-WAY LINE
OF ILLINCIS ROUTE 71 FOR THE POINT OF BEGINMING; THEMCE 50UTH
21 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 29 SECONDS EAST ALONG SAID EASTERLY
LINE, 119.0 FEET; THENCE MORTH &8 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 31 SEC-
ONDS EAST, PERPENDICULAR TO SAID EASTERLY LINE, 211.0 FEET;
THEMCE MORTH 21 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 2% SECOMDS WEST PAR-
ALLEL WITH SAID EASTERLY LIME, 131.87 FEET TO SAID SOUTHERLY
RIGHT-OF-WaAY LINE OF ILLINCIS ROUTE 71, THEMCE SOUTHWESTERLY,
ALONG SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF WAY LIME, BEING & CURVE TO THE
RIGHT WITH A RADIUS OF 1150914 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 211,35
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINMING IN KENDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL
COUNTY, ILLINOIS

PIN# 05-03-300-033

PARCEL 3:
540 AC TR LYG SWa SEC 3-36-7 (EXC PT DESCRED AS “"EXC” PER
DOC 17-16528, PG 5} CITY OF YORKVILLE THAT PART OF THE WEST 1,2
OF SECTION 2, TOWNSHIP 38 NORTH, RANGE 7 EAST OF THE THIRD
PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: COMMENCING AT THE
CENTER OF SAID SECTION 3, THEMCE SOUTH 00 DEGREES 14 MINUTES
45 SECONDS EAST ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF
SAID SECTION 3, 1284.36 FEET, THEMCE SOUTH 89 DEGREES S0 MIN-
UTES 00 SECONDS WEST. 684.42 FEET, THEMCE NORTH 09 DEGREES 30
MINUTES 00 SECONDS WEST, 552.27 FEET FOR THE POINT OF BEGIN-
NING; THENCE SOUTH 57 DEGREES 33 MINUTES 55 SECONDS WEST,
232757 FEET TO THE EASTERLY LINE OF WING ROAD; THENCE NORTH
21 DEGREES 52 MINUTES 29 SECONDS WEST, ALONG SAID EASTERLY
LINE, 585.85% FEET TO A POINT ON SAID EASTERLY LNEWHICH IS 119.0
FEET (MEASURED ALOMG SAID EASTERLY LIME) SOUTHEASTERLY OF
THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LIME OF ILLUNOIS ROUTE 71 THENCE
MORTH &8 DEGREES 07 MINUTES 31 SECONDS EAST, PERPENDICULAR
T SAID EASTERLY LIME 211 .0 FEET, THEMCE NORTH 21 DEGREES
&2 MIMUTES 29 SECOMNDS WEST, PARALLEL WITH SAID EASTERLY
LINE, 131.87 FEET TO SAID SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WaAY LIME OF ILLI-
NOIS ROUTE 71, THENCE MORTHEASTERLY ALONG 3AID SOUTHERLY
RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE BEING A CURVE TO THE LEFT WITH A RADIUS OF
11509.16 FEET, AN ARC DISTANCE OF 261.03 FEET TO A LINE DRAWN
MORTH 09 DEGREES 30 MIMUTES 00 SECONDS WEST FROM THE POINT
OF BEGIMMIMNG, THEMCE SOUTH 02 DEGREES 20 MINUTES 00 SECONDS
EAST ALONG SAID LIME 695.72 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING 1N
KEMDALL TOWNSHIP, KENDALL COUNTY, ILLINGIS.
(Loss and except from Above Parcels 1, 2 & 2 part of the Southwest
Quarter and part of the Northwest Quarter of Section 3, Township 36
Morth, Range 7 East of the Third Principal Meridian, describad as fol-
lows with bearings and distances based upon the lllinois State Plane
Coordinate System, (Grid) East Zone { NAD-83, 2007 adj.): Commenc-
ing at the southwest corner of said Section 3; thence North 01 degree
A5 minutes 30 seconds Wiest 1995.04 feet along the west line of said
southwest gquarter section to the cantarline of Ilinois Route 7 1; thence
Morth 69 degrees 55 minutes 19 seconds East 262,19 fe=t along said
canterline to the point of curvature of a 11,479.05 foot radius Cunve
to the Jett: thence northeasterly 116311 feet along said curve whose
chord bears North &7 degrees 01 minutes 09 seconds East 1162.62
feet: thence South 25 degrees 53 minutes 00 seconds East 50.00 feet
to the Point of Beginning on the suutheasterrireg?ht of way line of
llingis Route 71; thence northeasterly 1112.45 along said south-
esterly right of way line along a 11,529.02 foot radius curve to the
left whiose chord bears North 61 degrees 20 minutes 15 seconds East
1116.01 feet: thence North 58 degrees 33 minutes 29 seconds East
216.42 feet along said right of way line to the west line of ﬁrnpert.r
described In document number 201300024064; thence South 13 de-
&rees 56 minutes 03 seconds East 15. 73 feet along said west Jine;
ence South 58 degrees 33 minutes 29 seconds West 65.67 feet]
thence South 56 degrees 13 minutes 50 seconds West 246,22 feet to
a nnn-tangenﬂal clurve to the right; thence southwesterly 656,26 feet
along a 11,554.05 foot radius cunve to the [}ght whose chord bears
south 60 degrees 11 minutes 25 seconds West 658.17 feet; thence
South 50 degrees 42 minutes 49 seconds Weal 51.33 feet, thence
southwesterly 75.56 feet along o 11,5564.05 loot radius curve 1o the
right whose chord bears South &2 degress 15 minutes 33 seconds
West 75.56 feet, thence South 73 degrees 52 minutes 10 seconds
West 76,98 feet; thence southwesterly 226 .37 feet along a 11, 549.05
foot radius’ curve to the right whose chord bears South 63 degrees
22 minutes 56 seconds West 226.37 feet, thence South 15 degress
5& minutes 14 seconds West 40,32 feat: thence South 23 degrees 05
minutes 13 seconds East 10012 feet; thence South 10 degrees 56
minutes 42 saconds East 51.74 feet to the easterly right of way line
of Wing Road; thence North 22 degrees 56 minutes 26 seconds West
200.26 feet along said right of wayline to the Point of Baginning.)

PIN#% 05-03-300-033
A copy of the application is avallable for review dyring normal City
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MWOTICE IS HEREWITH GIVEN THAT the Planning and ZOrjllnﬁ Commis-
sion for the United City of Yorkville will conduct a Public Rearing on
sm;jteﬂaplgcaﬂon on Wednesday, october 12, 2022 at 7 p.m. at the
United] City of Yorkwille, City Hall, located at 800 Game Farm Road,
Yarkville, inois 0540,

The public hearing may be continued from time to time to dates cer-
tain without further notice b=ing published.

All interested parties are invited to attend the public hearing and will
e given an opportunity to be heard. ﬂ-.n?r written comments should
be addressed to the Unitad City of Yorkville Community Development
Department, City Hall, 800 Game Farm Road, vorkville, [lingis, and will
be accepted up to the date of the public hearing.

By order of the Corporate authorities of the United City of vorkville,
Kendall County, Hingis.

JORI BEHLAMD
City Clerk
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YORKVILLE PRESENTS

YCLEILIVING

° THE CITY NEEDS YOUR INPUT ON ITS INITIATIVE TO PROVIDE
HOUSING AND OTHER OPPORTUNITIES FOR ALL AGE GROUPS.
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Yorkville Public LLibrary- Meeting'Room
902 Game FarmiRd, Yorkville; L2
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Attend V|rtuaIIy ViarZzoom:

SSeptemberewwwyorkvilleilis/DoctimentCenter/View/8493/LLOH9:21:22

‘Ocioberswwwyorkvillellus/DocimentCenter/View/8494/LL0H10:20-22

Take'a guickssurveyoniliving and
aginglinYorkville*heres

REEDSH/WWW, surveymonkeycom/r/agmglnyorkwlle

SNACKS & BEVERAGES WILL BE PROVIDED AT EACH MEETING
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	PZC - Restore Church (Rezoning)- Windmill Farms_10-12-22.pdf
	In consideration of testimony presented during a Public Hearing on October 12, 2022 and approval of the findings of fact, the Planning and Zoning Commission recommends approval to the City Council of a request for a map amendment to rezone the followi...




